Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take
no responsibility for the contents of this announcement, make no representation as to its accuracy or
completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or
in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this announcement.
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2014 ANNUAL RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of SCUD Group Limited (the “Company”)
is pleased to announce the audited results of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to
as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2014. This announcement, containing the full text
of the 2014 annual report of the Company (the “2014 Annual Report”), complies with the relevant
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited in relation to information to accompany preliminary announcements of annual results. This
annual results announcement and the 2014 Annual Report will be available for viewing on the websites
of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited at www.hkexnews.hk and of the Company at www.
scudgroup.com. The printed version of the 2014 Annual Report will be delivered to the holders of the
shares (the “Shares”) of the Company (the “Shareholders”).
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
For the year ended 31 December 2014
(RMB thousand except where otherwise stated)

Turnover
Loss for the year
Loss for the year attributable to owners
of the Company
Total assets
EBITDA/(LBITDA)
Basic and diluted losses per share (RMB cents)
Cash position
Current ratio (Times)
Total debt to equity ratio (%)

REVIEW OF ANNUAL RESULTS

2014

3,728,184
6,862

1,696
2,973,929
100,797
0.16
122,229
1.3

39.6

2013
(Restated)

2,395,816
155,756

144,936

2,218,652
(106,029)

14.04

195,360

1.4

32.5

% Change
(+/-)

+55.6
-95.6

-98.8
+34.0
+195.1
-98.9
-37.4
N/A
N/A

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) has reviewed with the senior management
of the Company the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, discussed auditing and

financial reporting matters and reviewed the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the

year ended 31 December 2014 before they presented the same to the Board for approval.
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Established in 1997, the “SCUDFRERR"” brand has now grown into
a mobile digital product accessories brand to provide comprehensive
power solutions for mobile technological products including mobile
communication, mobile digital, smart electronic and multimedia
products. The “SCUDRZERE" brand has been focusing on the R&D
and application of lithium-ion battery, and on the back of its self-
developed and self-designed power management system as well as
advanced technology in battery module packaging, the brand stands
at the forefront of the industry, recognised as a highly reputable
brand in the safety and quality in its “SCUDREER" lithium-ion
battery modules. The “SCUDRERR" brand was crowned as one of
the “China Top Brand” in 2004, selected as one of the “China’s 500
Most Valuable Brands” in 2005 and recognised as a “China Famous
Trademark” in 2006. In the same year, SCUD Group Limited (“SCUD"
the “Company” or, together with its subsidiaries, “SCUD Group” or
“the Group”) was listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), turning over a new leaf
for the “SCUDFRERR" brand.

The “SCUDREER” brand and ODM are the two core business
segments of SCUD Group, supplying high quality lithium-ion
battery products to the domestic retail market and manufacturers
of well-known telecommunication brands respectively. The Group's
manufacturing industrial park located in Fuzhou with land area of
over 100,000 m? is well-equipped with extensive and advanced
facilities. Accumulated with years of production and management
experiences, the industrial park has built up a refined and modernized
manufacturing system and hence become one of the most important
R&D and production bases for lithium-ion battery module products,
mobile communication and digital product accessories nationwide.
Subsidiaries of the Company have been accredited with the ISO9000
International Quality Accreditation and 1SO14000 Environmental
Management System Certification; their products have obtained well-
recognised certifications from UL, FCC, TUV, CE, CB, PSE and KC.

The “SCUDFRFERE"” brand has built up a comprehensive distribution
system across China via its extensive distribution channels and use of
e-commerce platforms, with an ambition of stepping up continuous
overseas expansion, further strengthening its foothold in China while
eyeing international markets at the same time, and dedicating itself to
provide quality “SCUDFRERR" products for consumers worldwide. The
ODM business of the Group mainly supplies quality lithium-ion battery
modules for original mobile telecommunication, mobile digital and
smart electronic products by entering into the supply chain systems
of well-known mobile technology products domestically and abroad.
The rapid development of the Group’s ODM business in recent years
enables SCUD Group to become one of the leading enterprises in the
industry. ODM clients mainly include Huawei, OPPO, vivo, Lenovo,
ZTE, Xiaomi and TCL.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 HE2014F12A318IL5EE
(RMB thousand except where otherwise stated) (B BB - UAREFITHIR)
2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TRT AREBTT
(Restated) % Change

(&&:5)) EHELL

(+/-)
Turnover EEE 3,728,184 2,395,816 +55.6
Loss for the year FEEE 6,862 155,756 -95.6
Loss for the year attributable to ViN/NSIEZE DN
owners of the Company ERFEEE 1,696 144,936 -98.8
Losses per share FhREE
- Basic and diluted (RMB cents) —EARBEEARESD) 0.16 14.04 -98.9




SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREBEERNE

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2014

CORPORATE INFORMATION
AEEH

GRS

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited( & 78
FiCodan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited ¥ 4
Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited -

REGISTERED OFFICE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited (name changed from
Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited) to Conyers Trust
Company (Cayman) Limited with effect from 30 March 2017

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

SCUD Industrial Park

Fuzhou Pilot Free Trade Zone
No. 98 Jianbin Avenue East
Mawei District, Fuzhou
Fujian Province, PRC

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 1017, 10/F Leighton Centre
77 Leighton Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Fang Jin (Chairman)

Guo Quan Zeng (Chief Executive Officer)

Feng Ming Zhu (appointed with effect from 25 August 2016)
Huang Yan (resigned with effect from 25 August 2016)

Non-Executive Directors

Zhang Li (appointed as an Executive Director on 31 December 2010
and redesignated as a Non-Executive Director with effect from
25 August 2016)

Hou Li (appointed with effect from 25 August 2016)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Loke Yu

Wang Jing Zhong

Wang Jian Zhang

Heng Ja Wei Victor (appointed with effect from 1 September 2016)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Yeung Mun Tai (FCCA, CPA)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Fang Jin
Yeung Mun Tai

B201743A30H B4R
Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive
P.0.Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

FEEEEEHE,
PEEEE

BN ERR

TR KEI8R
wINBEEABE
REBIXE

BRERBE

&SRB
EIEET75R
IEEH 10810172

BEExg

HITEE

Fe(ER)

SRR (FTEABED)

BT (B2016F8 25 HB EE ()
= (BE2016F8 H25H#EEBHT)

FHITES
REIR(F2010F 12 A3 B ES T AHITES
WH2016F8 A25 H#E AT AIENITES)

Z=7 (B20165F8 A25H#EELR(T)

BAFHITESE

BE 7 A

TaE

Fres

R4 (E2016F9 A1 HEEER(E)

NRIWE
15mZ=(FCCA, CPA)

BEREAR

TE
BmzE



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREBBRAF

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2014

CORPORATE INFORMATION

~NEER
LEGAL ADVISER EERR
Reed Smith Richards Butler BEE R EMTT
20th Floor, Alexandra House BEBPIRIETE18%
18 Chater Road, Central L KE201E
Hong Kong
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR B A
BDO Limited Certified Public Accountants AR EERESMEEAERA R
25th Floor, Wing On Centre BARETHEFR IR
111 Connaught Road, Central IKEZH 251
Hong Kong
AUDIT COMMITTEE EREEE
Loke Yu (Chairman) B g R(EFE)
Wang Jing Zhong T
Wang Jian Zhang TE=E
Heng Ja Wei Victor (appointed with effect from 1 September 2016) xR#4E(BE201659 1 HLERT)
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND FMEEERIZEEREES
NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Loke Yu (Chairman) PG (EE)
Fang Jin Wik
Wang Jing Zhong Faa
Heng Ja Wei Victor (appointed with effect from 1 September 2016) TBR#4(B2016F9 A1 HBEST)
RESUMPTION COMMITTEE EEEEs
Loke Yu (Chairman) B g (EFE)
Wang Jing Zhong FaR
Wang Jian Zhang FiEE

Heng Ja Wei Victor (appointed with effect from 1 September 2016)
Hou Li (appointed with effect from 25 August 2016)

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited (Note)
Royal Bank House — 3rd Floor

24 Shedden Road

P.O.Box 1586

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

Note:

The name of the Company’s share registrar and transfer office in the
Cayman Islands has been changed from “Royal Bank of Canada Trust
Company (Cayman) Limited” to “SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited”
with effect from 12 May 2017.

The address of the Company’s share registrar and transfer office in
the Cayman Islands has also been changed from “4th Floor, Royal
Bank House, 24 Shedden Road, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-
1110, Cayman Islands” to “Royal Bank House — 3rd Floor, 24 Shedden
Road, P.O. Box 1586, Grand Cayman, KY1-1110, Cayman Islands”
with effect from 12 May 2017.
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SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited (P} &)
Royal Bank House — 3rd Floor

24 Shedden Road

P.O.Box 1586

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands
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[4th Floor, Royal Bank House, 24 Shedden Road,
George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-1110, Cayman
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KY1-1110, Cayman Islands] - B201745H12H #&
R e



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREBBRAF

ANNUAL REPORT £ 3R

CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEER

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22 Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Fujian Haixia Bank

China Merchants Bank
China Construction Bank
Xiamen International Bank
Bank of China

WEBSITE

http://www.scudgroup.com
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On behalf of the board of directors (the "Board") of SCUD Group
Limited ("SCUD",
the "Group"), | am pleased to present the annual results of the

the "Company" or, together with its subsidiaries,

Company for the full year from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2014
(the "Review Period").

2014 witnessed a breathtaking growth of global smartphone market
and intensified competition among smartphone manufacturers.
Foreign brands are losing their dominant market share in the global
market as Chinese mobile phone brands are gaining top rankings in
terms of global market share, evidencing the rise of Chinese mobile
phone brands. The smartphone industry in China is entering into
the golden age of development, backed by the strong emergence
of Chinese mobile phone enterprises such as Huawei, Xiaomi and
Lenovo, with swift growth in shipment volume and significant increase
in brand awareness.

Huawei, Xiaomi, Lenovo all recorded shipments of over 60 million
units in 2014, ranking among the top six worldwide side by side
with Samsung, Apple and LG, and are expected to set their target
of shipments at 100 million units in 2015. Taking into account the
expected slower annual growth rate of China’s smartphone market
in 2015, Chinese smartphone manufacturers which focused on the
expansion of shipment volume in 2014 will have to explore new
ways to increase their profitability to offset the impact of dropping
sales. To facilitate long-term development, it is expected that many
Chinese smartphone manufacturers will concentrate on mid-range
smartphones priced around RMB2,000 while tapping into the market
of smartphones priced above RMB3,000 in 2015. In their early stage
of development, Chinese smartphone manufacturers tended to focus
on establishing their competitive edge on cost performance ratio, but
they have now shifted their focus towards building brand awareness,
reinforcing their market share in low-end and mid-range markets
while offering more mid-range to high-end mobile phone products
with higher cost performance ratio, in order to compete directly with
other international brands.
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Meanwhile, certain major domestic smartphone manufacturers are
seeking expansion in overseas markets to maintain their stream of
revenue. However, except for those manufacturers such as Huawei,
ZTE and TCL, whose shipments to overseas markets exceeded 30%
of their total shipments, other Chinese smartphone manufacturers
still focused on the local market in 2014. Overseas markets, such as
emerging markets in India and South and Central America that feature
low smartphone market penetration rate and high price sensitivity, are
expected to bring momentum for the future development of Chinese
smartphone manufacturers, whose continuous fast growth is tied to
their overseas expansion.

In 2014, the replacement of feature mobile phones by smartphones
was nearly complete in China’s mobile phone market. As consumers
are becoming more aware of smartphone performance capabilities,
the market witnesses a trend towards large screen and multi-core
smartphones as well as thinner and lighter devices. Large screen and
multi-core smartphones increased the demand for batteries with
higher capacity, and therefore batteries with capacity of over 3,000mAh
were equipped in most flagship products launched by major mobile
phone manufacturers in 2014. The popularity of smartphones has
brought about fast growth in demand for high-capacity lithium-
ion batteries, especially the polymer lithium-ion batteries which can
better satisfy the design need for thinner and lighter mobile devices
and for high battery capacity. Polymer lithium-ion batteries have
no obvious advantage over prismatic ones in the category of low-
capacity batteries. However, for batteries with capacity over 2,600mAh,
polymer lithium-ion batteries fit better for thinner and lighter
mobile devices and satisfy the need for high capacity as compared
to prismatic batteries. Polymer lithium-ion batteries have absolute
advantage in the category of batteries with over 4,000mAh, as
prismatic batteries for this category are more difficult to manufacture
due to technological constraints. The Group sources high-quality bare
battery cells from Japan and South Korea to ensure the quality of
battery modules manufactured by the Group, enabling longer battery
life of smartphones and satisfying the requirements of smartphone
and tablet manufacturers for high-quality battery modules.
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Of the two core businesses of SCUD Group, namely the “SCUDRTE
f&” Own-brand business and the ODM business, the latter achieved
particularly outstanding performance in 2014. The Group has
successfully entered the supply chain systems of many domestic and
overseas manufacturers of renowned brand smartphones and tablets,
and has become the battery supplier for manufacturers including
Lenovo, ZTE, TCL, OPPO and vivo, providing them
with lithium-ion battery module solutions and products. The shipment
of ODM battery modules by the Group exceeded 111 million pieces in
2014, up by approximately 82% from approximately 61 million pieces
in 2013. The Group's major costumers have established stable end-user

Huawei, Xiaomi,

markets which in turn creates a competitive advantage for the Group,
and the rapid growth in the end-user market for smart devices in recent
years is also expected to boost the proportion of income derived from
the ODM business in the Group’s total revenue. A number of foreign
bare battery cell brands including Sony, Panasonic, Samsung and LG
Chemical have become major suppliers and long-term partners of the
Group, and as a result, the Group has successfully entered into the
supply chain systems of renowned domestic and overseas smartphone
and tablet manufacturers in recent years. By virtue of the import of
quality bare battery cells, high brand awareness, proven technology
and process, and the capacity to produce various lithium-ion battery
modules, SCUD is widely recognized in the industry in terms of its
product quality and technology. With the Group taking a top position
in the high-end lithium-ion battery module manufacturing sector, the
management believes that in addition to production technology, the
access to quality and stable upstream resources is also very important in
building up the Group’s core competence. In this regard, it is necessary
for the Group, as a high-end lithium-ion battery module manufacturer,
to partner and establish long-term stable cooperative relationships
with international suppliers of lithium-ion bare battery cells. The core
competence of the Group is illustrated by its leading technological R&D,
professional module development and manufacturing, premium clientele
and high quality bare battery cell supplies, and is also demonstrated by
its commitment to provide customers and consumers with safe, light
and durable green power products.
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Looking ahead, the development of smartphones will continue to steer
the future direction of the mobile phone accessories industry. The
popularity of smartphones in China will boost the demand for high-
capacity lithium-ion batteries. The Group will adjust its development
strategies in response to market movements, investing more resources
in R&D and the production of high-quality lithium-ion battery module
products, consolidating and raising the market status of the Group, and
establishing stronger presence of its brand. The Group will maintain
and enhance its cooperation with well-known smartphone and
tablet manufacturers at home and abroad to secure long-term stable
cooperation, so as to lay the market foundation for future development.

10
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INDUSTRY REVIEW

According to the report prepared by TrendForce, a research institute,
the global shipment volume of smartphones reached approximately
1.167 billion units in 2014, representing a year-on-year growth of
approximately 25.9%, among which approximately 453 million units
were under Chinese smartphone brands, accounting for approximately
40% of the global shipment volume. Six out of the ten largest
smartphone manufacturers in terms of global shipment volume
were from China. Another research institute IDC estimates that the
shipment of smartphones from China will record a year-on-year
increase of approximately 7.8% in 2015, reflecting a slower growth of
China’s smartphone market compared to the year-on-year shipment
growth rate in 2014. However, the shipment of Chinese-made
smartphones is expected to reach approximately 450 million units
in 2015, making China the largest smartphone market worldwide
which accounts for approximately 31% of the global market and
almost triples the size of USA, the second largest market. Despite the
presence of indications towards market saturation, the smartphone
markets in developed countries are expected to be further boosted
by 4G technology and relatively high growth rate is expected as a
result of technological advancements. The smartphone markets in
developing countries, on the other hand, are still in the stage of early
development, which is expected to further catalyze the growth of the
global smartphone market.

In 2014, many domestic branded mobile phone manufacturers rolled
out their new smartphone models, and their positions in the market
have become increasingly prominent. With the advent of the 4G era,
the current domestic manufacturers with established market leadership
will benefit the most. According to a report prepared by Sino Market
Research Ltd., the number of mobile phone users in China exceeded
1.2 billion in 2013, and is estimated to increase to approximately
1.37 billion in 2014, and will exceed the total population of China in
2016 to reach approximately 1.66 billion in 2018. The market share
of smartphones in China will increase to approximately 94% with
sales volume estimated at approximately 420 million units in 2014.
By 2018, smartphones are expected to record a sales volume of
approximately 697 million units in China, accounting for nearly 100%
of the total sale volume of mobile phones.
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Driven by the rapid growth of sales of domestic branded smartphones,
tablets and other mobile smart device markets, the consumer lithium-
ion battery market expanded steadily. Coupled with the national
incentive policies on energy-saving and environmental friendly
industry, the consumer lithium-ion battery sector is expected to attract
attention in the industry with optimistic market prospects.

Mobile phones are becoming increasingly intelligent, compact and
multi-functional on the back of the rapid development in mobile
communications, electronic chip, display and other technologies.
Smartphone and digital product upgrades driven by consumer
demands have directly resulted in larger demands for lithium-ion
battery modules for mobile phones and digital products. Moreover,
new smartphone models become increasingly power-consuming
due to larger displays and additional functions, and have posed
higher energy density and safety requirements on lithium-ion battery
modules. As an integral component other than hardware and screen,
batteries for smartphones are evolving towards higher capacity due
to the increasing emphasis of manufacturers on battery endurance.
Mobile phone batteries with capacity of 2,000-3,000mAh are in
notably greater demand, followed by those with capacity of just
below 2,000mAh. Therefore, high quality built-in batteries with
proven record in safety, stability and long endurance have witnessed
substantive increase in demand from smartphone manufacturers. In
addition, external power banks widely used for mobile phones, tablets
and various digital products will continue to enjoy huge market
demand, with their safety performance also coming under the scrutiny
of consumers.

The future of mobile communications industry will evolve with
emphasis on a hybrid of mobile communication applications and the
Internet. Smartphones, tablets and other mobile communications
devices have not only changed the way we communicate and
work but will also have significant influence on our daily life. As
the 4G technology ushers in new opportunities for China’s mobile
communications market, mobile network upgrades will introduce
more extraordinary user experience in connection with Internet
access and stimulate the demand for new 4G mobile communication
devices. The participants in the whole mobile communications industry
chain, including domestic mobile service providers, mobile phone
manufacturers and chip vendors, are geared under their blueprints
to jointly forge the 4G era of China. In the foreseeable future,
smartphones, tablets and other mobile communication devices with
immense market prospects are expected to steadily push up the
demand for consumer lithium-ion batteries such as built-in mobile
phone batteries and external power banks.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

SCUD Group engages in the development, manufacture and sale
of lithium-ion battery modules for smartphones, tablets and other
smart electronic products as well as the provision of all-round power
supply solutions for various consumer electronic products. The Group
is in the industry leading position among domestic professional
lithium-ion battery module manufacturers in terms of technology,
production capacity and sales volume. The sound partnership with
various international renowned bare battery cell producers and
telecommunications product manufacturers has become a major
strength of the Group in developing its lithium-ion battery business.
The current operations of SCUD Group comprise its ODM business and
own-brand business. The ODM business mainly supplies lithium-ion
battery modules to manufacturers of well-known telecommunication
brands at home and abroad, while the own-brand business mainly
engages in the sale of mobile phone batteries, power banks and other
accessories under “SCUDFRTERE” brand in the PRC. At present, over
70% of the Group's revenue is derived from the ODM business mainly
serving renowned smartphone and tablet manufacturers at home
and abroad which enjoy stable shares in the end market. In view of
the rapid growth in the end market for smartphones and tablets in
recent years, the ODM business is expected to account for a higher
proportion of the Group's total revenue and continue to drive our
sales and profit growth in the future.

Given their higher brand awareness and popularity along with
the surging demand for mid- to high-end smartphones, domestic
smartphone manufacturers are aggressively upgrading their product
mix to roll out more mid- to high-end models embedded with
advanced hardware and functions. Smartphones with high-profile
hardware and large screens will accelerate battery drain and require
batteries with better quality and longer endurance. As batteries
have become an integral component of smartphones, higher safety
standard and more stable performance are the priorities in the
development and application of high-capacity lithium-ion batteries.

During the period from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2014
(the "Review Period”), the Group recorded consolidated turnover
of approximately RMB3,728.8 million (2013: RMB2,395.8 million),
representing a growth of approximately 55.6% as compared to
that in 2013. The loss attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately RMB1.7 million (2013: RMB144.9 million). Basic
and diluted losses per share of approximately RMB0.16 cents
(2013: RMB14.04 cents). The ODM business recorded a turnover
of approximately RMB2,695.2 million (2013: RMB1,574.5 million),
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accounting for approximately 72.3% (2013: 65.7%) of the Group’s
consolidated turnover. The own-brand business recorded a turnover of
approximately RMB749.7 million (2013: RMB634.0 million), accounting
for approximately 20.1% (2013: 26.5%) of the Group’s consolidated
turnover. The bare battery cells business recorded a turnover of
approximately RMB243.7 million (2013: RMB174.6 million), accounting
for approximately 6.5% (2013: 7.3%) of the Group’s consolidated
turnover.

ODM Business

The Group’s ODM business mainly focuses on providing all-round
power supply solutions to manufacturers of renowned smartphone
and tablet brands at home and abroad. Capitalising on its experience
in manufacturing lithium-ion batteries and R&D on application
technology, the Group’s ODM product development team is able to
jointly develop, design and optimise battery solutions that best align
with customer needs. Backed by imported premium bare battery
cells, state-of-the-art protection circuit design and precise production
process control, SCUD has secured a leading position in the industry.

The Group has successfully penetrated into the supply chain of well-
known branded smartphone and tablet manufacturers including
Huawei, OPPO, vivo, Lenovo, ZTE, Xiaomi and TCL, and become a
major supplier of lithium-ion battery modules for such manufacturers.
In view of the higher requirements for batteries as the quality of
smartphones continues to upgrade, the Group has engaged a number
of leading international bare battery cell manufacturers including
Sony, Panasonic, Samsung and LG Chemicals as major suppliers
and long-term partners. The premium bare battery cells imported
from Japan and South Korea ensured the quality of battery modules
manufactured by the Group, hence satisfying the requirements for
high quality battery modules by the branded smartphone and tablet
manufacturers. Fuelled by strong demands from the existing and new
customers, the ODM business became a strong sales and profit growth
driver in 2014. With a view to fulfilling the current orders and the
demand for continuous expansion in production and operating scale,
the Group has invested more resources in its business, such as the
introduction of additional automated and semi-automated equipment
to expedite the transition from the labour-intensive production model
to semi- and full-automation. The transition is expected to enhance
productivity and further improve the quality management system to
facilitate the shift to the high-end lithium-ion battery market.
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The lithium-ion battery products supplied by the ODM business mainly
consist of original smartphone batteries customised for clients (“ODM
mobile phone batteries”) and original power banks customised for
clients (“ODM power banks”). During the Review Period, the Group
also began to supply lithium-ion battery modules for tablets and
medical devices. During the Review Period, ODM mobile phone
batteries recorded sales volume of approximately 111.0 million pieces
(2013: 61.0 million pieces) and turnover of approximately RMB2,532.3
million (2013: RMB1,392.5 million), surging by approximately 82.0%
and 81.9% year-on-year respectively and both hit record highs. In
2014, original mobile phone batteries contributed approximately
94.0% (2013: 88.4%) of turnover of the ODM business. During the
Review Period, the ODM business segment recorded net profit of
approximately RMB73.5 million (2013: RMB73.3 million).

As China’s smartphone market has entered into a fast-growing cycle
in 2014, the upcoming 4G era will undoubtedly further expand
the market scale in the coming years. The Group’s ODM business
is expected to benefit from the robust growth in sales volume of
smartphones due to their surging popularity in the PRC, whereas
mid- to high-end smartphones are in greater need of premium
batteries with better performance in safety, stability and endurance.
“SCUDREMBE" has been enjoying high reputation in the lithium-
ion battery module sector in terms of safety standard and quality.
Having thorough knowledge in lithium-ion battery performance and
extensive experience in battery module design, the Group is able to
supply high quality lithium-ion batteries customised for different types
of smartphones and tablets. The tablet market in the PRC, albeit in
a smaller scale relative to the smartphone market, is expected to
grow steadily in the future as a number of famous brands including
Xiaomi, Lenovo, Huawei and ZTE have begun launching their own
tablet products. Looking ahead, the ODM business fuelled by strong
demands from the existing and new customers is well positioned to
support the Group to maintain its edge in the smartphone and tablet
battery market.
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Own-brand Business

The own-brand business mainly consists of domestic sale of mobile
phone batteries (“own-brand mobile phone batteries”), power banks
(“own-brand power banks”) and other accessories under our “SCUD
FREE" brand. Own-brand power banks is the largest revenue
contributor which accounted for more than 40% in sales revenue
for our own-brand products. During the Review Period, the own-
brand business recorded consolidated turnover of approximately
RMB749.7 million (2013: RMB634.0 million), representing a growth
of approximately 18.2% year-on-year. Own-brand power banks
recorded sales volume of approximately 6.5 million pieces (2013:
5.1 million pieces), representing a growth of 26.4% year-on-year
and contributing turnover of approximately RMB392.5 million (2013:
RMB354.6 million). Own-brand mobile phone batteries recorded
sales volume of approximately 7.7 million pieces (2013: 15.3 million
pieces), representing a decrease of approximately 49.6% year-on-
year and contributing turnover of approximately RMB176.2 million
(2013: RMB250.5 million). During the Review Period, revenue of
approximately RMB173.1 million (2013: Nil) was derived from sales
of power management module manufactured by the Group, which
is @ new income source in the own-brand business segment. During
the Review Period, the own-brand business recorded net loss of
approximately RMB4.7 million (2013: RMB258.1 million).

The evolving power supply technologies brought about by the rapid
growth and higher performance requirements of smart electronic
products have brought forth power banks that can support a range
of smart electronic products. In recent years, power banks have
experienced rapid development. “SCUDFRERR" brand is renowned
in the industry for its years of experience in manufacturing mobile
phone batteries and the safety and quality of its battery products.
Product quality and safety remain the priorities for power banks under
the "SCUDTRERR" brand. The “SCUDRTERR"” branded power banks,
which are well received by customers, have secured a considerable
market share in China at present. The sound development of the
power banks will enhance the positions of sizeable enterprises in the
industry, bringing new opportunities to the Group and securing the
role of own-brand power banks as a future growth driver in the own-
brand business segment.
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The development of smartphones will shape the development direction
of the mobile phone accessories industry. The Group will align its
development strategy with market changes and maintain its focus
on R&D, production and retailing of smartphone and tablet lithium-
ion battery modules. More lithium-ion battery module products with
high cost-performance ratio will be manufactured to consolidate and
enhance the market position of our “SCUDRTERER" brand.

The Group will actively invest in R&D of lithium-ion battery application
technology, seeking to promote application of various lithium-ion
batteries (including polymer, prismatic and cylindrical batteries) in
a wider range of products. Extending the application of lithium-ion
batteries from the current focus of smart electronic products to other
areas will not only meet demands of different customer groups, but
also lay a broader market base for the Group’s future growth.

Bare battery cells business

The Group tapped into the production of lithium-ion bare battery
cells in mid-2010 and rapidly expanded the scale of bare battery
cells business through acquisitions of domestic bare battery cells
enterprises. However, development of the bare battery cells segment
was below expectation in the past few years mainly attributed to
intensifying competition in the bare battery cell industry evident by
the large number of domestic and foreign enterprises engaging in
the production and sales of lithium-ion bare battery cells, including
large-scale well-known enterprises which have greater competitive
edge over the Group, as well as the significant decrease in demand
for prismatic lithium-ion bare battery cells generally applied in feature
phone batteries in recent years. As a result, the Group recorded losses
in the bare battery cells business segment since 2013. The Group
planned to discontinue the existing bare battery cells business in
2014, with a view to improve the overall performance and working
capital position by reducing operating losses, as well as to allow the
Group to focus its limited resources on ODM business, which has
higher growth potential.
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On 13 June, 2014, the Group announced the sale of 70% equity
interests in Shenzhen Nalon Battery Co., Ltd (“Shenzhen Nalon”) and
60% equity interests in Shenzhen Hongde Battery Co., Ltd (“Shenzhen
Hongde”) to Fang Jin (“Mr. Fang”), a Director and controlling
shareholder of the Group for a total consideration of RMB105.0
million. However, as announced in the Group’s announcement dated
24 October, 2014, the above transaction was terminated on 24
October, 2014 due to the fact that the Group was unable to secure
all relevant consents and approvals regarding the sale of 70% equity
interests in Shenzhen Nalon and 60% equity interests in Shenzhen
Hongde. In light of such termination, the Group continued to consider
other feasible options for discontinuation of the Group’s bare battery
cells business, including but not limited to the possible sale of part
of the Group’s bare battery cells business to Mr. Fang. During the
Review Period, the Group proposed other feasible options regarding
the above terminated transaction, including the decision to retain
70% equity interests in Shenzhen Nalon and the transformation of the
core business of Shenzhen Nalon (currently includes the development,
production and sales of lithium-ion bare battery cells) into ODM
production for the Group’'s ODM business (mainly to complete the
assembly process for ODM mobile batteries) to complement the
growing ODM business of the Group. Since certain relevant resources
of Shenzhen Nalon are available for immediate use, coupled with the
logistic advantage of having a close proximity to its clients, the Board
believed the above-mentioned adjustment made to the core business
of Shenzhen Nalon will be in line with the Group’s overall strategy
of further consolidating its strength in the ODM market. In addition,
the Group announced on 5 December 2014 that Shenzhen Hongde,
which directly holds two wholly-owned subsidiaries, namely Dongguan
Hongde Battery Co., Ltd. (“Dongguan Hongde”) and Hongde New
Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (“Hongde New Energy”), agreed to sell
the entire equity interests in Hongde New Energy to Mr. Fang for a
total consideration of RMB6.0 million. The transaction completed on
19 December 2014.

During the Review Period, the Group’s bare battery cell business
recorded turnover and net loss of approximately RMB243.7 million
(2013: RMB174.6 million) and RMB16.8 million (2013: RMB2.2 million)
respectively.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the Review Period, the Group recorded consolidated turnover
of approximately RMB3,728.8 million (2013: RMB2,395.8 million),
increased by approximately 55.6% as compared to that in 2013.
The reason of the turnover increase was mainly attributable to the
significant increase in sales under the ODM business segment. Gross
profit was approximately RMB508.2 million (2013: RMB375.5 million),
increased by approximately 35.4% against 2013. The loss for the year
and loss attributable to owners of the Company were approximately
RMB6.9 million (2013: RMB155.8 million) and approximately
RMB1.7 million (2013: RMB144.9 million) respectively. The Group
recorded EBITDA of approximately RMB100.8 million (2013: LBITDA
RMB106.0 million) for the year. Basic and diluted losses per share was
approximately RMBO0.16 cents (2013: RMB14.04 cents).

Turnover by segments

During the Review Period, turnover of approximately RMB2,695.2
million (2013: RMB1,574.5 million) was generated from the ODM
business segment, which accounted for approximately 72.3% (2013:
65.7%) of the consolidated turnover. Turnover of approximately
RMB749.7 million (2013: RMB634.0 million) was generated from the
own-brand business segment, which accounted for approximately
20.1% (2013: 26.5%) of the consolidated turnover. Turnover of
approximately RMB243.7 million (2013: RMB174.6 million) was
contributed by the bare battery cells business segment.

Sales by major products

During the Review Period, sales of approximately RMB2,708.6
million (2013: RMB1,643.0 million) and RMB105.8 million
(2013: RMB19.5 million) came from mobile phone batteries
and tablets/notebook computer batteries which accounted
for approximately 72.6% (2013: 68.6%) and 2.8% (2013:
0.8%) of the consolidated turnover respectively. Sales of power
banks and power management module amounted to approximately
RMB425.2 million (2013: RMB497.2 million) and RMB173.1 million
(2013: Nil) respectively, which accounted for approximately 11.4%
(2013: 20.8%) and 4.6% (2013: N/A) of the consolidated turnover
respectively.
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Segment Results

For the ODM business segment, total revenue and net profit
contributed to the Group during the Review Period increased by
approximately 71.2% and approximately 0.3% to approximately
RMB2,695.2 million (2013: RMB1,574.5 million) and approximately
RMB73.5 million (2013: RMB73.3 million) respectively. The Group's
strong network with top-tier domestic smart devices vendors like
Huawei, Xiaomi and ZTE allows it to benefit from robust demand,
increasing popularity and upgrade trend of smart devices in China.
During the Review Period, the sales volume of ODM mobile phone
batteries grew by approximately 82.0% to approximately 111.0
million pieces (2013: 61.0 million pieces) and the turnover of ODM
mobile phone batteries increased significantly by approximately 81.9%
to approximately RMB2,532.3 million (2013: RMB1,392.5 million),
which accounted for approximately 94.0% (2013: 88.4%) of the
Group’s ODM sales. Sales volume of ODM tablet batteries increased
by approximately 1.6 million pieces (2013: Notebook computer
battery 150,000 pieces) which contributed approximately RMB105.8
million (2013: RMB19.5 million) to the consolidated revenue. Sales
volume of ODM power banks was approximately 0.3 million pieces
(2013: 1.5 million pieces). Sales of ODM power banks amounted to
approximately RMB32.6 million (2013: RMB142.6 million). Sales of
ODM tablet and notebook computer batteries and ODM power banks
accounted for approximately 3.9% (2013: 1.2%) and 1.2% (2013:
9.1%) of the Group’s ODM sales respectively.

For the own-brand business segment, the total revenue contributing
to the Group during the Review Period increased by approximately
18.2% to approximately RMB749.7 million (2013: RMB634.0 million).
The Group recorded net loss of approximately RMB4.7 million (2013:
RMB258.1 million), decreased by approximately 98.2% during the
Review Period. During the Review Period, sales volume of own-brand
power banks increased by approximately 26.4% to approximately 6.5
million pieces (2013: 5.1 million pieces). Sales of own-brand power
banks amounted to approximately RMB392.5 million (2013: RMB354.6
million), accounted for approximately 52.4% (2013: 55.9%) of the
Group’s own brand sales. The sales volume of own-brand mobile
phone batteries dropped by approximately 49.6% to approximately 7.7
million pieces (2013: 15.3 million pieces) and the turnover of own-
brand mobile phone batteries decreased by approximately 29.6% to
approximately RMB176.2 million (2013: RMB250.5 million), accounted
for approximately 23.5% (2013: 39.5%) of the Group’s own brand
sales. As for other own-brand products, sales of power management
module accounted for approximately 23.1% (2013: N/A) of the
Group’s own brand sales, contributed approximately RMB173.1 million
(2013: Nil) to the Group’s own brand sales.
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For the bare battery cell business segment, the total revenue and net
loss recorded during the Review Period were approximately RMB243.7
million (2013: RMB174.6 million) and RMB16.8 million (2013: RMB2.2
million) respectively.

Cost of Sales

The Group’s cost of sales amounted to approximately RMB3,220.6
million in 2014 (2013: RMB2,020.4 million), representing an increase
of approximately 59.4% as compared to 2013. The increase in cost of
sales was in line with the increase in sales during the Review Period.
Direct materials, direct labour and other production costs accounted
for approximately 86.1% (2013: 86.1%), 6.7% (2013: 7.0%) and
7.2% (2013: 6.9%) of the cost of sales.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The overall gross profit margin of the Group in 2014 was
approximately 13.6% (2013: 15.7%). The decline in gross profit
margin was mainly due to the gross loss recorded in the bare battery
cell business segment in 2014.

For the ODM business, the overall gross profit margin in 2014 was
approximately 12.4% (2013: 13.8%). For the own-brand business, the
overall gross profit margin in 2014 was approximately 18.6% (2013:
21.7%). For the bare battery cells business, the overall gross loss
margin in 2014 was approximately 12.1% (2013: gross profit margin
11.8%).

Other revenue of approximately RMB22.7 million (2013: RMB19.0
million) in 2014 was mainly comprised of bank interest income,
government grant and an reversal of impairment of inventories. The
increase in other revenue was mainly attributable to the increase in
bank interest income and government grant.

Selling and distribution expenses of approximately RMB61.4 million
(2013: RMB57.5 million) accounted for approximately 1.6% (2013:
2.4%) of the Group’s consolidated turnover in 2014. The selling and
distribution expenses mainly comprised of office expenses, advertising
and promotion expenses, transportation expenses and staff salaries
and welfare. The increase in selling and distribution expenses was
mainly because of the increase in office expenses, transportion
expenses and promotion expenses during the Review Period.
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Administrative expenses of approximately RMB247.7 million (2013:
RMB260.9 million) accounted for approximately 6.6% (2013: 10.9%)
of the Group’s consolidated turnover in 2014. Administrative expenses
mainly comprised of R&D expenses, staff salaries and welfare, office
supplies, depreciation and rental expenses. The decrease in administrative
expenses was mainly attributable to the reduction in impairment loss
recognised on intangible assets and depreciation during the Review
Period, which was partially set off by an increase in loss on disposal of
intangible assets, R&D expenses, staff salaries and welfare and audit fee
during the Review Period.

Other operating expenses of approximately RMB162.8 million (2013:
RMB3.1 million) mainly comprised of the impairment loss recognised on
trade and other receivables as well as write off of property, plant and
equipment.

Finance costs of approximately RMB30.2 million (2013: RMB26.0
million) mainly represent interest on bank borrowings.

Loss Attributable to Owners of the Company

In 2014, the Group recorded loss attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately RMB1.7 million (2013: RMB144.9 million).
The significant decrease in loss attribuable to owners of the Company
was mainly due to a non-recurring loss on refund of approximately
RMB257.8 million which was recorded in 2013, and no loss on
refund was recognised in 2014. An impairment loss of approximately
RMB105.1 million (2013: RMB10.0 million) was recognised on
trade and other receivable and a share-based payment expenses of
approximately RMB14.8 million (2013: Nil) was recognised during the
Review Period.

Treasury Management and Cash Funding

The Group’s funding and treasury policy is designed to maintain a
diversified and balanced debt profile and financing structure. The
Group continues to monitor its cash flow position and debt profile, and
to enhance the cost-efficiency of funding initiatives by its centralised
treasury function. In order to maintain financial flexibility and adequate
liquidity for the Group’s operations, potential investments and growth
plans, the Group has built a strong base of funding resources and will
keep exploring cost-efficient ways of financing.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

Cash and cash equivalents held by the Group as at 31 December
2014 was approximately RMB122.2 million, principally denominated
in Renminbi, decreased by approximately RMB73.2 million (at 31
December 2013: RMB195.4 million). The decrease in cash and cash
equivalent was mainly due to the increase in pledged bank deposits
from approximately RMB239.4 million as at 31 December 2013 to
approximately RMB422.1 million as at 31 December 2014. The Group
recorded a net cash inflow from operating activities of approximately
RMB13.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013:
RMB32.4 million).

The Group’s borrowings, principally denominated in Renminbi, which
were outstanding as at 31 December 2014 amounted to approximately
RMB410.0 million (at 31 December 2013: RMB320.8 million) were
carried at floating interest rates. A total of RMB391.0 million of the
interest-bearing borrowings will fall due during the next 12 months
after the end of the Review Period. There was no particular seasonality
of the Group’s borrowing requirements. Please refer to Note 27 to
the consolidated financial statements for detail on the maturity profile
of the Group’s borrowings. The Group monitored capital using a
gearing ratio, which is total debt of the Group divided by total equity
of the Group. Total debt to equity ratio of the Group expressed as
a percentage of interest bearing borrowings over the total equity of
approximately RMB1,036.0 million (at 31 December 2013: RMB987.8
million) was approximately 39.6% as at 31 December 2014 (at 31
December 2013: 32.5%). Bank deposits pledged for banking facilities
as at 31 December 2014 was approximately RMB422.1 million (at 31
December 2013: RMB239.4 million).

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s current ratio was approximately
1.3 times (at 31 December 2013: 1.4 times) based on current
assets of approximately RMB2,531.2 million (at 31 December
2013: RMB1,707.7 million) and current liabilities of approximately
RMB1,913.0 million (at 31 December 2013: RMB1,225.2 million).
Trade and notes receivables turnover days were approximately 85 days
for the year ended 31 December 2014 as compared to approximately
90 days for the year ended 31 December 2013. Inventory turnover
days were approximately 45 days for the year ended 31 December
2014 as compared to approximately 80 days for the year ended
31 December 2013. Trade and notes payables turnover days were
approximately 127 days for the year ended 31 December 2014 as
compared to approximately 111 days for the year ended 31 December
2013.
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Net Current Assets and Net Assets

The Group’s net current assets as at 31 December 2014 was
approximately RMB618.2 million, increased by approximately 28.1%
from the balance of approximately RMB482.5 million recorded as
at 31 December 2013. Net assets as at 31 December 2014 was
approximately RMB1,036.0 million, increased by approximately
4.9% from the balance of approximately RMB987.8 million as at 31
December 2013.

Change in Ownership Interest in a Subsidiary

On 13 June, 2014, the Group announced the sale of 70% equity
interests in Shenzhen Nalon and 60% equity interests in Shenzhen
Hongde to Mr. Fang, a Director and controlling shareholder of the
Group for a total consideration of RMB105 million. However, as
announced in the Group’s announcement dated 24 October, 2014,
the above transaction was terminated on 24 October, 2014 due to
the fact that the Group was unable to secure all relevant consents
and approvals regarding the sale of 70% equity interests in Shenzhen
Nalon and 60% equity interests in Shenzhen Hongde. In light of such
termination, the Group continued to consider other feasible options for
discontinuation of the Group’s bare battery cells business, including but
not limited to the possible sale of part of the Group’s bare battery cells
business to Mr. Fang. During the Review Period, the Group proposed
other feasible options regarding the above terminated transaction,
including the decision to retain 70% equity interests in Shenzhen Nalon
and the transformation of the core business of Shenzhen Nalon (currently
includes the development, production and sales of lithium-ion bare
battery cells) into ODM production for the Group’s ODM business (mainly
to complete the assembly process for ODM mobile phone batteries) to
complement the growing ODM business of the Group. Since certain
relevant resources of Shenzhen Nalon are available for immediate
use, coupled with the logistic advantage of having a close proximity
to its clients, the Board of Directors believed the above-mentioned
adjustment made to the core business of Shenzhen Nalon will be in line
with the Group’s overall strategy of further consolidating its strength
in the ODM market. In addition, the Group announced on 5 December
2014 that Shenzhen Hongde, which directly holds two wholly-owned
subsidiaries, Dongguan Hongde and Hongde New Energy, agreed to
sell the entire equity interests in Hongde New Energy to Mr. Fang for a
total consideration of RMB6.0 million.
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Hongde New Energy is principally engaged in the research and
development, production and sale of lithium-ion bare battery cells.
Given Hongde New Energy was then loss making and is expected
to require further funding to improve its business, the disposal is
expected to reduce the Group’s operating loss, thereby improving its
results of performance and working capital position. The disposal of
Hongde New Energy completed on 19 December 2014 as announced
by the Company on the same date.

Save as disclosed above, the Group made no significant investment
nor did it make any material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries
during the Review Period.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2014, bank loans of approximately RMB122.0
million (at 31 December 2013: RMBO0.4 million) were secured by the
Group’s assets and bank loans of approximately RMB258.5 million
(2013: RMB320.4 million) were unsecured.

Commitments

The Group’s capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December
2014 amounting to approximately RMBO0.5 million (at 31 December
2013: RMB21.6 million) was mainly attributed to acquisition of
equipment.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not provide any form of
guarantee for any company outside the Group and did not involve
in any material legal proceedings for which provision for contingent
liabilities was required.
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Capital Structure

On 2 December 2014, Right Grand Holdings Limited (“Right Grand”),
which is wholly-owned by Fang Jin, an executive Director, chairman
and controlling shareholder of the Company, entered into a placing
agreement (“Placing Agreement”) with the Company and Oriental
Patron Securities Limited (the “Placing Agent”). Pursuant to the Placing
Agreement, the Placing Agent agreed to act as placing agent for
Right Grand to procure, on a best effort basis, purchasers to purchase
58,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of
the Company (“Shares”) held by Right Grand at the placing price of
HK$1.06 per share (“Placing”), representing a discount of approximately
7.8% to the closing price of HK$1.15 per Share traded on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) on the date of
the Placing Agreement. The 58,000,000 Shares were placed to Value
Partners China Greenchip Fund Ltd. and Value Partners Intelligent Funds
— JA-VP China New Century Fund, both of whom are independent third
parties. On the same date, Right Grand and the Company entered into
a subscription agreement, pursuant to which Right Grand conditionally
agreed to subscribe for and the Company conditionally agreed to issue
under general mandate 58,000,000 Shares, with aggregate nominal
value of HK$5.8 million, at the subscription price of HK$1.06 each
(which is equivalent to the placing price before taking into account the
expenses of the Placing). Consequently, the issued share capital of the
Company was increased by HK$5.8 million (represented by 58,000,000
ordinary shares) to approximately HK$109.0 million (represented by
1,090,001,246 ordinary shares).

Foreign Exchange Exposure

For the year 2014, the Group conducted its business transactions
principally in Renminbi. The Group has not experienced any material
difficulties or negative impacts on its operations as a result of
fluctuations in currency exchanges rates. Although the Group has
certain bank balances denominated in United States Dollars, Japanese
Yen and Hong Kong Dollars, their proportion to the Group’s total
assets is insignificant. The Directors considered that no hedging of
exchange risk is required and no financial instruments were used for
hedging purposes during 2014. Nevertheless, the management will
continue to monitor the Group’s foreign exchange exposure and will
take prudent measures against currency exchange risks as and when it
is appropriate.

Significant Investment Held, Material Acquisition and
Disposal

Save as disclosed above, there were no significant investment held as
at 31 December 2014, nor other material acquisition and disposals of
subsidiary during the Review Period.
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Material Investments or Capital Assets

The Group did not make any material investments or purchase any
material capital assets in the year after the end of the Review Period.

Employee, Remuneration Policies and Share Option
Scheme

As at 31 December 2014, the Group employed 5,648 full-time
employees (2013: 5,062). The salaries of the Directors and the
Group’s employees were determined by reference to their personal
performance, professional qualification, industry experience of the
employee and relevant market trends. The Group ensures all levels
of employees are paid competitively within market standard and
employees are rewarded on a performance-related basis within the
framework of the Group's salary, incentives and bonus scheme.
The management reviews the remuneration policy of the Group
on a regular basis and evaluates the working performance of the
employees. The remuneration of the employees includes salaries,
allowances, year-end bonus and social insurance. According to the
relevant prevailing laws and regulations of the PRC, the Group has
participated in the social insurance plans set up by the related local
government authorities, including pension funds, medical insurance
(including maternity insurance), unemployment insurance and work-
related injury insurance. The Group has also participated in the
mandatory provident fund scheme for its Hong Kong employees in
accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance
(Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

The Company also adopted a share option scheme to reward eligible
participants (including directors and employees of the Group) for their
contributions to the Group. On 19 June 2014, the Company offered
to grant share options to a number of eligible participants to subscribe
for up to 80,000,000 shares with nominal value of HK$0.10 each in
the issued share capital of the Company pursuant to the share option
scheme adopted by the Company on 3 December 2006. Among the
80,000,000 share options, 21,200,000 share options were granted to
the executive Directors of the Company.
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On 31 December 2014, the number of shares in respect of which
option had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Company’s share option scheme was 80,000,000, representing
approximately 7.34% of the shares of the Company in issue as at
31 December 2014. Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or any of their respective associates, would result in the
securities issued or to be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted (including options exercised, cancelled
and outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of such grant (i) representing in aggregate over 0.1%
of the Company’s share capital and (ii) with an aggregate value (based
on the closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of each
grant) in excess of HK$5.0 million, such further grant of options must
be approved in advance by resolution of the Company’s shareholders.
A consideration of HK$1.0 is payable on the grant of option.

The Company recognised the total expense of RMB14.8 million (2013:
Nil) for the Review Period in relation to share options granted by
the Company. Please refer to Note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements for detail.

SUSPENSION OF TRADING

Trading in the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange has
been suspended with effect from 9:00 a.m. on 26 March 2015.

Resignation of auditor

On 25 March 2015, the Company was informed by its former auditor
Moore Stephens Certified Public Accountants (“Moore Stephens”) that
based on preliminary observations there were several inconsistencies
in the financial data of the Group while they were carrying out the
annual audit for the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014,
and that since the investigation and verification of the inconsistencies
might go beyond the scope of work of general audit, it requested
the Company to perform other additional procedures, including
engaging an independent third party to undertake investigation of the
inconsistencies that it had observed.
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On 2 April 2015, Moore Stephens resigned as the independent auditor
of the Company. In the letter of resignation dated 2 April 2015 to
the Board and the audit committee of the Company, Moore Stephens
stated that during the performance of the audit of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2014, it observed certain inconsistencies
(the “Matters”). Details of the Matters are as follows:

(@) Moore Stephens were unable to verify all value-added tax
invoices tested in their sales transaction test through the online
verification system;

(b) Moore Stephens were unable to verify a late adjustment debiting
accounts receivable and crediting bank balances. The bank
balances as at 31 December 2014 after putting through this
adjustment was inconsistent with the balances shown on the
bank confirmations Moore Stephens obtained from the banks
during the audit; and

() Moore Stephens were unable to verify a late adjustment
debiting sales, income tax payable, value-added-tax payable and
crediting bank balances and intercompany current account. This
adjustment was inconsistent with the tax returns, tax payment
advice and bank confirmations Moore Stephens obtained and the
sales ledger that was made available for their testing during the
audit.

Establishment of independent board committee and
appointment of independent third party investigator

As mentioned in the Company’s announcement dated 29 May 2015,
the Board resolved to establish an independent board committee (“IBC")
comprising independent non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Loke
Yu, Mr. Wang Jing Zhong and Mr. Wang Jian Zhang, to investigate
the Matters. Dr. Loke Yu was appointed the chairman of the IBC.
Grant Thornton Advisory Services Limited (“Grant Thornton”), an
independent third party investigator, was engaged to investigate the
Matters.
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Key findings of independent investigation and
recommendation of the IBC

According to the report of the investigation by Grant Thornton, the
cause of the incident was mainly that Scud Battery Co., Ltd. (“Scud
Battery”), a subsidiary of the Group engaging in own-brand business
of the Group, had excess recall and incurred a significant loss in
connection with such excess recall when it implemented a plan to
recall those own-brand battery products of specified series purchased
from Scud Battery by 31 designated distributors.

It was discovered that the financial data of Scud Battery for the
financial year commencing from 1 January 2013 to 31 December
2013 and the financial year commencing from 1 January 2014 to 31
December 2014 contained misstatements. Furthermore, it was found
in the investigation that Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Ltd., a subsidiary
mainly engaging in ODM business of the Group, had omitted to
declare income tax in the financial year commencing from 1 January
2013 to 31 December 2013 and the financial year commencing from
1 January 2014 to 31 December 2014.

After reviewing the findings of the investigation by Grant Thornton,
the IBC made a series of recommendations to the Board, including,
among other things, engaging an independent third party consultant
to review the internal control systems and procedures of the
Company.

For further details of the key findings of the investigation and the
recommendations of the IBC, please see the announcement of the
Company dated 14 June 2016.

Appointment of BDO Financial Services Limited as
internal control consultant

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 25 August 2016,
the Company engaged BDO Financial Services Limited (“Internal
Control Consultant”) as its internal control consultant to conduct
a review of the internal control systems and procedures of the
Group and to make recommendations accordingly (“Internal Control
Review").
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The Internal Control Review was completed. On 30 November 2017,
the Internal Control Consultant issued its report on the Internal
Control Review. The Internal Control Consultant was satisfied that the
Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control
systems in relation to the companies within the Group that are the
subject of the Internal Control Review and all the business areas of
the Group as at 31 May 2017.

For further details of the report issued by the Internal Control
Consultant, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report of this
annual report and the announcement of the Company dated 30
November 2017.

BOARD’S VIEW ON AUDITOR’S DISCLAIMER
OF OPINION

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Review
Period were audited by BDO Limited Certified Public Accountants (the
“Auditor”). The Auditor expressed disclaimer of opinion (the “Auditor’s
Disclaimer”) on the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
Review Period, the details of which are set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report in this annual report. The Board is of the view
that, on the following basis, the issues underlying the basis for the
Auditor’s Disclaimer have been addressed or resolved:

1. Opening balances and corresponding figures
a. Prior year's adjustments

The Company prepared the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the Review Period (which
were provided to the Auditor for their audit) based on
information available to the Company. The Company made
adjustments to such consolidated financial statements and
prior year adjustments to the comparative information for
the year ended 31 December 2013 (the “Adjustments”)
in order to correct the material misstatements uncovered
by the investigation (the “Investigation”) carried out
by Grant Thornton on the Matters observed by Moore
Stephens during their audit of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2014. In doing so, the Company took into account all
the findings of the Investigation, a summary of which
(and the primary limitations to which the findings were
subject (the “Limitations”)) was set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 14 June 2016.
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The Company had provided all relevant information
and supporting documents as required by the Auditor
to the Auditor to the extent that they are available to
the Company and had used all reasonable endeavours
to arrange for discussions and/or meetings required by
the Auditor between the Auditor and persons identified
by the Auditor to facilitate the Auditor in ascertaining
the nature (and obtaining the details) of the incident
underlying the Matters, and the appropriateness of the
prior year's adjustments made by the Company. The Board
considers that this issue was an ad hoc consequence to
the Limitations, given (i) the Company took into account
all the findings of the Investigation, which were subject
to the Limitations, when making the Adjustments and (ii)
the limitations faced by the Auditor stemmed from the
Limitations.

Trade receivables

The amount of impairment loss on trade receivable balances
as at 31 December 2013 (net of subsequent settlements)
relating to a proportion of the confirmations from certain
customers of the Group as required by the Auditor, which
were either not returned or returned with discrepancies
against the Company’s record and which were recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the Group for the Review
Period, was approximately RMB20 million, representing
approximately 3.9% of the total amount of trade receivable
balances as at 31 December 2013. On the above basis,
the Board is of the view that such impairment amount was
immaterial.
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The Board considers that this was an ad hoc issue,
given the non-return of such confirmations from
certain customers was mainly due to (i) their respective
unwillingness to cooperate on verifying and returning the
confirmations given the time lapse of over two and a half
years between the year end date of 31 December 2013
and the date of sending requests for such confirmations
at the end of 2016 and during 2017 by the Auditor after
their appointment in August 2016 for their audit for the
Review Period, or (ii) their respective deregistration or
cessation of business relationship between them and the
Group over such period of time. The relevant amount of
impairment loss of approximately RMB20 million recognised
in the consolidated financial statement of the Group for the
Review Period was prudently determined by the Company
based on the Group’s internal record on the sales to, and
trade receivables due from, the relevant customers.

Opening and closing inventories

Given the Auditor was appointed in August 2016, the Auditor
did not attend the physical stock take of the opening and closing
inventory balances of the Review Period conducted by the Group.
The Board considers that this was an ad hoc consequence to
the unusual audit delay for the Review Period. Subsequent to
their appointment in August 2016, the Auditor attended and
observed the physical stock take of the inventory balance as at
31 December 2016 conducted by the Group and the Auditor
raised no concern on such inventory balance. Please refer to the
Independent Auditor’s Report in the Company’s annual report for
the financial year ended 31 December 2016 for further details.

In respect of the alternative audit procedure explored by the
Auditor in connection with the inventory roll-back procedures
from the inventory balance as at 31 December 2016 and the
Group's ability to facilitate such procedures through providing or
linking all the information and supporting documents required
by the Auditor for all the sale and purchase transactions for the
three years ended 31 December 2016, please refer to the Board's
view under the section headed “3. Certain sale and purchase
transactions” below.
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Certain sale and purchase transactions

The Board considers that the issues relating to the Group’s

certain sale and purchase transactions underlying the basis for

the Auditor’s Disclaimer have been addressed on the following

basis:

@)

(ii)

(iii)

the launch of the Group’s new enterprise resource planning
system in 2017, which computerised and centralised the
management and systematic recording of operational and
financial data;

the strengthening of the Group’s internal control systems
and financial reporting procedures as a result of the
Group's implementation of the improvements and/or
remedial measures recommended by BDO Financial Services
Limited, which the Company engaged as its internal control
consultant in August 2016; and

the disposal two subsidiaries of the Group, namely
Shenzhen Nalon Battery Co., Ltd. and Scud Power (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd, (the "Disposed Subsidiaries”) at the end of 2016,
the sales and purchases amounts of which during the
Review Period had not been verified to the satisfaction of
the Auditor.

The Board also considers such issues were ad hoc, in that:

@)

the non-return of confirmations from certain customers
and suppliers in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
during the Review Period as required by the Auditor was
mainly due to (a) their respective unwillingness to cooperate
on verifying and returning the confirmations given the
time lapse of over two years between the end date of the
Review Period and the date of sending requests for such
confirmations in 2017 by the Auditor for their audit for
the Review Period, or (b) their respective deregistration or
cessation of business relationship between them and the
Group over such period of time; and
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(ii)

there was time constraint on the Group spending
substantially more time on providing and linking all the
information and supporting documents in the audit trail
in relation to all the sales to (or purchases from, especially
given the large number of suppliers of the Group involved
in supplying the wide variety of raw materials for producing
the Group’s products) all non-top 10 customers (or
suppliers) of Scud Battery and Scud Electronics and all
customers (or suppliers) of the Disposed Subsidiaries (as
appropriate) as required by the Auditor, as opposed to
providing such information and supporting documents to
an auditor simply on a sample basis in the ordinary course
of a normal audit.

Set out below are the details of the proportions of the Group’s

sales and purchases amounts during the Review Period which

had or had not been verified to the satisfaction of the Auditor (as

the case may be):

@)

In respect of the Group’s sales during the Review Period, an
aggregate sales amount of approximately RMB3,136 million
to top 10 customers of Scud Battery and Scud Electronics
and to all customers of Shenzhen Hongde and Dongguan
Hongde, representing approximately 84.1% of the Group's
total sales amount, had been verified to the satisfaction
of the Auditor. The Group had provided and linked all the
information and supporting documents in relation to such
sales amount and the Auditor had received confirmations
from such customers in relation to such sales amount.
The remaining approximately 15.9%, which had not been
verified to the satisfaction of the Auditor, comprises sales
amounts of approximately RMB202 million to all customers
of the Disposed Subsidiaries (representing approximately
5.4% of the Group’s total sales amount) during the Review
Period, approximately RMB377 million to non-top 10
customers of Scud Battery and Scud Electronics (representing
approximately 10.1% of the Group’s total sales amount)
during the Review Period and approximately RMB14 million
to top 10 customers of Scud Battery and Scud Electronics
and to all customers of Shenzhen Hongde and Dongguan
Hongde (representing approximately 0.4% of the Group's
total sales amount) during the Review Period.
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(i) In respect of the Group’s purchases during the Review
Period, an aggregate purchases amount of approximately
RMB1,944 million from top 10 suppliers of Scud Battery
and Scud Electronics and to all suppliers of Shenzhen
Hongde and Dongguan Hongde, representing approximately
69.5% of the Group’s total purchases amount, had been
verified to the satisfaction of the Auditor. The Group had
provided and linked all the information and supporting
documents in relation to such purchases amount and the
Auditor had received confirmations from such suppliers
in relation to such purchases amount. The remaining
approximately 30.5%, which had not been verified to the
satisfaction of the Auditor, comprises purchases amounts
of approximately RMB179 million from all suppliers of the
Disposed Subsidiaries (representing approximately 6.4%
of the Group’s total purchases amount) during the Review
Period and approximately RMB673 million from non-top 10
suppliers of Scud Battery and Scud Electronics (representing
approximately 24.1% of the Group's total purchases
amount) during the Review Period.

RESUMPTION OF TRADING CONDITIONS

As mentioned in the Company’s announcement dated 13 July
2015, the Stock Exchange notified the Company that the following
conditions would apply before the grant of any request by the
Company for the resumption of trading of the shares in the Company:

(i) completion of the investigation of the Matters by Grant
Thornton, disclosure of the findings of such investigation,
the Company having addressed the issues identified in the
investigation and if necessary, further investigation with
appropriate scope;

(i) demonstration to the satisfaction of the Stock Exchange that
the Company has put in place adequate financial reporting
procedures and internal control systems to meet its obligations
under the Listing Rules;

(iii) publication of all outstanding financial results required by the
Listing Rules and the Company having addressed any audit
qualifications; and

(iv) informing the market of all material information.

For further details of the conditions of resumption of trading, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 13 July 2015.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Fang Jin, aged 59, is an executive Director and the Chairman of the
Group, and is a senior economist. Mr. Fang is a member of each of
the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. He is also a co-founder of the Group which was founded
in December 2006.

Mr. Fang is mainly responsible for the Group’s development planning,
operational and corporate investment decision-making and brand
strategy. Mr. Fang has been leading the Board for collective decision-
making for years and has set a very clear direction for SCUD’s product
management and branding. He commenced his career at the age
of 18, and has accumulated over thirty years of experience in the
mobile phone accessories industry and related operation management.
He has very keen discernment and vision on the exploration of
branding strategies and the marketability of new products. Prior to
the establishment of Scud (Fujian) Electronics Company Limited in
1997, Mr. Fang was engaged, as a sole proprietor, in the sale of
communication products and accessories in the PRC. In December
1996, he established Cai Hong Group (Hong Kong) Company Limited
in conjunction with partners including Mr. Lin Chao (and established
Scud Electronics in October 1997). Mr. Fang has received several
awards including:

2003  National Advanced Individual On Projects of End Users’
Satisfaction

2004  Excellent Runners of Technological Private Enterprises in
China

2004  Fujian Top Ten Venture Heroes in the Commercial Sector

2005  China Top Ten Excellent Entrepreneurs in Brand Construction

2005  The Mudell’s World Executive Awards for Achievement in
Business and Economy

2006  Annual Excellent Persons in Fujian Economy

2006  National Excellent Managers of Users' Satisfaction
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Mr. Fang is the Vice Chairman of the Joint Industrial and Commercial
Association of Mawei District in Fuzhou City Economic and
Technological Development Region.

Mr. Fang is the sole director and shareholder of each of Swift Joy
Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company, and
Right Grand Holdings Limited, a shareholder of the Company. As
at 31 December 2017, Mr. Fang was interested in an aggregate of
514,338,000 shares, representing approximately 47.19% of the issued
share capital of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (“SFO").

Guo Quan Zeng, aged 57, is an executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Group, and is an engineer. He is responsible
for the management of the Group’s daily operations. He joined the
Group in July 1997. He had been the manager of the research and
development department, sales department, planning department,
production department and quality control departments of Scud
Electronics, and had been director, vice general manager and vice
president of Scud Electronics. He is very experienced in front-line
management in business development, brand promotion, product
research and development and quality control. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Guo was a lieutenant commander engineer of the PRC
navy mainly responsible for establishing and maintaining wireless
telecommunication systems. Mr. Guo has over thirty years of
experience in the research and development and quality management
in electronic products. Mr. Guo graduated from the Navy Senior
Electronic Engineering School with a bachelor’s degree in radio
telecommunication engineering in 1983.

Mr. Guo is the sole director and shareholder of Cheer View Holdings
Limited, which is a shareholder of the Company. As at 31 December
2017, Mr. Guo was interested in 18,000,000 shares, representing
approximately 1.65% of the issued share capital of the Company
within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.
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Feng Ming Zhu, aged 54, is an executive Director and vice president
of the Group. He is primarily responsible for the development of
the Group's strategy. Mr. Feng holds a Bachelor degree from Anhui
University of Finance and Economics in China. He joined the Group in
March 2007 and served as the director of administration of the Group
until October 2011. He then served as the general manager of SCUD
SMT Business Unit before becoming the vice president of the Group
in April 2013. Mr. Feng is currently a Specialist of Fujian JingXin Think
Tank Industry Research. He was appointed as an executive Director on
25 August 2016. As at 31 December 2017, Mr. Feng did not have any
equity interest in the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Zhang Li, aged 57, was an executive Director since 31 December
2010 and has been redesignated as a non-executive Director since 25
August 2016. Mr. Zhang joined the Group in October 2003 and had
been the deputy general manager of Scud Electronics. Mr. Zhang then
served as the general manager of Scud Electronics until December
2017. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhang had served as manager in
the industrial design department of Fujian Start Network, as manager
of the research and development department, of the accessories
department and of the sales department of Fujian Communications
and Broadcasting Industrial Company. He has more than thirty years of
experience in the telecommunications industry. Mr. Zhang graduated
from the Mechanical Engineering Faculty of Jiangxi University in 1978.
He was granted the qualification of practising as an engineer in 1992
and was granted the qualification of practising as a senior engineer in
1999. As at 31 December 2017, Mr. Zhang did not have any equity
interest in the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.
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Hou Li, aged 59, is a non-executive Director of the Company and a
member of the Resumption Committee of the Company. Mr. Hou is
a senior partner of Dentons Law Offices (Fuzhou). Mr. Hou holds a
Bachelor of Law degree from East China University of Political Science
and Law and an Executive Master of Business Administration degree
from Xiamen University in China. He is a qualified lawyer in China and
has over 20 years of experience in legal and corporate governance
matters. Mr. Hou also engages in several community services and had
once served as member in Commission of Legislative Affairs of Fujian
Province Committee of the Chinese People’s political Consultative
Conference, director in Fujian Province joint-stock enterprises
Association and Fujian Province Securities Association, arbitrator
in Fuzhou Arbitration commission and chairman of Law Office of
Fujian Committee of the Revolutionary Committee of The Chinese
Kuomintang. He was appointed as an executive Director on 25 August
2016. As at 31 December 2017, Mr. Hou did not have any equity
interest in the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Loke Yu, alias Loke Hoi Lam, aged 68, is an independent non-
executive Director and Chairman of each of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Resumption
Committee of the Company, respectively. Dr. Loke has over 41 years
of experience in accounting and auditing for private and public
companies, financial consultancy and corporate management. He
holds a Master of Business Administration degree from the Universiti
Teknologi Malaysia and a Doctor of Business Administration degree
from the University of South Australia. Dr. Loke is a Fellow of The
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants; The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr.
Heng Ja Wei Victor, an independent non-executive Director of the
Company, is his nephew-in-law.
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Dr. Loke currently serves as an independent non-executive director
of the following companies whose shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”): Chiho-Tiande
Group Limited (Stock Code: 976), China Fire Safety Enterprise Group
Limited (Stock Code: 445), China Household Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 692), Matrix Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1005), Tianhe
Chemicals Group Limited (Stock Code: 1619), Tianjin Development
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 882), V1 Group Limited (Stock Code:
82), Forebase International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2310),
Lamtex Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1041), Hang Sang (Siu Po)
International Holding Limited (Stock Code: 3626), China Beidahuang
Industry Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 39), Hong Kong
Resources Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 2882), Zhong
An Real Estate Limited (Stock Code: 672) and Zhenro Properties
Group Limited (Stock Code: 6158). He joined the Company as an
independent non-executive Director on 14 May 2009. As at 31
December 2017, Dr. Loke did not have any equity interest in the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Wang Jing Zhong, aged 61, is an independent non-executive Director
and a member of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Resumption Committee
of the Company, respectively. Mr. Wang is a senior engineer and
graduated from East China University of Science & Technology with
a Bachelor’s degree in chemistry. He has more than fifteen years
of management experience in the battery industry. He had served
as the engineer-in-charge of the household products division in the
Ministry of Light Industries, as deputy department head of the campus
department of the Education Bureau, as the deputy officer-in-charge
of the Household Products Office, and as the secretary general of
China Battery Industry Association. He is currently the executive vice-
president of China Battery Industry Association. Mr. Wang joined the
Company as an independent non-executive Director on 3 December
2006. As at 31 December 2017, Mr. Wang did not have any equity
interest in the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.
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Wang Jian Zhang, aged 72, is an independent non-executive Director
and a member of the Audit Committee and Resumption Committee
of the Company, respectively. Mr. Wang is a senior engineer
and graduated from Xian Military Institute of Telecommunication
Engineering. He has more than twenty-five years of experience in
electronic technology and management. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Wang had served as deputy director of the Promotion Division
of Comprehensive Planning Department under Ministry of Electronics
Industry, director of the Comprehensive Planning and the Investment
Division under Ministry of Mechanical and Electrical Industry, director-
general of the Comprehensive Planning Department under Ministry
of Electronics, and director-general of the Comprehensive Planning
Department under the Ministry of Information Industry. Mr. Wang
joined the Company as an independent non-executive Director on 3
December 2006. As at 31 December 2017, Mr. Wang did not have
any equity interest in the Company within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO.

Heng Ja Wei Victor, aged 40, is an independent non-executive
Director and a member of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Resumption Committee
of the Company, respectively. Mr. Heng is a partner of Morison
Heng, Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Heng holds a Bachelor of
Engineering degree in Electronic Engineering from University of
Warwick in the United Kingdom and a Master of Science degree in
Computer Science from University of London — Imperial College of
Science, Technology and Medicine. He is a member of and holds a
Certified Public Accountant (Practising) certificate issued by The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a Fellow of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He is a nephew-in-
law of Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam, an independent non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Heng serves as an independent non-
executive director of China Fire Safety Enterprise Group Limited (Stock
Code: 445), Best Food Holding Company Limited (Stock Code: 1488),
Lee & Man Chemical Company Limited (Stock Code: 746) and Matrix
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1005) and as company secretary of
China Life Insurance Company Limited (Stock Code: 2628), whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Heng
joined the Company as an independent non-executive Director on 1
September 2016. As at 31 December 2017, Mr. Heng did not have
any equity interest in the Company within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO.
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Yeung Mun Tai (FCCA, CPA), aged 41, is the Company Secretary
of the Company. He is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group and
is responsible for its overall financial and accounting affairs. He is a
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yeung worked as an auditor in an
international accounting firm. He has more than seventeen years of
experience in the accounting field. He has a Bachelor’'s degree in
Business Administration and Accounting. Mr. Yeung joined the Group
in September 2005.

Jiang Zhi Cheng, aged 41, is the human resources director of the
Group. Mr. Jiang is the person primarily in charge of the human
resources system of the Group and has over ten years of experience
in human resources management and operation management. He
is specialized in training, career development, talent management,
performance management, leadership development and organization
development. Mr. Jiang graduated from Xiamen University with
a degree in accounting in 1999 and from Central China Normal
University with a degree in business administration in 2016. Mr.
Jiang is an intermediate economist and grade 2 human resources
professional and currently pursues the executive MBA program
in Northwest University. Mr. Jiang joined the Group in 2002 and
successively served as the human resources supervisor and human
resources manager. In 2006, he was appointed as the human
resources director of the Group.

Zhou Xuan Xiang, aged 48, is the materials director of the Group.
Mr. Zhou is responsible for the Group's layout and development
of supply chain and materials system integration and management
and has nearly twenty years of experience in terms of materials
and management. Mr. Zhou graduated from the Department of
Business Administration of Chengdu University with a degree in
business administration in 1992. Mr. Zhou joined the Group in
2004 and successively served as the supervisor and deputy manager
of procurement department. In 2006, he was appointed as the
materials director of the Group. Before joining the Group, Mr.
Zhou served as the director of Chengdu Office of Sichuan Foguang
Pharmaceutical Factory and person in charge of materials division
of Top Victory Electronics (Fujian) Company Limited. Mr. Zhou has
successively accepted training of Material Requirement Planning (MRP),
ISO9000, I1ISO14000 and MBA remote education of Peking University;
Carnegie Motivational Leadership training and Carnegie Director of
Administration training, and has extensive experience in materials
management.
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Chen Yao Shu, aged 39, is the information management director
of the Group. He is responsible for the planning and integration of
the Group’s internal information system and information resources
and has over ten years of experience in the field of information
system of manufacturing industry. Mr. Chen graduated from Hubei
Industry Technology Institute with a degree in architectural design
in 2000 and from Dalian University of Technology with a degree
in business administration in 2014. Mr. Chen joined the Group in
2002 and successively served as the network supervisor, deputy
manager of information management department and manager of
information management department. In 2008, he was appointed
as the information management director of the Group. A number of
informatization projects led by Mr. Chen were selected as excellent
cases by professional institutions. He was awarded the titles including
National Excellent Information Director by professional institutions in
2007, 2009 and 2014.

Xue Chun Mu, aged 49, is the risk management director of the
Group. He is responsible for design of internal control and risk
management procedures and systems and guidance and supervision
of the execution thereof, including monitoring and supervising
the effectiveness of procedures and systems and participating in
the development of risk countermeasures. Mr. Xue has over ten
years of experience in internal control and risk management. He
graduated from Jimei Finance and Economics College with a degree
in accounting education in 1990 and then pursued a MBA program
in European University of Ireland and graduated therefrom. Mr. Xue
is an accountant, International Certified Senior Public Accountant,
International Certified Management Accountant, Internal Control Risk
Manager, Senior International Finance Manager and Certified Senior
Enterprise Risk Manager. Mr. Xue successively served as the manager
of Management Accounting Department and manager of Investment
Management Department of the Group from 2002 to 2004. He re-
joined the Group in 2009 and served as the audit director. In 2016,
he was appointed as the risk management director of the Group.
Before joining the Group, Mr. Xue served as an audit executive in
the Education Bureau, head of Management Accounting Department,
manager of Cost Management Department, manager of Finance
Department and finance control director.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of SCUD
Group Limited (the”Company” and, together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) presents its annual report and audited consolidated financial
statements for the financial year from 1 January 2014 to 31 December
2014 (“Review Period”).

The discussions in the “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management
Discussion and Analysis” and “Corporate Governance Report” sections
of this annual report form part of the discussions of this directors’
report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its major subsidiaries are set out in Note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 96 to 97.

The Board has decided not to recommend any final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2014 to preserve cash for the working
capital requirement of the business.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during 2014 in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during 2014 in the share capital are set out
in Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the Review
Period amounted to approximately RMB60,000.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
as at 31 December 2014 comprised the retained earnings, other
reserves and share premium of approximately RMB884.9 million (2013:
RMB836.1 million).

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the Review Period and up to the
date of this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Fang lJin (Chairman)

Guo Quan Zeng (Chief Executive Officer)

Feng Meng Zhu (appointed with effect from 25 August 2016)
Huang Yan (resigned with effect from 25 August 2016)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Zhang Li (appointed as an Executive Director on 31 December 2010
and redesignated as a Non-executive Director with effect from
25 August 2016)

Hou Li (appointed with effect from 25 August 2016)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Loke Yu

Wang Jing Zhong

Wang Jian Zhang

Heng Ja Wei Victor (appointed with effect from 1 September 2016)

According to Article 87(1) of the articles of association of the
Company, at each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
at an annual general meeting at least once every three years. Mr.
Fang Jin, Mr. Guo Quan Zeng, Mr. Feng Meng Zhu, Mr. Zhang Li, Mr.
Hou Li, Dr. Loke Yu, Mr. Wang Jing Zhong, Mr. Wang Jian Zhang and
Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. Mr. Fang Jin, Mr. Guo Quan Zeng, Mr. Feng
Meng Zhu, Mr. Zhang Li, Mr. Hou Li, Dr. Loke Yu, Mr. Wang lJing
Zhong, Mr. Wang Jian Zhang and Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor, all being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election in the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company. There are no service contracts
for any of the Directors who are nominated for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting which are not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2014, the relevant interests or short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(“SFO"), which are required to be notified to the Company and The
Hong Kong Stock Exchange Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO)) or were required pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein or were
required, pursuant to the relevant provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
relating to securities transactions by Directors to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

Long positions (ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company):

EERBSTBRAEZROERER

S A
R

R2014F12A31H » EERZRTHRAEBRAAT
SEFMAEREE(TERBEBEMNETIEZTHF K
HEIGEM([FEH RBEE ) EXVE) Z Em&km -
HERD REFPEFAREESKBEGDIEXV
HEIRSDBBUNARRIRBBBHAZRZBRA
BB PT ) MRS sk B (B IR IRIEE H X
EEOIBBIEXEIERRARBNRSESIAR) » R
BRERIEES RS EAEISHEEF 2 B LA
NIRBHRZFAES LMAR( EWAER ] BHES
BITEAFR S ZIEAMARA R KRB ZFTiEE 2 H
RRERSSUAR T ¢

HR(AQAFAESREHFIEBITZEER):

Percentage of
the issued

Number of share capital
ordinary shares of the Company
Number of subject (Note 3)
issued ordinary to options granted HAEDTERIT
Name of Director Capacity shares held FIRHBRESR RA&EZBEDL
EEHME =27} e RITEEREE ZBEREAE (PfF3E3)
Fang Jin Corporate interest (Note 1) 507,948,000 46.60%
okl N (MEE)
Beneficial interest 5,300,000 0.49%
EniEm
Guo Quan Zeng Corporate interest (Note 2) 18,000,000 1.65%
SRR T Al (M)
Beneficial interest 5,300,000 0.49%
EnfEn
Huang Yan (Note 4) Beneficial interest 5,300,000 0.49%
w=A(PIFES) Enn
Zhang Li Beneficial interest 5,300,000 0.49%

RER

Bt
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Note 1:  This figure represents (i) 403,770,000 shares directly held

by Swift Joy Holdings Limited and (ii) 104,178,000 shares
directly held by Right Grand Holdings Limited, both of
which are companies with their entire issued share capital
held by Mr. Fang Jin.

Note 2:  These shares are directly held by Cheer View Holdings

Limited, whose entire issued share capital is held by Mr.
Guo Quan Zeng.

Note 3:  We have applied the number of shares of the Company in

issue as at 31 December 2014, i.e. 1,090,001,246 Shares,
when calculating this percentage.

Note 4: Huang Yan resigned as Executive Director of the Company

with effect from 25 August 2016

Save as disclosed above and as set out in this section headed “Share
Options” below, none of the Directors or chief executives or their
close associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as at 31 December 2014.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a shareholders’ resolution passed on 3 December 2006
for the primary purpose of rewarding eligible participants who have
contributed to the Group and encouraging eligible participants
to work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its
shares for the Company and its shareholders as a whole. Eligible
participants include directors and employees of the Group, advisors,
consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers,
business partners, joint venture business partners, promoters or
service providers of the Company whom the board of directors of the
Group considers to have contributed or will contribute to the Group.
Under the Scheme, the board of directors of the Company may grant
options to eligible employees, including directors of the Company and
its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company. The Scheme
was adopted for a period of 10 years expiring on 2 December 2016
and the Company by ordinary resolution in general meeting or the
board of directors of the Company may at any time terminate the
Scheme without prejudice to the options granted during the life
of the Scheme and which remain unexpired immediately prior to
such termination. The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed
86,000,000 Shares, representing approximately 7.89% of the entire
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this annual
report, without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The
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number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of which options
granted and may be granted to any individual in any 12-month
period is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue, without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of which
options granted and may be granted to a substantial shareholder
or an Independent Non-executive Director or any of their respective
associates representing in aggregate over 0.1% the Company'’s share
capital on the date of such grant or with an aggregate value in excess
of HK$5,000,000 must be approved in advance by resolution of the
Company's shareholders (voting by way of poll). Subject to the terms
of the Scheme, an offer of grant of an option will remain open for
acceptance by the eligible participant for 28 days from the date of
the offer. Upon the grant of an option a consideration of HK$1 is
payable and the relevant option may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of the Scheme at any time during the exercise period to
be determined by the Board, which shall not exceed 10 years. The
exercise price of the options shall be determined by the board of
directors of the Company in its absolute discretion but will in any
event not be less than the higher of:—

(1) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of
an offer of an option by the Company (which must be a business
day);

(2) the average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
5 preceding business days of the day of the offer of an option;
and

(3) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

On 19 June 2014, the Company offered to grant share options to
a number of eligible participants to subscribe for up to 80,000,000
shares with nominal value of HK$0.10 each in the issued share capital
of the Company pursuant to the Scheme. Among the 80,000,000
share options, 21,200,000 share options were granted to the
executive Directors of the Company.
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The following table sets out the details of the share options under the
Scheme during the Review Period:

Outstanding

as of

1.1.2014

Exercise price 120145

Name Date of grant HK$ 1818
£ RitAH fIEE(ER) H AT

Category I: Directors, chief executive and substantial shareholder and their respective associates

Bhl- EZ BRTBARRIERREREZAZHEAL

Fang Jin kA 19.6.2014 0.94 -
Guo Quan Zeng EiRs 19.6.2014 0.94 -
Huang Yan (Note ) =#E(Fif3E) 19.6.2014 0.94 -
Zhang Li R 19.6.2014 0.94 -

EEH) -

Total directors

TRV EERAR R EE T 2 BRI

Percentage of
the total issued
share capital of
the Company as

Category II: Employees working under continuous contracts (as defined in the Employment Ordinance) other than directors

A= RESI RERRRASCTREECAREZER

Senior management  RREEE 19.6.2014 0.94 -

Fig Bt -

Total of all categories

Note:

(i)  Huang Yan resigned as an executive Director with effect from 25
August 2016.

All share options granted can be exercised from 19 June 2014 to
18 June 2017 (both dates inclusive), and are not subject to any
vesting period. The exercise price is determined by the Directors of
the Company and is fixed at HK$0.94 per share. The closing price of
the shares on the date immediately before the grant of these share
options, i.e. 18 June 2014, was HK$0.95. None of the share options
was cancelled or lapsed during the Review Period.

The Company recognised the total expense of RMB14,811,000 (2013:
Nil) for the Review Period in relation to share options granted by
the Company. Please refer to Note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements for detail.
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Outstanding  at 31.12.2014
as of HARRR
Granted Exercised 31.12.2014 2014%
during during #2014% 128318
the period the period 128318 BRITRE
RERRY RER{TE AR  BEZESM
5,300,000 - 5,300,000 0.49%
5,300,000 - 5,300,000 0.49%
5,300,000 - 5,300,000 0.49%
5,300,000 - 5,300,000 0.49%
21,200,000 - 21,200,000 1.94%
58,800,000 - 58,800,000 5.39%
80,000,000 - 80,000,000 7.34%
PEE -
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ interests and short positions in shares” and “Share
Options”, at no time during the year ended 31 December 2014 was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or its holding company or its
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate
and none of the Directors, their spouses or children under the age of
18, had any rights to subscribe for securities of the Company, or had
exercised any such rights.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2014, the following persons (other than directors
or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions (Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company):

Capacity
514

Name of shareholder

RREH

Beneficial owner
EmEAA

Swift Joy Holdings Limited
AR IERR AR A A

Beneficial owner
EREAA

Right Grand Holdings Limited
ERERBRAR

Beneficial owner

BmBEBA

Value Partners China
Greenchip Fund Limited

Value Partners Group Limited

BEEEERAT

Corporate Interest
NEER

ESWRBRONES 2ER

RIEERERTTRABZRDES AR | —8 K&
[ ] — AT EIN - AQRIHMEB AR R R
B A aEl sk E R KB AR REE2014F12A31H
IFFERETLEMNZH  BUEARRESA SR
W B AR A ) s A 1] EAth v B 2 AR 15 K 1B 25 DA E ERL R
W NEBEE  BEZEBITNAEUN T2 T
BEMARBARRBSF ZEFRITEIM A BE
o

FERER

20145128318 * UM TAL(WIEARARESR
ERTBABIRARR 2RO RABRGRHEER
BEFRBEBROEXVEFE2R3D H 2 EXARAK
RAWE - WBTLARARREESF RS KHIE
336IKF B Z itk S sk R -

HR(RQAFSREEI0BTZERR):

Percentage of the
issued share capital
of the Company as at

Number of issued 31 December 2014

ordinary shares/ (Note 1)
underlying A2014%F

shares held 12A31HMEEA QT
FFERITEER ERITRABOL
HEROEE (PHFEET)
403,770,000 37.04%
104,178,000 9.56%
63,106,000 5.79%
63,990,000 5.87%
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Note 1:  We have applied the number of shares of the Company in

issue as at 31 December 2014, i.e. 1,090,001,246 Shares,
when calculating this percentage.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, the Company
had not been notified by any persons (other than directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of the Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Report for the corporate governance practice adopted by the
Company is set out on pages 65 to 88 of this annual report.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the total remuneration of the
Directors and the five highest paid employees are set out in Note 10
to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE, NOMINATION COMMITTEE
AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (”Audit
Committee”), a nomination committee (“Nomination Committee”)
and a remuneration committee (“Remuneration Committee”).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in
considering how the Board should apply financial reporting and
internal control principles and for maintaining an appropriate
relationship with the Company’s independent auditor. As at 31
December 2014, the Audit Committee consisted of three members
who were Dr. Loke Yu (Chairman), Mr. Wang Jing Zhong and Mr.
Wang Jian Zhang.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Nomination Committee is to identify, screen
and recommend to the Board appropriate candidates to serve as
Directors of the Company, to oversee the process for evaluating
the performance of the Board and to develop, recommend to the
Board and monitor nomination guidelines for the Company. As at
31 December 2014, the Nomination Committee consisted of three
members who were Dr. Loke Yu (Chairman), Mr. Fang Jin and Mr.
Wang Jing Zhong.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Remuneration Committee is to assist the Board
in determining the policy and structure for the remuneration of
executive Directors, evaluating the performance of executive Directors,
reviewing incentive schemes and Directors’ service contracts and fixing
the remuneration packages for all directors and senior management.
As at 31 December 2014, the Remuneration Committee consisted of
three members who were Dr. Loke Yu (Chairman), Mr. Fang Jin and
Mr. Wang Jing Zhong.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Although there are no restrictions over the grant of pre-emptive rights
under the laws of Cayman Islands, no pre-emptive rights have been
granted under the articles of association of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The top five customers and the largest customer of the Group
represented approximately 59% and approximately 28% of the
Group's total sales of the Review Period, respectively. The top
five suppliers and the largest supplier of the Group represented
approximately 44% and approximately 12% of the Group's total
purchases of the Review Period, respectively.

At no time during the Review Period did a Director, a close associate
of a Director or (to the knowledge of the Directors) a shareholder of
the Company which owns 5% or more of the issued share capital of
the Company has any interest in the top five customers and suppliers
of the Group.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to article 167 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
every Director of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he/she
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of his/her duties in his/
her offices or trusts provided that this indemnity shall not extend to
any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to
the relevant Director. Such permitted indemnity provision was in force
during the Review Period and remained in force as at the date of this
report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Review Period, the Group had the following connected
and continuing connected transactions, certain details of which are
set out below in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

The Company has compiled with the disclosure requirements in
relation to such transactions in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The name of, and the relationship with, the parties connected with
the Company are as follows:

BEFFRERX

REANREHMERARE67E - AARGRES
AREERAEBUBTERBAZRAMRIAESL
BFAHRR BR - WE - BX BERAX B
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B Esm
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Name Relationship
=z BE
Fang Jin (“Mr. Fang”) Director and controlling shareholder of the Company
Fe(HEE]D) EEFARTNERRE
Guo Quan Zeng (“Mr. Guo") Director
BRIG(THBEED 55
Scud Electronics Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary indirectly held by the
RERET Company with Mr. Fang being common director
RER(BR)EFERLA - ARERRKRESFNAARMELZENE QA
Scud Stock Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd., a company with Mr. Fang and Mr. Guo being
FERRAZ (7 common directors, and who has shareholding interest in this company as to 67%

Scud Battery
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and 3%, respectively
BERERROBERAG - FRERDEERLRAEEZNHAF
67 % k3% AR &

- BAREAZ AR

Scud Battery Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary indirectly held by the Company with
Mr. Fang being common director

REBREDBRAR  FTAESHAEENARABEZENBRF
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(A) Lease agreements with Scud Stock

On 10 December 2013, Scud Electronics (as lessee) and Scud
Stock (as lessor) entered into a lease agreement (the “First Lease
Agreement”) in respect of the lease of the premises (the “First
Premises”) located at land lot numbers 39-2 and 44-2, Kuai
An Extension Area, Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province,
PRC comprising (i) 4 blocks of factories with a construction
area of approximately 40,627.68 square metres, rental area
of approximately 23,156 square metres; (ii) 1 office building
with a construction area of approximately 12,852.26 square
metres, rental area of approximately 6,847 square metres; and
(iii) 1 staff dormitory with construction area of approximately
19,601.76 square metres, rental area of approximately 9,120
square metres. The First Premises were leased for use as factory,
office for administration use for the Group and staff dormitory
for the employees of the Group. The term of the lease was from
1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016. The annual rental was
RMB8,543,928 and payable in cash on a monthly basis.

On 10 December 2013, Scud Battery (as lessee) and Scud Stock
(as lessor) entered into a lease agreement (the “Second Lease
Agreement”) in respect of the lease of the premises (the “Second
Premises”) located at land lot numbers 39-2 and 44-2, Kuai
An Extension Area, Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province,
PRC comprising (i) 4 blocks of factories with a construction
area of approximately 40,627.68 square metres, rental area of
approximately 17,471 square metres; (i) 1 office building with
a construction area of approximately 12,852.26 square metres,
rental area of approximately 3,805 square metres; and (iii) 1 staff
dormitory with construction area of approximately 19,601.76
square metres, rental area of approximately 6,680 square metres.
The Second Premises were leased for use as factory, office for
administration use for the Group and staff dormitory for the
employees of the Group. The term of the lease was from 1
January 2014 to 31 December 2016. The annual rental was
RMB5,908,128 and payable in cash on a monthly basis.

Further details of the First Lease Agreement and the Second
Lease Agreement are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 10 December 2013.

(A) EERERRKRAME LWEERR

72013128108  REBREF(HEAFEHEA)
HRERBG(EALBAAN)RURPRERE
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The table below sets out the annual caps for the aggregate
rental payable by Scud Electronics and Scud Battery to Scud
Stock under the First Lease Agreement and the Second Lease
Agreement:

Annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2014
HZE2014F12A31HIEFEZFE LR

Annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2015
BE2015F 12831 BIEFEZFE LR

Annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE2016F12A31BIEFEZFE LR

The actual amounts incurred for the above continuing connected
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2014 was
RMB14,452,056.

As at 10 December 2013, Scud Stock was owned as to 67%
by Mr. Fang and 3% by Mr. Guo, respectively. Both Mr. Fang
and Mr. Guo are executive Directors of the Company and Mr.
Fang is a controlling shareholder of the Company. Scud Stock
is an associate of Mr. Fang and thus a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules. Therefore, the above
transactions constituted continuing connected transactions of the
Company.

TRENREREFMREBRECRES —0
HE L E D BEBRRARERR D EN
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The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions set out herein,
and have confirmed that, during the year ended 31 December
2014, such transactions were entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or better to the Group than
terms available to or from independent third parties; and

(3) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The independent auditor of the Company has also confirmed
that in relation to the above continuing connected transactions
Scud Stock:—

(1) nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
not been approved by the Board;

(2) nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe
that the transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions; and

RAN/N
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(3) with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the
continuing connected transactions, nothing has come to
its attention that causes it to believe that the continuing
connected transactions have exceeded the annual Cap as set
by the Company.

Further details of the transactions and relationships of
the connected parties are also set out in Note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

(B) Sale and purchase of equity interests in Shenzhen

58

Hongde and Shenzhen Nalon and subsequent
termination

On 13 June 2014, Scud Electronics entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (“First SPA”) with Mr. Fang in relation to
the sale by Scud Electronics to Mr. Fang 70% equity interests in
Shenzhen Nalon Battery Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Nalon”) and 60%
equity interests in Shenzhen Hongde Battery Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen
Hongde”), both being members of the Group primarily engaged
in the production of lithium-ion bare battery cells, for a total
consideration of RMB105,000,000.

The transaction was entered into with a view to facilitate the
Group to focus its resources on other business segments which
have a higher growth potential and improving the Group’s
operating results in light of (i) a drop of the Group’s sale of
bare battery cells in recent years, (ii) the loss-making status
(iii) the
industry landscape remaining competitive, and (iv) the Group’s

of Shenzhen Nalon and Shenzhen Hongde in 2013,

repositioning of its target customers to domestic mid- to high-
end phone manufacturers.

However, as announced in the Company’s announcement dated
24 October 2014, Scud Electronics had not secured all relevant
consents and approvals for completion of the transactions under
the First SPA. Scud Electronics and Mr. Fang therefore agreed to
terminate the First SPA.

(B)
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(C) Sale and purchase of equity interests in Hongde New
Energy

On 5 December 2014, Shenzhen Hongde, an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Mr. Fang pursuant to which Shenzhen
Hongde agreed to sell, and Mr. Fang agreed to purchase, for a
total consideration of RMB6,000,000, the entire equity interests
in Hongde New Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (“Hongde New
Energy”). Hongde New Energy is principally engaged in the
research and development, production and sale of lithium-ion

bare battery cells.

The disposal was part of the Group’s reorganization of the group
of companies headed by Shenzhen Hongde following termination
of the First SPA. Given Hongde New Energy was then loss
making and was expected to require further funding to improve
its business, the disposal was expected to reduce the Group's
operating loss, thereby improving its results of performance and
working capital position. The disposal of Hongde New Energy
completed on 19 December 2014 as announced by the Company
on the same date.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the Review Period, the Group entered into certain transactions
with parties regarded as “related parties” under the applicable
accounting principles. Details of the related party transactions
undertaken in the normal course of business are set out in Note 35 to
the consolidated financial statements. The related party transactions
which are also non-exempted connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
are disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions and
Continuing Connected Transactions” above.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions and
Continuing Connected Transactions” above and in Note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements, no other contracts of significance
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries were entered into or existed
during the Review Period.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS EENBESEEMNES

None of the Directors had
business which competed or

engaged in or were interested in any  WEIEHRE - BIEEEHEEK A RLEAEEER
was likely to compete, either directly or B S S 2 T EENNE hiEE R -

indirectly, with the business of the Group during the Review Period.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION EENSEET

Set out below are changes in

information of Directors of the Company THEBE FFBAIE13.51B()EHRF AR T E B

pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules: Gl

Name of director

EEHR

Dr. Loke Yu
lZisyuN

Mr. Wang Jing Zhong
FaBREE

Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor
TRR#EF -

60

Details of change

SEFE

Appointed as an independent non-executive director of Tianhe Chemicals Group Limited (Stock
Code: 1619) on 31 May 2014
R2014F5 A3 ABZERRAILTEERR AR (BN : 1619) 2 BUIERITES

Appointed as an independent non-executive director of Kaisa Health Group Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 876) on 20 June 2014 and resigned with effect from 11 January 2017

201456 20 AR EREREREEBITERAR QA (RO - 876) 2B IFHITES - B
%2 BHER 201741 A 118 £k

Appointed as an independent non-executive director of Lamtex Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
1041) on 28 July 2015
2015457 A28 AEZ ERMEEIAR AR (IG5 - 1041) 2 BIIFNITES

Appointed as an independent non-executive director of Forebase International Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 2310) on 18 April 2016
M2016F4 A 18ABZERREBBZERAR AR (BN : 2310) 2B IFMITESE

Appointed as an independent non-executive director of Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding
Company Limited (Stock Code: 3626) on 26 April 2016
R20165F4 26 HEZ EAELE KR ENEBR QB (BRMDRIE - 3626) 2B IFATES

Appointed as an independent non-executive director of Hong Kong Resources Holdings
Company Limited (Stock Code: 2882) on 31 May 2017
R2017F5 A3V HEZEATBERIERER AR (RN - 2882) Z WU IFHNITES

Appointed as an independent non-executive director of Zhenro Properties Group Limited (Stock
Code: 6158) on 15 December 2017
R2017F 12 AR EZERTRMESEER AR (MR - 6158) ZBIIFNTES

Resigned as the company secretary and authorised representative of Minth Group Limited (Stock
Code: 425) on 8 February 2018
R20185F2 B8 ABHEREERBE AR AR (RNMREE : 425) 2 ARAIME REERE

Resigned as an independent non-executive director of Winfair Investment Company Limited (Stock
Code: 287) on 3 April 2018
R20185F4 A3ABHERBEEZAR AR (RMNRIE - 287) 2 BUINITEF

Resigned as an independent non-executive director of Tianneng Power International Limited (Stock
Code: 819) on 6 June 2015
72201556 B6 RBHEREEE) HEIR AR AR (RS 819) 2 B IFANTESE

Resigned as an independent non-executive director of Daohe Global Group Limited (Stock Code:
915) on 11 January 2017
20171 B BEHEBMIRIREB AR AR (RO  915) 2 BIUIFMITES
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DIRECTORS’
SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the transactions referred to in the section “Connected

INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF

Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions” above and in
Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements, no Director or entity
connected with a Director (within the meaning of section 486 of the
Companies Ordinance) had any direct or indirect material interests in
any transaction, arrangement or contracts of significance to which
the Company, its subsidiaries, its holding Company or its fellow
subsidiaries was a party subsisting during or at the end of the Review
Period.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed interest in any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Review Period.

PLACING OF SHARES AND TOP-UP
SUBSCRIPTION UNDER GENERAL MANDATE

On 2 December 2014, Right Grand Holdings Limited (“Right Grand”),
which is wholly-owned by Mr. Fang Jin, an executive Director,
chairman and controlling shareholder of the Company, entered into
a placing agreement (“Placing Agreement”) with the Company and
Oriental Patron Securities Limited (the “Placing Agent”). Pursuant to
the Placing Agreement, the Placing Agent agreed to act as placing
agent for Right Grand to procure, on a best effort basis, purchasers
to purchase 58,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the share
capital of the Company (“Shares”) held by Right Grand at the placing
price of HK$1.06 per share (“Placing”), representing a discount of
approximately 7.8% to the closing price of HK$1.15 per Share traded
on the Stock Exchange on the date of the Placing Agreement. The
58,000,000 Shares were placed to Value Partners China Greenchip
Fund Ltd. and Value Partners Intelligent Funds — JA-VP China New
Century Fund, both of whom are independent third parties.

EERERGYzER
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On the same date, Right Grand and the Company entered into a
subscription agreement, pursuant to which Right Grand conditionally
agreed to subscribe for and the Company conditionally agreed to
issue under general mandate 58,000,000 Shares, with aggregate
nominal value of HK$5,800,000, at the subscription price of HK$1.06
each (which is equivalent to the placing price before taking into
account the expenses of the Placing). After taking into account the
expenses of the Placing, the net price of each Share so subscribed
was approximately HK$1.02. The net proceeds from the subscription
by Right Grand were intended to be applied towards expansion in the
Group’s production capacity, as well as general corporate purpose
of the Group. As of the date of this annual report, approximately
HK$59,000,000, representing 100% of the net proceeds raised
from the subscription, was utilised for the expansion in the Group'’s
production capacity.

The Directors considered that the Placing and the top-up subscription
offered a good opportunity to raise additional funds to strengthen the
financial position and broaden the capital base of the Group so as to
facilitate its future development.

Please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 2 December and
15 December 2014 for further details of the Placing and the top-up
subscription mentioned in the preceding paragraphs.

PENSION SCHEME

The Company participates in a mandatory provident fund scheme,
which was registered under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Ordinance”), for all its employees
in Hong Kong. The scheme is a defined contribution scheme and is
funded by contributions from employer and employees in accordance
with the provisions of the MPF Ordinance. No forfeited contribution
may be used by the employer to reduce the contribution payable in
the future years.

Furthermore, the employees of the Group in the PRC are members
of respective state-managed defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes operated by the local governments. The employers and the
employees are obliged to make contributions at a certain percentage
of the payroll under rules of the schemes.

Details of the pension scheme contributions of the Group for the year

ended 31 December 2014 are set out in Note 4(n) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management or administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the Review Period.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group values its employees and provides competitive
remuneration package to attract and motivate its employees. The
Group regularly reviews the remuneration package of its employees
and makes necessary adjustments to conform to market standard. The
Group also provides regular training to its employees for their career
development.

The Group values the views and opinions of its customers and
regularly communicate with them in order to obtain feedback and
opinions and understand their business needs and demands.

The Group has developed long-term and good relationships with
its suppliers. The relevant departments of the Group work closely
together to ensure that the procurement process is conducted in an
open, fair and just manner.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

To the best knowledge of the Directors, save as otherwise disclosed
in this annual report, during the Review Period there was no material
non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the Group
that had a significant impact on the business and operations of the
Group.

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence, and the
Company considers such directors to be independent in accordance
with each and every guideline set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

Moore Stephens Certified Public Accountants resigned as the auditor
of the Company with effect from 2 April 2015 and BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants was appointed as the auditor of the
Company with effect from 25 August 2016.

EEEH

WEIREEARD + A A A 5T 7 SR A A B A
ERHEBEMEL EELTHAHRE TS
B -

HES - EFRHEH2@E

AEEEREELRFEABRF IOFHMGTE AR
SIFHHERE - AEBEERBRIRE ZFHFWTE -
WHERVEZRHE  UNEMSERE - REETTA
HEBREBEERE 2 ERE -

AEEERATPMBEREZ  YEMEFER
MABGERENRES LA TREEZEBELR

%‘_

il

AEERBEHEL T RERFOBE - REEME
REFREAFE  UEREAR  AFRALENT
NETIRBER ©

&P ERRA

BEFEMA BAFEREXEREEN  RNOE
HE - AREYERSEROAKEXBLEER
BEAFENERERRBRD -

BY B0z FERR
ARFEMEEBUHATEFNFEEBLHNR
RE AXTRA R LTRAEIEFIIEE
3l EHEFHABIAL -

= EEm
BEZEGEIBEH AR A R B IR A %A
E2015F4A2BBEM  MEBYEERSTME
EETARAREZ T AKNRR ZIXEED © B2016%F8
A25BHEARL

63



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREBBRAF

ANNUAL REPORT %%k 2014

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEWRE

SUFFICIENT PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on public information and to the knowledge of the Directors,
as at the date of this report, the Company has maintained sufficient
public float as required under the Listing Rules.

By the order of the Board

)

FANG JIN
Chairman

30 April 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

SCUD Group Limited (the “Company”) together with its subsidiaries,
(the “Group”) is committed to maintaining and ensuring a high level
of corporate governance standards and continuously reviews and
improves the Group’s corporate governance and internal controls
practices. Save as otherwise specified, set out below are the principles
of corporate governance as adopted by the Company during the
financial year from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2014 (the “Review
Period”). The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Corporate Governance Code”) in
Appendix 14 of The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”). The Company
complied with all the applicable code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code during the Review Period.

ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER (“CEO")

During the Review Period, Mr. Fang Jin served as the Chairman of
the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of the Company and
was responsible for leading the Board in establishing and monitoring
the implementation of strategies and plans to create values for
shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”). Mr. Guo Quan
Zeng served as the President of the Group and was responsible for
managing the overall business operations of the Group, proposing
strategies to the Board and the effective implementation of the
strategies and policies adopted by the Board, effectively carrying out
the role of a Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ").

Save for their business relationships as a result of their respective
directorships and positions and shareholding interests in the Company
and Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd., there are no financial, business,
family or other material or relevant relationships between the
Chairman and the CEO.
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THE BOARD

As of 31 December 2014, there were seven members on the Board,
which were the Chairman, three other executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs”), whose names
are shown in the table on page 73. The INEDs are considered by
the Board to be independent of the management and free of any
relationship that could materially interfere with the exercise of their
independent judgments. The Board considered that each of the INEDs
brings his own relevant expertise to the Board and its deliberations.
The term of appointment of each of the INEDs (namely, Dr. Loke
Yu, Mr. Wang Jing Zhong and Mr. Wang Jian Zhang) is one year
from 14 May 2014 (the date of the Company’s annual general
meeting held in 2014) until the date of upcoming annual general
meeting, and can be terminated by the Company or the INED with
at least 3 months written notice. Each of the INEDs confirmed
their respective independence to the Group. Save for the Directors’
business relationships as a result of their respective directorships in
the Company and save as disclosed in this annual report, there are no
financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationships
among members of the Board and they are independent from each
other. The Board met regularly during the Review Period on an ad
hoc basis as required by business needs. The Board’s primary purpose
is to set and review the overall strategic development of the Group
and to oversee the achievement of its business plans to enhance
Shareholders’ value. Daily operational decisions are delegated to
the Executive Directors and the senior management. Such Board
meetings involve the active participation, either in person or through
other electronic means of communication, of a majority of Directors.
During the Review Period, the Board met 11 times and the Directors’
attendance record is shown in the table on page 73.

In advance of the Board meetings, appropriate notices, meeting
agenda and other relevant information were given to all Directors. All
Directors are consulted to include additional matters in the agenda for
Board meetings. Draft and final versions of the Board meeting minutes
were sent to all Directors for their comment and records respectively.
The original minutes of Board meetings are kept by the company
secretary of the Company and such minutes are open for inspection
at any reasonable time on reasonable prior notice by any Director. The
Company has put in place appropriate insurance cover in respect of
Directors’ liability.
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The Company’s overall management is vested in its Board which
accepts that it is ultimately accountable and responsible for the
performance and affairs of the Group. The Board'’s role is to provide
entrepreneurial leadership, set the Company’s strategic aims and the
Company’s values and standards, and to ensure that its obligations
to its stakeholders and others are understood and met. To facilitate
the operations, the Board has established a schedule of matters
reserved for its approval. The specific responsibilities reserved for the
Board include (1) setting the Group's strategies and dividend policy;
(2) reviewing operational and financial performance; (3) approving
major investments and divestments; (4) reviewing risk management
and internal control system of the Group; (5) ensuring appropriate
management development and succession plans in place; (6)
approving appointments of Directors and other senior executives; (7)
approving corporate social responsibility policies; (8) ensuring effective
communication with shareholders and (9) other significant operational
and financial matters. The day-to-day management, administration
and operation of the Group are delegated to the management.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company. Directors are continually updated with regulatory
and governance developments. The Company provides all members
of the Board with monthly updates on the Company’s performance,
position and prospects. Directors are encouraged to participate
in continuous professional development courses and seminars to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills including updated
laws and regulations applicable to the Company and its Directors
as well as any amendments thereto. During the Review Period, the
Company provided regular updates to the Directors on material
changes to regulatory requirements applicable to the Directors
and the Company on a timely basis and on the latest business
development of the Company. The Directors confirmed that
they have complied with code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate
Governance Code on directors’ training. During the Review Period,
Mr. Fang Jin, Mr. Guo Quan Zeng, Mr. Zhang Li, Ms. Huang Yan,
Mr. Wang Jing Zhong and Mr. Wang Jian Zhang participated in
continuous professional development by attending seminars/in-house
briefing/reading materials to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills in areas related to their roles, functions and duties of Directors
such as corporate governance and regulatory updates. Dr. Loke Yu,
as an independent director of other listed issuers, also attended
various directors’ training seminars arranged by various organisations
including the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and Hong Kong Institute of Directors during the Review Period. On a
continuing basis, Directors are encouraged to keep up to date on all
matters relevant to the Group and attend briefings and seminars as
appropriate.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee ("Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference as suggested under
the code and recommended best practices under the Corporate
Governance Code and adopted with reference to “A Guide for
Effective Audit Committees” published by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants in February 2002. As at 31 December
2014, the Audit Committee comprised three INEDs who were Dr. Loke
Yu, Mr. Wang Jing Zhong and Mr. Wang Jian Zhang. The chairman
of the Audit Committee was Dr. Loke Yu. Each committee member
can bring to the Audit Committee his valuable experience in reviewing
financial statements and evaluating significant control and financial
issues of the Group who among themselves possess a wealth of
management experience in the accounting profession or commercial
sectors. The Audit Committee was established on 3 December 2006
and held 2 meetings during the Review Period and the relevant
Director’s attendance is shown on page 73.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

(i) to review the half-year and annual financial statements of the
Group before they are submitted to the Board for approval;

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of its resignation or dismissal
of that auditor;

(iii) to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

(iv) to review the Group’s financial controls, internal controls and risk
management systems and assess the effectiveness of the Group’s

internal control system;

(v) to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

(vi) to review and monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit
function;
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(vii)

to review the arrangements which the employees of the
Company can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters; and

(viii) to review the terms and conditions of ongoing connected

transactions of the Group.

During the Review Period, the Audit Committee carried out the

following work:

(A) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(B)

(@)

The Audit Committee met with the Chief Financial Officer and
other senior management of the Group to review the interim
report of the Group prior to recommending the financial
statements to the Board for approval. The Audit Committee
has considered and discussed the reports with the management
and external auditors, with a view of ensuring that the Group's
condensed consolidated financial statements were prepared in
accordance with the International Accounting Standards and
also reviewed the terms and conditions of ongoing connected
transactions of the Group.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Audit Committee reviewed and monitored the external
auditor’s independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of
the audit process.

REVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Audit Committee assisted the Board in meeting its
responsibilities for maintaining an effective system of internal
control. It conducted a review of the internal control systems
of the Group and the process by which the Group evaluated its
control environment and risk assessment process, and the way
in which business and control risks were managed. The Audit
Committee also discussed with the internal audit department of
the Group the work plan for their audits on the Group together
with their resource requirements to ensure the effectiveness of
internal controls in the Group’s business operations.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”) on 3 December 2006 and held 1 meeting during the
Review Period where all Remuneration Committee members attended
the meeting to discuss remuneration related matters as shown on
page 73. As at 31 December 2014, the Remuneration Committee
comprised Dr. Loke Yu (an INED), Mr. Fang Jin (an Executive
Director) and Mr. Wang Jing Zhong (an INED). The Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee was Dr. Loke Yu. Its main duties are
summarised as follows:

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the Group’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing such remuneration policies;

(i) to determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of all individual Executive Directors and senior

management;

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
Non-executive Directors;

(iv) to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates is involved
in deciding his/her own remuneration; and

(v) to advise Shareholders on how to vote in respect of any service
contract of Directors that requires Shareholders’ approval in

accordance with the Listing Rules.

The work done by the Remuneration Committee during the year
included the following:

(i) determining the policy for the remuneration of Executive
Directors;

(i) assessing performance of Executive Directors; and

(iii) approving the terms of Executive Directors’ service contracts.

Details of the amount of Directors emoluments are set out in Note 10
to the consolidated financial statements.
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Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the Corporate Governance Code,
the remuneration payable to members of the senior management by
band for the year ended 31 December 2014 is set out below:

In the band of
FEN4E B

Nil to RMB788,870 (equivalent to Nil to
HK$1,000,000)

RMB788,871 to RMB1,577,740 (equivalent to
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) on 3 December 2006 and held 1 meeting during
the Review Period where all Nomination Committee members
attended the meeting as shown on page 73. As at 31 December
2014, the Nomination Committee comprised Dr. Loke Yu (an INED),
Mr. Fang Jin (an Executive Director) and Mr. Wang Jing Zhong
(an INED). The Chairman of the Nomination Committee was Dr.
Loke Yu. The Nomination Committee selects and recommends
appropriate candidates based on the candidates’ prior experience and
qualifications to the Board on the appointment of Directors and the
senior management of the Group. The main duties of the Nomination
Committee are as follows:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural background, educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and/or
length of service) of the Board on a regular basis and to make
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes;

(i)  to develop the criteria for identifying and assessing the
qualifications of and evaluating candidates for directorship;

(iii) to identify individuals who are suitably qualified to become a
Board member and to select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships
having regard to each candidate’s merit against an objective
criteria and the benefits of diversity of the Board;

(iv) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors to determine their eligibility;

TE AR¥788,8707T
(FAEMNZZE1,000,0007%7T)

ARE788,871 0 ARKEN,577,7407T 1
(F8E 71,000,001 7C%2,000,000757T)

BECEEATHEB1.5EE AT B E2014F
12A31BLLEFE  BRAETEEREZHMNTUT
4R -

Number of
individual(s)

A

REZES
NAFR2006F12 AR U IRBZER([REZE
Bg)) REZEeNDEPEMEERTINEH 2
BIREZEENEHHERAEH  FHBHANET3
B - R2014F 128318 - REZ8mESME L
(BYIERNTES) FerEEBTES) REHE
FECBYIFNITES AR - REZEENERA
EEMIEL - REZEBEREZEELAEEREETRAR
EEER  SRBEREZANBACHRERKET
MESSHBEEAZR REZEGNEIEHRED
™

(i) TEHMBEZEFTEORE  ABEKE(BHERET
RS Fik - XEBR -HEBR BX
a5 BEE - MERRRBEDRTE) - X5t
EEEEHNEESELHERR

(i) HIEBR R EEREREAE R R GEEA
MR

(i) ERHEEREASBEHRIESENESK
RN ZEE - BHEEREERNREESK

S ER AL WHRE KB BOE ERIA LR
REF-BAEFRRLER

(iv) FHEEIFRTEENBILS NIAREHLER:

71



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREEER AT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2014

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AN A 5 s
1IE3EE)A -’F&%

(v) to review and assess the adequacy of the corporate governance
guidelines of the Company and to recommend any proposed
changes to the Board for approval; and

(vi) have regard to the Company’s policy concerning diversity of
board members, and make appropriate disclosure of the policy
or a summary of the policy.

The work done by the Nomination Committee during the Review
Period included determining the policy for the nomination of
Directors.

In August 2013, the Board adopted a board diversity policy setting
out the approach to diversity of members of the Board. The Company
recognizes the benefits of diversity in Board members and believes
that Board diversity can be achieved through consideration of a
number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
background, educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and/or length of service. In forming the perspective on
diversity, the Company will also consider its own business model
and specific needs from time to time. All Board appointments will be
based on merits and each candidate is considered against objective
criteria.

The Nomination Committee will discuss and agree annually, if
considered appropriate, measurable objectives for implementing
diversity on the Board and recommend them to the Board for
adoption. The Board will from time to time review one or more
aspects of its diversity and measure progress accordingly. Having
reviewed the Group’s business model and operation needs and the
current composition of the Board, the Nomination Committee has not
set any measurable objective during the Review Period.

The following table summarises the attendance of each individual

Director and committee member in the respective Board, committee
and general meetings held during the Review Period.
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MEETINGS ATTENDANCE RECORD HESRTHE

Meetings attended/held in 2014
R2014F HE BITNEE
Audit  Nomination Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee 2014 AGM
20145
Bxg ERERS REERE FMEEE RRBFAE

Number of meetings held N EER Sy

during the Review Period Hezee " 2 1 1 1
Executive Directors: BITEE:
Fang Jin B4 111 N/ATR iR 1 11 17
Guo Quan Zeng FBIRIE 11/11 N/A i A N/A i A N/A i A 171
Huang Yan (resigned with effect ~ &#E(5201648 A

from 25 August 2016) 25HBEHE) 11/11 N/AZNE N/AZNE F N/AZNE F 171

Zhang Li (redesignated as a non-  3RZ2(H20164F8 A
executive director with effect from 25BEFTA

25 August 2016) HEHITESR) 11/11 N/ATNE A N/ATNE A N/ATNE A IVl
Independent Non-executive BYFHTES !

Directors:
Loke Yu laisyy 11/11 2/2 171 171 171
Wang Jing Zhong THA 11/11 2/2 171 1/1 171
Wang Jian Zhang TEHE 11/11 2/2 N/ATNE N/ATRE A 171
GOING FORWARD RE

The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance standards AEBEFEET PRI EPEXERFRE  EFITH
on a regular basis and the Board endeavors to take the necessary JIFREULEITE)  UHERETEEHAXZAER
actions to ensure compliance with the provisions of the Corporate AR ([H¥ZFT]) MM EIRRE A TRIRIIERIT
Governance Code introduced by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION BIBEHER

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual written AR BCWEIBBIIFRTEEZNFEBL S (HHE
confirmation of his/her independence, and the Company considers ~R& @ ARRRBRE LM RIFE3.13FPIH ISR
such Directors to be independent in accordance with each and every 83| BEAEFHR/REILAL -

guideline set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties. The following corporate governance functions
form part of the terms of reference of the Board:—

(i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(iii) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(v) to review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance

Report.

During the Review Period, the Board reviewed the Company’s
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE OF THE LISTING RULES

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company complied with the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code pursuant to
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the Review Period.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE OF THE GROUP

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and reviewing their effectiveness. The risk
management and internal control systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

During the Review Period, the Board conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group. The
review considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting functions.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 25 August 2016,
the Company engaged BDO Financial Services Limited (”Internal
Control Consultant”) as its internal control consultant to conduct
a review of the internal control systems and procedures of the
Group and to make recommendations accordingly (“Internal Control
Review").

The scope of work of the Internal Control Consultant included
an independent assessment of the internal control systems of the
major subsidiaries of the Group which addressed, among others, the
recommendations of the independent board committee as set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 14 June 2016, covering financial
reporting procedures, receivables recording and collection procedures,
recording procedures on the return of goods in the sales process,
bank statements reconciliation procedures, distribution of goods and
tax declaration procedures.

During the period from September 2016 to April 2017, the Internal
Control Consultant performed reviews on the internal control systems
of the major subsidiaries of the Group (including the new enterprise
resource planning (“ERP") systems for certain companies within the
Group) which involved collecting relevant information, conducting site
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visits and interviews and conducting walkthrough tests. Through this
process, a list of issues had been identified and the Internal Control
Consultant recommended certain improvements and/or remedial
measures to address such issues for the Company’s consideration.
The Company has considered and implemented such recommended
improvements and/or remedial measures, and thereafter the Internal
Control Consultant performed a follow-up review which involved
substantially the same procedures as above to come up with further
recommendations on improvements and/or remedial measures for
the Company’s consideration. After the Company has considered
and implemented such further recommended improvements and/or
remedial measures, the new ERP systems were formally launched by
the Group for the major subsidiaries of the Group.

Sample walk-through documents in respect of the enhanced internal
control systems of the Group (including the new ERP systems) and
the operation processes of the Group within the scope of the Internal
Control Review for the period of review from 1 May 2017 to 31
May 2017 were provided by the Group for the Internal Control
Consultant’s follow-up review, checking and testing during July to
September 2017 to assess whether the improvements and/or remedial
measures recommended by the Internal Control Consultant have been
implemented and whether there was any material internal control
deficiency.

On 30 November 2017, the Internal Control Consultant issued its
report on the Internal Control Review. The Internal Control Consultant
was satisfied that the Company maintained, in all material respects,
effective internal control systems in relation to the companies within
the Group that are the subject of the Internal Control Review and all
the business areas of the Group as at 31 May 2017.

Having reviewed the findings and results of the report on the Internal
Control Review prepared by the Internal Control Consultant, and
having taken into consideration the improvements and/or remedial
measures implemented in accordance with the Internal Control
Consultant’s recommendations, the Board is of the view that the
Company has put in place adequate internal control system and
financial reporting procedures to meet its obligations under the Listing
Rules.

We set out below the current risk management structure of the
Group:
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RISK MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT

The Group has set up a risk management department which is
responsible for the design and implementation of a risk management
system and assisting the Board in monitoring and supervising the
implementation and effectiveness of enterprise risk management
framework and procedures and reviewing risk response measures. The
risk management department performs an internal audit function and
is responsible for performing independent review of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Group.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Group assists the Board in monitoring
the risk level of the Group and the design and operational efficiency
of the relevant risk management and internal control systems. The
Audit Committee oversees the following procedures on behalf of the
Board:

o examination of the Group’s risk management system, internal
control system (including corporate strategy, finance, operations
and compliance monitoring) and internal audit functions to
ensure the establishment and maintenance of effective and
appropriate risk management and internal control systems and
adequate resources to perform the internal functions of the
Group;

o regular review of work reports submitted by the risk
management department, including action plans to address any
weaknesses of the risk management and internal control systems
which have been identified and updates on the implementation
of recommendations to address the weaknesses;

e external auditors regularly submit reports on the internal control
matters identified in the course of their work to the Company’s
management. They also meet with the Audit Committee to
discuss the scope and results of their review.

The Audit Committee will report to the Board after review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
system. Upon consideration of the work and results of review of the
Audit Committee, the Board will form its view on the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems.

The board of directors will ensure that a review of the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group will
be conducted annually.

DA IO YN~
JL%E/I:I %&%
B bR EFE EBFT
AEBERY T —EARKRERE - HB8HRXFTMHR

R

ARRERERS  FHHEFEERNSEOLE
BERBERNRFORTNERYE - URBHER
FEEHE I - IR E R APIHIT BB MAL AR K
7 g PO B0 B 4 A M0 9 M LS A 1T B
1T -

FREEE
AEENERZESHDEETTERAKSENAR
IR K B B L B I e BB BE R R AT RO R AT S UE AR
KR - BEZEBERREFEEEUMERF

o FEHASEZAREESE  NEEENE(R
EARIRE - B7% - 2ERARER)MARE
ZERRE - ARERB AR A RIEE AR
EEMARMEZEGE  XBRANEIR  HEIA
BT AR B M AL

o TEHRTEBREEMBMARINIIERS B
&S LR R L B B IR N A BR R A 6 E 55 B A0 1T
BOR URERTHERZESHOEETE
HYERF AR -

o INERBEEHREEETEBREPRAINE
TEHAARAERBRRRE  THEZRE
EeHedmsFENRISEERER

ERZERERNASERARERMAMEIEHIE
MKBEAESERSE EFEERERZE SN
TERBEERE  BrERERE AT E
MRBIGHECHER -

EFEHRREFHARERBRETNABELH
BRI (TR ©

77



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREEER AT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2014

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

i

XERWE

MAJOR RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES OF THE GROUP

The Group is exposed to different risks and uncertainties, some of

the Group’s major risks are set out below and appropriate mitigation

measures have been devised to manage such risks.

(A) OPERATION, STRATEGIC AND FINANCIAL RISKS

78

The smart electronic products industry advances at a tremendous
pace. Lithium-ion battery module, being the Company’s main
product, is mostly used in smartphones, laptops, tablets and
wearable devices. The sales of consumer smart electronics may
change rapidly in response to consumers’ demand or taste.
As the supplier of lithium-ion battery modules for a number
of domestic smartphone brands, the drastic fluctuation in
customers’ sales of smartphones will have significant effects on
the sales of the Group’s lithium-ion battery modules.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues:

(i) Investment of resources in development of new products
and application of lithium-ion battery in new industries and
new fields in response to changes in market demands;

(i) Diversification of product portfolios in order to reduce the
impact of a reduction in sales of individual products on the
Group's overall business;

(iii)  Proactive recruitment and training of skilled and experienced

technicians to enhance the Group’s R&D capability.

For lithium-ion battery products, great importance is attached to
the quality and safety. The performance and safety of lithium-ion
battery is greatly sensitive to ambient environment. The safety
of lithium-ion battery lies in effective use of external circuit
design to help ensure the battery’s operation is normal and safe.
However, the efficiency and reliability of these safety devices
are closely connected with good and consistent manufacturing
quality. Various different circumstances or causes may also lead
to short circuit and other risk.
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Actions taken by the Group to address these issues:

(i) In the pursuit of high efficiency and endurance of battery,
it is required to conduct more rigorous review of the safety
of battery to ensure that all the batteries delivered meet the
high safety standards;

(i)  The Group ensures it purchases sufficient product liability
insurance for protection. Product liability insurance covers
the liability arising from a defective product that causes
personal injury, property damage or other losses;

(iii) The raw materials and other auxiliary materials used for the
Company’s products shall be certified by authorities before
being used. In the process of production, the Company’s
quality inspection department shall conduct inspection at
each stage throughout the whole production process to
ensure the Company’s product quality and safeguard the
interests of consumers with a quality monitoring system.

In 2014, more than 70% of the Group’s turnover was derived
from its ODM business. Over 73% of sales of ODM business was
derived from three domestic smartphone brand manufacturers. If
the Group loses one of these top customers, it may have adverse
effects on the operation and financial results of the Group’s
ODM business.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues:

(i)  The Group will look for more potential customers to reduce
its dependence on top customers;

(i) The Group will strengthen after-sales services for customers,
pay regular visits to customers and conduct customer
satisfaction survey, to continuously improve the quality
of products and services and consolidate the Group's
competitiveness in the industry and increase customer
loyalty;

(i) The Group will develop more new products to meet
customer needs.

The vast majority of the Group’s sales revenue is from domestic
operating units. Adverse events in the domestic operation and
political environment may result in material adverse effects on
the Group's business, financial position and operation results.
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Actions taken by the Group to address these issues:

(i) Development of overseas markets to increase revenue from
overseas operations;

(i) Continuous monitoring of domestic operations and political
environment, anticipation of possible problems, and
establish quick strategic response to changing business
environment.

Overdue payments by customers granted with credit by the
Group will increase the financial risk to the Group and affect the
Group's financial performance and operating cash flow.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues:

(i)  Regular review of the amount of accounts receivable from
key customers to control it at the appropriate level;

(i) Implementation of internal control measures to increase
collection efforts for overdue accounts receivable.

The main raw material for lithium-ion battery module (the
Group’s main product) is lithium-ion battery cell. The Group
purchases lithium-ion battery cells from many well-known
international manufacturers. In recent years, lithium-ion battery
cell has been widely used in smartphones, laptops and tablets,
wearable devices, power tools, electric bicycles, energy storage
and other fields. Any increase in the price or shortage of supply
of lithium-ion battery cell will have a material impact on the
profitability and production costs of the Group.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues:

(i) Regular research and evaluation of suppliers to ensure
stable supply of raw materials;

(i)  Through automation upgrade of production lines, the
Group solves the problem with human resources and
effectively controls production costs, which have positive
effects on improvement of the Group’s profitability and
control of production costs.
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(B) ACCIDENT RISKS

()

Major accidents including fires, natural disasters or serious
infectious diseases will affect the Group’s assets and operations,
thus affecting the Group’s operational capacity and reducing
profitability.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues:

(i)  Ensure comprehensive insurance coverage over the Group's
properties and business is purchased,;

(i) Provision of regular education and training sessions on
safety for all staff to strengthen staff’s awareness of
production safety;

(iii) Training on fire safety, fire emergency evacuation and
fire drill at workplace are organized at least twice a year
to let staff have a solid understanding of the significance
and necessity of production safety and improve their own
awareness of safety protection;

(iv) The Company organizes physical examination for the
benefit of its staff to help in assessing possible occupational
and serious infectious diseases.

INDUSTRY RISKS

The possible slowdown of Chinese economy in the near future,
commencement of drop in global shipment of smartphones and
the possible substantial decrease in consumers’ demands for
replacement of smartphones will have material adverse effects
on the Group's business, financial position and operation results.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues:

(i)  Proactively pay attention to the application of lithium-
ion batteries in new industries and new fields, grasp
opportunities for access to the market and adjust the
development strategy in response to changes in the market;

(i)  Proactively build a platform for communication with
consumers, pay close attention to consumers’ demands,
timely listen to consumers’ opinions, and provide good
products and after-sales services to increase customer
loyalty.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company:

o is aware of its obligations under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance and the Listing Rules;

o conduct its affairs in strict compliance with the relevant
guidelines and policies relating to inside information issued by
the Securities and Futures Commission and the Stock Exchange
from time to time;

o has implemented procedures for responding to external enquiries
about the Group’s affairs; and has implemented policy regarding
prohibition on the unauthorised use of confidential or inside
information.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company had adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”).
Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors have complied

Having made specific enquiries of all

with the required standard as set out in the Model Code for the
financial year ended 31 December 2014.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for considering
the appointment of the external auditor and reviewing any non-
audit functions performed by the external auditor, including whether
such non-audit functions could lead to any potential material adverse
effect on the Company. During the Review Period, the Group paid
approximately RMB1,189,000 to Moore Stephens Certified Public
Accountants (“Moore Stephens”) and approximately RMB635,000
to the PRC auditor for their audit services. The Group also paid
approximately RMB277,000 to Moore Stephens for their non-audit
services in respect of review of the interim financial information of
the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2014. Moore Stephens
resigned as the external auditor of the Company with effect from 2
April 2015. BDO Limited Certified Public Accountants (“BDO Limited”)
has been appointed as the Company’s external auditor with effect
from 25 August 2016. During the Review Period, the amount payable
by the Group to BDO Limited for audit services was approximately
RMB2,377,000.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group and their
responsibilities for the accounts and the reporting responsibilities of
the external auditors are set out on page 89 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Yeung Mun Tai (FCCA,
CPA). Mr. Yeung took no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the Review Period.

SHAREHOLDER AND INVESTOR RELATIONS
COMMUNICATION STRATEGIES

The Board established a Shareholders’ communication policy setting
out the principles of the Company in relation to its communication
with the Shareholders, with the objective of ensuring the Shareholders
are provided with access to information about the Company in order
to enable Shareholders to assess the Company’s overall performance,
exercise their rights in an informed matter and engage actively with
the Company.

Information would be communicated to Shareholders mainly
through the Company’s corporate communications including interim
and annual reports, annual general meetings and other general
meetings that may be convened, as well as by making available all
the disclosures submitted to the Stock Exchange and its corporate
communications and other corporate publications on the Company’s
website. Shareholders may direct enquiries about their shareholdings
to the Company’s Share Registrars. To the extent the requisite
information of the Company is publicly available, Shareholders and
the investment community may at any time make enquiry in respect
of the Company in writing at our head office in Hong Kong by post,
facsimile or email via the numbers and email address provided on the
Company's website.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, any one or
more shareholders holding on the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary at our head office in Hong Kong by post,
facsimile or email via a number and email address provided on the
Company’s website, to require an extraordinary general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition. The written requisition may be deposited at the
Company's head office in Hong Kong at Room 1017, 10/F Leighton
Centre, 77 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay, for the attention of the
Board or the Company Secretary. If within 21 days of such deposit
of the written requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change to the constitutional documents of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2014.
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STAKEHOLDERS

The continuing development and present scale of the Group were
benefited from the trust and support of the stakeholders. We have
been dedicating efforts not only to maximise the present value of the
Group but also seeking to maximise the interest and return for all
parties so as to enhance a harmonious development and a victorious
collaboration in the long run.

1. INVESTORS

The Group has always paid much attention to communication
and interaction with investors, and continued to improve
communication channels with shareholders and investors, so as
to enhance governance transparency. The Group’s management
regularly meets with investors, and proactively announces the
latest information and business development plans.

2. CONSUMERS
PRODUCT SAFETY

The Group has placed emphasis on the safety of products,
especially on mobile phone batteries and have implemented
strict quality control like I1SO so as to meet safety requirements.
With our product testing centres, we administer stages of
tests including crash, high-temperature, dampen and long
period recharging on our battery products. We also invest
resources in product R&D to develop more reliable products. The
battery products of the Group have also passed the stringent
requirements on quality control and safety set by the relevant
government authorities.
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EMPLOYEES
OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY

The Group has focused on factory production safety, strived

to enhance employees’ safety knowledge and training, and

increased factory fire prevention facilities and safety patrols,

so as to ensure unobstructed fire passages and the availability

of water in case of fire. In addition, the Group has regularly

held fire drills, increased investments in fire prevention facilities

in factories, so as to ensure the sufficiency of fire prevention

equipment and facilities.

The Group has proactively taken and implemented various

measures, including:

@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

increase factory fire prevention facilities and safety patrols
(once a week), resolve problems in a timely manner, ensure
unobstructed fire passages and the availability of water in
case of fire;

hold regular safety seminar and training for employees,
especially for new staff, striving to enhance employees’
hazard prevention and safety awareness;

conduct at least two large scale fire drills every year and
conduct general safety checks and fire drills on such days;

enhance factory management and divide it into safety
responsibility districts, appoint safety examiners at the
workshops, with routine patrols, and eliminate potential
problems in a timely manner; and

improve and formulate storage, safe keeping, transportation
and processing procedures for flammables, and provide
training for staff frequently in contact in such flammables.
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ESTABLISHMENT OF OWN SKILL TRAINING INSTITUTE

Apart from occupational safety, the Group has also placed
emphasis on providing on-the-job training for its staff. The Group
started a comprehensive talent training programme, which is tied
to the establishment of its own skill training institute. Talents will
be cultivated at the skill training institute and available in the
pipeline to resolve the labour shortage issue faced by industry
participants. After a period of training, the Group will allocate
labour resources directly to various departments, which will
shorten the time of staff replacement and reduce labour cost.
Automated production will also be implemented at different
phases. Moreover, in the training process, participating staff
can understand the practical operation issues arising from the
course of production, which will effectively enhance production
efficiencies and qualities. The Group invites talents from society
and select personnel with the required management and
technical expertise through professional and rigorous training
processes. At the same time, this also brings to society a new
generation of trained talents in fulfillment of the Company’s
social responsibilities.

PROTECTION OF EMPLOYEES’ LEGAL RIGHTS

The Group promotes and undertakes a fair and non-discriminative
employment policy. Employees are employed on contract basis
and employment contracts were signed based on principles of
fairness and on employees’ own volition, with clear provisions
on contractual terms such as scope of work, remuneration,
social insurance, and working hours, among others. The legal
rights and obligations of the employer and employee are
clearly defined. We also strictly comply with the relevant laws
and regulations in relation to national social insurance to set
up insurance scheme for basic pension, medical, work-related
injuries, unemployment and maternity for employees and cover
the various insurance expenses. Meanwhile, to further protect
the interests of individual employees, the Company has taken
out a commercial accident insurance scheme for all employees.
The Group complied with the Labor Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China since 1 January 2008 and established a labor
union. We hold an employees’ meeting every two weeks, in
support of construction and development of a harmonious and
stable employee and employer relationship.
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COMMUNITY
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

As a responsible enterprise, the Group has always put emphasis
on supporting environmental protection. We strictly control the
production procedures and reduce waste generation. Although
small amounts of waste are generated during the packaging
process, some of it are delivered to qualified recycling plants for
treatment.
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Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

IBDO

www.bdo.com.hk Hong Kong
A
EEE ¢ +852 2218 8288 EFETHEER1158
85 : +852 2815 2239 KRA2548
www.bdo.com.hk
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SCUD GROUP LIMITED BREREEERATNEZEBRR

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of
SCUD Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “"Group”) set out on pages 96 to 222, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31
December 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Except for the inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
as explained below, we conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement. Because
of the matters as described in the “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion”
paragraphs, however, we were not able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion.

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2013 were audited by another auditor who expressed
an unmodified opinion on those statements on 27 March 2014.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

1. Opening balances and corresponding figures
a.  Prior year’s adjustments
The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2013 (“FY2013") which form the
basis for the corresponding figures presented in the current
year’'s consolidated financial statements were audited by
the predecessor auditor.
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As disclosed in note 3(d) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company has established the Independent
Board Committee comprising all the independent non-
executive directors of the Company to investigate certain
matters (the “Matters”) observed by the Company’'s
predecessor auditor during the performance of their audit
of the Group's consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2014 (“FY2014") and raised in
their resignation letter dated 2 April 2015. The Company
has engaged an independent third party investigator (the
“Investigator”) to assist in the investigation of the Matters
(the “Investigation”). A summary of the key findings of
the Investigation is set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 14 June 2016.

In the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014, the
directors of the Company have taken into account the
findings of the Investigation and made adjustments to
the consolidated financial statements, including prior year
adjustments to the comparative information for the year
ended 31 December 2013 as disclosed in note 3(d) to the
consolidated financial statements, to correct the material
misstatements uncovered by the Investigation allegedly
arising from the concealment of excess recall of batteries
under the Own-Brand Battery Recall Plan of Scud Battery
Co., Ltd. (“Scud Battery”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group (the “Incident”). The Investigation uncovered that
two senior management members of Scud Battery, namely
the then general manager (the “Then General Manager of
Scud Battery”) and the then finance control director (the
“Then Finance Control Director of Scud Battery”) were
responsible for the Incident and hence the misstatements.
As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 14
June 2016, the Group has terminated the employment
of the Then General Manager of Scud Battery and the
Then Finance Control Director of Scud Battery from all of
their duties within the Group after the Investigation was
completed.
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As further disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
14 June 2016, the findings of the Investigation are primarily

subject to the following limitations:

92
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(ii)

(iii)

no interviews have been conducted with the finance
department and sales department employees of Scud
Battery who have resigned;

the Then Finance Control Director of Scud Battery
could not arrange for an interview with the
Investigator of the person who, according to the
Then General Manager of Scud Battery and the Then
Finance Control Director of Scud Battery, assisted in
providing forged documentation and manipulating
financial data in respect of FY2013 and FY2014, and
who is not a staff member of the Group (the “Third
Party”), whom the Investigator understood has been in
liaison with the Then Finance Control Director of Scud
Battery;

the Investigator did not have access to the forged
financial documentation presented to the predecessor
auditor previously as it was informed that such
documentation have been returned to the Third Party
by the Then Finance Control Director of Scud Battery;

(iv) not all customers of Scud Battery were able to
participate in the Investigator’s investigation exercise;
(v) the predecessor auditor declined to have meeting

(vi)

(vii)

with the Investigator to discuss about the Matters
save that the predecessor auditor has confirmed to
the Investigator that it had nothing to supplement in
addition to what is already stated in its resignation
letter;

the Investigator could not carry out investigation on
bank accounts which are no longer controlled by the
Group (as a result of the account holder having been
deregistered or sold by the Group); and

not all customers responded to requests for written
confirmation on sales and receivables figures.
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During the course of our audit for the year ended 31
December 2014, we were provided by the directors of the
Company with a list of the prior year's adjustments and
schedules in relation to the correction of the misstatements
uncovered by the Investigation. However, owing to the
irreqular and complex nature of the Incident, our inability
to gain access to the forged financial documentation
presented to the predecessor auditor as we were informed
that such documentation had been returned to the Third
Party by the Then Finance Control Director of Scud Battery,
hold discussion/meeting with the predecessor auditor, the
Then General Manager of Scud Battery, the Then Finance
Control Director of Scud Battery and the Third Party, and
obtain other sufficient appropriate evidence, we were
unable to ascertain the nature and obtain the details of the
Incident. As a result of these limitations, we were unable
to determine whether the prior year’'s adjustments made by
the directors of the Company are appropriate.

Trade receivables

We have sent confirmations on a sample basis to certain
customers of the Group on trade receivable balances as at
31 December 2013. A proportion of the confirmations sent
were either not returned or returned with discrepancies
against the Company’s record. An impairment loss on these
balances (net of subsequent settlements) of approximately
RMB20 million was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2014.

We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence on the completeness, existence and recoverability
of these trade receivables as at 31 December 2013 and
hence were unable to determine whether the impairment
loss of approximately RMB20 million recognised in the year
ended 31 December 2014 was fairly stated.
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Opening and closing inventories

We were engaged to perform the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014 in August 2016, and we were therefore not able
to attend the physical inventory count conducted by the Group
for its inventories as at 31 December 2014 and 31 December
2013. As the directors of the Company were unable to provide
or match the required information and supporting documents
for/to certain sale and purchase transactions for the three years
ended 31 December 2016, we were unable to perform inventory
roll-back procedures from the inventory balances as at 31
December 2016 of which we have attended and observed the
physical inventory count conducted by the Group.

We were unable to satisfy ourselves with any alternative audit
procedure on the completeness and existence of the inventories
of the Group of approximately RMB369 million and RMB424
million as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 respectively, and
hence were unable to determine whether any adjustment
to these amounts as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 was
necessary. We were also unable to determine whether any
adjustment might have been necessary in respect of the financial
performance reported in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income and the net cash flows
from operating activities reported in the consolidated statement
of cash flows of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014.

Certain sale and purchase transactions

For the year ended 31 December 2014, there were sales of
approximately RMB592 million to customers and purchases of
approximately RMB852 million from suppliers that we were
not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence on the
completeness, existence and accuracy of these transactions as
the directors of the Company were unable to provide or match
the required information and supporting documents for/to these
sale and purchase transactions for the year ended 31 December
2014.
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We were unable to satisfy ourselves with any alternative audit
procedure on the completeness, existence and accuracy of
these sale and purchase transactions, and hence were unable
to determine whether these amounts were fairly stated in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

Any consequential effect in connection with the above matters would
affect the net assets of the Group as at 31 December 2014 and the
Group's loss and cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2014
and the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Because of the significance of the matters as described in the Basis
for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraphs, we have not been able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for
an audit opinion. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014. In all other respects, in our opinion the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014 have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Tsui Ka Che, Norman
Practising Certificate no. PO5057

Hong Kong, 30 April 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z20144 12531 H 1F F/Z

2014 2013
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
B ARBTT ARBFT
(Restated)
(fe&E51)
Turnover EE L 6 3,728,814 2,395,816
Cost of sales PR (3,220,593) (2,020,361)
Gross profit EF 508,221 375,455
Other revenue Hblhzs 7 22,682 18,973
Selling and distribution expenses HE RN HEAX (61,365) (57,497)
Administrative expenses TR (247,729) (260,918)
Other operating expenses HEME e (162,821) (3,077)
Finance costs BMERAE 11 (30,195) (25,971)
Share of results of an associate il NG E 17 21 (289
Share-based payment expenses AR BER 2 MR 31 (14,811) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net HEMRB AR Z W F5 34 1,868 13,963
Loss on refund EmEuE K 26 = (257,818)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BB ANEF, (E518) 8 15,871 (197,179)
Income tax ST 12 (22,733) 41,423
Loss for the year RFEEEBE (6,862) (155,756)
Other comprehensive income AEEBBHMSERE !
for the year, net of tax:
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently REERRBERREZIEEN
to profit or loss 1HA
- Exchange differences on translating —REBINE 2 R ERE
foreign operations 1,791 (4,228)
— Reclassification adjustment relating to — BN ERINER ZEH
disposal of foreign operations DIATE = (14,631)
Other comprehensive income REEREEME2EE R
for the year, net of tax 1,791 (18,859)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEE2EIKNGHEE (5,071) (174,615)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z20144 12531 H 1 F/Z

2014 2013
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
k= ARBTR ARBFT
(Restated)
(FE7))
Loss for the year attributable to: THIATEIEAFEEE
Owners of the Company KARHER A (1,696) (144,936)
Non-controlling interests FEIER R RS (5,166) (10,820)
(6,862) (155,756)
Total comprehensive income TIATEEZE
attributable to: We4ags
Owners of the Company VIN/NGTE ¥ =N 95 (163,795)
Non-controlling interests IR i (5,166) (10,820)
(5,071) (174,615)
(Restated)
(B=7)
Losses per share BREE
— Basic and diluted (RMB cents) —EAREE(ARED) 14 (0.16) (14.04)
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RE AR AR

At 31 December 2014 }2014F12/31H

31 December 31 December 1 January
2014 2013 2013
20145 2013 20134
12A31H 12A31H 1A1H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
iEs AR¥T T ARETTT ARETT
(Restated)
(fe=%1)
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment YE - R NGRE 15 319,917 348,819 357,854
Intangible assets B EE 16 2,646 31,739 44,893
Interest in an associate B N TR 17 1,421 1,400 -
Prepayments, deposits and other TERFIE - e REMER
receivables RIA 20 28,719 38,934 -
Deferred tax assets EEFIBEE 28 90,031 90,094 37,551
Total non-current assets EMEEELTE 442,734 510,986 440,298
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 18 368,931 423,987 460,025
Trade and notes receivables FEUE 5308 M e E R 19 1,184,659 551,332 632,659
Prepayments, deposits and other TBRFIE - e REMER
receivables B 20 314,824 290,872 153,740
Amounts due from related parties FEML R A T 508 21 57,975 4,733 2,028
Amount due from an associate JEUH = A R FUA 21 - 1,958 -
Current tax recoverable AT U 21 BN EA R T8 473 - 1,917
Pledged bank deposits EIREIRITF N 22 422,104 239,424 143,684
Time deposits FEHTFER 23 60,000 - -
Bank balances and cash IRITERNIRS 23 122,229 195,360 278,749
Total current assets MENEE/EEE 2,531,195 1,707,666 1,672,802
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and notes payables ENESFIELENER 24 1,216,815 726,407 465,378
Other payables, receipts in advance — EfhfE{T 38 - FEUGKIE &
and accrued charges EETE R 25 208,752 156,943 80,021
Provisions for refund and warranty ELEKREREERES 26 3,104 2,935 100,145
Bank loans — current portion WITER—REHH 27 380,405 320,511 289,390
Other loans - current portion HER—neEn 27 10,604 - -
Amount due to a director JEREERIE 21 42,683 1,000 -
Amounts due to related parties JERTRBE A 508 21 21,678 - -
Amount due to an associate JEfTHE = A RIFUA 21 3 - -
Current tax payable FETENERF I8 28,911 17,367 10,990
Total current liabilities MEN B BB 1,912,955 1,225,163 945,924
Net current assets REEEFEE 618,240 482,503 726,878
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At 31 December 2014 201412 /31H

31 December 31 December 1 January

2014 2013 2013

20144 20134 20134

12A31H 12A31H 1A1H

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ik ARETR AREBTT AREBTT

(Restated)
(fe&7)

Total assets less current liabilities #BEERAHEE 1,060,974 993,489 1,167,176
Non-current liabilities kRBAE

Bank loans — non-current portion RITER—FERBHBH 27 147 292 423

Other loans — non-current portion HibBER—FEREEH D 27 18,888 - -

Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBEAE 28 5,933 5,360 3,320

Total non-current liabilities EnBAEARE 24,968 5,652 3,743

Net assets BEE 1,036,006 987,837 1,163,433
Capital and reserves BEARRE

Share capital AR 29 107,590 103,014 103,014

Reserves 54 30 884,921 836,113 999,881

Equity attributable to owners EAREEAELES

of the Company 992,511 939,127 1,102,895

Non-controlling interests IR R 33 43,495 48,710 60,538

Total equity BRERS 1,036,006 987,837 1,163,433

FANG JIN GUO QUAN ZENG
e PRI
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
BF BE
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
RN B B ARSL ER

2014 2013
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’'000
BMisE ARET T ARBFT
Non-current asset FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B ATIEE 32 250,901 250,901
Total non-current asset SEmENEELRTE 250,901 250,901
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE BT /&8 A B 5K IR 748,472 485,193
Bank balances and cash RITEHR LIRS 36 2
Total current assets BN A E AR 748,508 485,195
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H A e F0E 3 3
Amount due to a subsidiary EALRIEPNGIE ¢ 107,502 3,015
Total current liabilities mE B EEE 107,505 3,018
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 641,003 482,177
Net assets FEE 891,904 733,078
Capital and reserves EAXR#E
Share capital &N 29 107,590 103,014
Reserves s 30 784,314 630,064
Total equity R 891,904 733,078
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 2201441231 H 1+ F/Z

(Accumulated ~ Attributable
Statutory ~ Enterprise losses)/ 1o owners Non-
Share Share Capital reserve  expansion  Trandlation retained of the  controlling Total
capital  premium Teserve fund fund resne profits ~ Company interests equity
EE % (B:H8)/ FRAEAEA
Rx ROEE ARG Mg BREe  ERRE  RERNM  REBR  FERER aiEs
RMB'OO0  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMBIOO0  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT  ARMTR  ARETR ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
At 1 January 2013 R013E1818 103,014 577,115 186,215 96,693 49,106 (42,737) 133489 1,102,895 60538 1163433
Loss for the year, as restated BEF|  RERER - - - - - - (144936)  (144936)  (10820)  (155,756)
Other comprehensive income, FERyEt e
s restated - - - - - (18,859) - (18,859) - (18,859)
Total comprehensive income AEN AER2E
for the year, as restated WaaE - - - - - (18839  (14493%6) (163795 (10,820  (174,615)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 3¢) ~ HEMBAT(3534) - - - - - - - - (1,008) (1,008)
De-registration of a subsidiary HEHHNELR - - - - - - 7 7 - 7
Appropriations iy - - - 9,141 4570 - (13,711) - - -
At 31 December 2013 (as restated) 2013 12831R (BE5)) 103,014 577,115 186,215 105,834 53,676 (61,59) (25,131) 939,127 48710 987,837
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GEMEEBR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z20144 12531 H 1F F/Z

Attributable
Statutory  Enterprise Share to owners Non-
Share Share Capital ~ reserve  expansion  Translation option  Accumulated of the  controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve fund fnd  reserve  reserve losses ~ Company interests equity
HE i3 | Bhi KAAERA
Ra  RbEE EARE @ 0EE  EREE  ENER Bk EMEE  BERG  FERRE  fER
RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTL  ARMTR ARBTZ ARMTR ARETr ARMTR ARETn ARMTR ARETR ARRTR  ARETR
At 1 January 2014 (3s restated) H0UEIA1R(EE) 103014 577415 186215 105834 53676 (61,5%) - (BB) B 870 987837
Loss for the year KEERR - - - - - - - (1,6%) (1,6%) (5,166) (6,862)
Other comprehensive income EfzEks - - - - - 1,791 - - 1,791 - 1,191
Total comprehensive income for REERANAEE
the year - - - - - 1,191 - (1,69) % (5,166) (5,071)
Share-based payment expenses (Note 31)  SURABEEZ 35S
(31) - - - - - - - -
Issue of new shares (Note 29) BRH(HE0) 4576 YAV - - - - - - 6 - b
De-registration of a subsidiary BETENBLT - - - (157) - - - - (157) (49) (206)
Appropriztions I - - - 3,10 (1,885) - - 5,655 - - -
Dividend paid BARE - - - - - - N TV X1 - (8,114)
At 31 December 2014 H2014E128318 10759 619288 186215 101907 51790 (59805) 14811 (29.286) 992511 13,495 1,036,006
Notes: MsT -
Share premium 10w (B

The share premium account represents the excess of the issue price
net of any issuance expenses over the par value of the shares issued
and has been credited to the share premium account of the Company.
The application of the share premium account is governed by Section
34 under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal amount of the shares issued by the Company and the
aggregate amount of the paid-in capital of subsidiaries acquired plus
the consideration received by the Company pursuant to the Group
Reorganisation in preparation of the listing of the Company’s shares.

Statutory reserve fund and enterprise expansion fund

Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") applicable to foreign investment enterprises and
the Articles of Association of the PRC subsidiaries of the Company,
these PRC subsidiaries are required to maintain two statutory reserves,
namely a statutory reserve fund and an enterprise expansion fund
which are non-distributable.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z20144 12531 H 1 F/Z

Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Scud Electronics”), Scud Battery
Co., Ltd. (“Scud Battery”), Scud Power (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“Scud
Shenzhen”), Shenzhen Hongde Battery Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen
Hongde”), Scud (Beijing) Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Scud Beijing”), Fujian
Green Energy Co., Ltd. (“Fujian Green Energy”), Dongguan Hongde
Battery Co., Ltd. (“Dongguan Hongde”), Fuzhou Thousand Island
Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Fuzhou Thousand Island”), Shenzhen Nalon
Battery Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Nalon”), Fujian Scud New Energy Co.,
Ltd. (“Scud New Energy”) and Hongde New Energy Technology Co.,
Ltd. ("Hongde New Energy”) (together the “PRC Subsidiaries”) are
required to transfer 10% of their respective profit after income tax
as reported in the PRC statutory financial statements to the statutory
reserve fund until the balance reaches 50% of their respective
registered capital. Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the PRC
Subsidiaries, they are also required to make appropriation from their
respective profit after income tax as reported in the PRC statutory
financial statements to the enterprise expansion fund at rates
determined by their respective boards of directors.

The statutory reserve fund may be used to make up prior year losses
incurred and, with the approval from the relevant government
authorities, to increase capital for expansion of production of the PRC
Subsidiaries. The enterprises expansion fund, subject to the approval
by the relevant government authorities, may also be used to increase
capital of the PRC Subsidiaries.

Translation reserve

Gain/losses arising on translating the net assets of foreign operations
into presentation currency.

Share option reserve

Cumulative expenses recognised on the granting of share options to
the employees over the vesting period.

Accumulated losses

No dividend is proposed for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013:
RMBS8,114,000). As at 31 December 2014, the balance of accumulated
losses of the Group was RMB29,286,000 (2013: RMB25,131,000 (as
restated)).

REB(BR)EFARAR(IREREF]) RE
BEBBRAR(IREREL]) - REBERCK
INER2B(CRYIFRER]) - RITHBEELE
RAR(TERINEE]D RERBAEFEFARA
A(MIERARER])  BESBHERERAAF(RE
RFEER])  REMBEELERAA(RES
) w@NTEEFARARTRBMNTED - HII
MEAREE M AR 2B ([RYIBARE]) - RERTERRF
BERAR QA ([RERIER |) KIEEH LR
BRAR(BEHER]) (GEAITEMEAR])
AR BEDEE M B MR 2R ZBAERIZET
BRI0%EEFELES  BEEAMEHRESTMK
K50% - REBEFEMBRR 2 ABERMA - LA L
REBERBBUEEMBIHRERM 2R RIS BE A
%ngngi\%E MEFEREZLLE  BRELFH
EBES -

AEREEEABBEREIER - AT AR
EFEEWRZER RANENTERBARZE
EREREL  PEURECKEBEBFHELE
& TRAIRIEE T BB AR ZEAR

G 3 f
ERGIEBFEERZINEEHMEEZRA B

18-
HB R R A
REBHAARERR TREERERN RS

HZE2014F1N2A3MHEFE  TERZERKE
(20135 : A K #8,114,0007T ) » 720144128
318 - KRB R EEE S A ARM29,286,0007T
(20134 : AR#25,131,0007T (&£ E71])) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z20144 12531 H 1F F/Z

2014 2013
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARMET T ARBFT
(Restated)
(& 5751)
Cash flows from operating activities RETBHRERERE
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRENISBiATER],(E518) 15,871 (197,179)
Adjustments for: HEIEE
Interest income FEMA (8,352) (4,277)
Finance costs BB A 30,195 25,971
Impairment loss recognised on intangible assets H|EEERRREEE - 12,529
Amortisation of intangible assets BB 1,438 1,358
Write off of intangible assets B EENE 837 -
Loss on disposal of intangible assets HERPEE BB 3,686 -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment WE - BERRETE 55,737 63,842
Share of results of an associate A= YNCIE (21) 289
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWE  BERKREZESE 7,745 2,838
Write off of property, plant and equipment YE - R KR E M 50,729 -
Impairment loss recognised on trade TLEWE F R M EREIEER
and notes receivables BIEE B 61,791 26,892
Impairment loss recognised on prepayments, BIENRIR « HE RHALEYEIAR
deposits and other receivables R B IEEE 43,279 2,116
Reversal of impairment loss recognised in trade TEKE FRE M EREIEER
and notes receivables B E R (606) (1,790)
Reversal of impairment loss recognised TIEN TR « e REA UK
in prepayments, deposits and other receivables R R EEERE = (1,788)
(Reversal of write down)/write down of inventories FEOHRER ), s 1,459 25,395
Write off of inventories recognised as an expense REEMEER AR - 1,607
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & W B N Rl E A s (1,868) (13,963)
Loss on refund B mBiE & = 257,818
Share-based payment expenses PARR D RET 2 R F X 14,811 -
Operating profit before changes in working capital BEE S EERINEERT 276,731 201,658
Decrease in inventories FERD 37,159 6,678
Increase in trade and notes receivables [EUE 55008 & R U E R 5 N (704,551) (369,937)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and other receivables FE{FRIE « &4 & B4 fE UL B 12 N (121,290) (173,874)
Increase in amounts due from related parties FEU R A T FUBEE N (53,235) (3,005)
Decrease/(increase) in amount due from an associate  JEUE# & N B IER D /(35 0) 1,958 (1,958)
Increase in trade and notes payables FERTE 5308 MR =L 509,322 275,667
Increase in other payables, receipts in advance E‘nﬂrﬁ'ﬁm - TEWCERIE & e B RSN
and accrued charges 108,344 124,018
Increase/(decrease) in provision for refund and warranty 2 & B4 R E R 0,/ CRid 169 (80)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 2201441231 H 1+ F/Z

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBFT
(Restated)
(g E=7)
Cash generated from operations RECEEBNES 54,607 59,167
Interest paid EENEUE) (30,195) (25,971)
Income tax paid BTG (11,026) (786)
Net cash generated from operating activities RECETHNESTFE 13,386 32,410
Investing activities RETED
Interest received REVEGUF) 8,352 4,277
Increase in pledged bank deposits BIRRITIEFUEM (182,680) (96,793)
Payments to acquire property, plant and equipment  BBE#% - BE LR ETE (89,113) (66,181)
Payments to acquire intangible assets REEPEEZRE (468) (779
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BEKREMEHE
plant and equipment 1,860 3,070
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets HESKEEMSHEA 23,585 -
Increase in time deposits TEHEFIEM (60,000) -
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of subsidiaries HEMBRRELAZ RS RAFE 5,681 10,304
Net cash used in investing activities ARBREZHNRS TR (292,783) (146,102)
Financing activities MEED
Dividends paid ERRE (8,114) -
Bank loans raised SERITERN 655,898 605,358
Other loans raised EEHMER 48,697 -
Repayment of bank loans BERITEN (596,149) (576,177)
Repayment of other loans BEEMER (3,976) -
Increase in amount due to a director JERTE EFIAE AN 41,683 1,000
Increase in amounts due to related parties JEE 1<) B 2 A - FRIRE 21,671 -
Increase in amount due to an associate FETHE &N R FRIBIE AN 3 -
Proceeds from placing of shares Bl S %17 iS008 46,749 -
Net cash generated from financing activities METHELENESFE 206,462 30,181
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z20144 12531 H 1F F/Z

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBFT

(Restated)

(gE5))

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ReRBESEEERFERY (72,935) (83,511)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FYEERHALEEER 195,360 278,749

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ERSBHNTE (196) 122

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRASRALEEER 122,229 195,360
Analysis of the balances of cash ReRBEEEEBEBRINT

and cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash RITHEHRIRE 122,229 195,360

Non-cash transaction FEERH

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group acquired EZE2014F12A31HIFE  AEFESHERE
property, plant and equipment of RMB18,625,000 (2013: Nil) under BT Z#% - %E RE#K1E A ARK18,625,000
finance leases. (20134 : &) o
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RE R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z20144 12531 H 1 F/Z

GENERAL

SCUD Group Limited (the “Company”) is a public limited
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 20 July 2006 as
an exempted company with limited liability and its shares were
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 21 December 2006.

The Company’s principal activity is investment holding and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in manufacture and sale of
lithium—ion battery modules and related accessories for mobile
phones, tablets and digital electronic appliances, while also
engaging in manufacture and sale of lithium-ion bare battery
cells.

ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRS")

(@) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs - effective 1
January 2014

IAS 32 Amendment
BB & 2ERIE 325 (185 A)

IAS 36 Amendment
Bl ERIE 365 (185 A)

IAS 39 Amendment
BIBR 25T 2RI E 3958 (185 AN)

IFRS 10,12 and IAS 27 Amendments

BIPR B T S L RIZE 1057 - 1257 REERS
KB ERIE275% (BRI AR)

IFRIC 21 Levies

B BRERERESE215% #aE

The adoption of these amendments has no material impact
on the Group's financial statements.

2.

Investment Entities

—RER
REMREEFR AR ARQE ])R2006%F7 A
Q0B EHEREFMR I EEREZ LTAER
NaE HIRH 200612 21 BEFTBH AR
SEBRA T (TEARAT])ERET °

ARBMEBEBR/REZR - REKBE QA
TENFRUTE  PREBMLRBERETE
MRz BB FERRENBEE ZEER
HE  MMEFRBETFEC L EERBHE o

B A B PR B 7% o 2 R (T B BR B

B2/ )

(a) AWK EETARSBREE
RBl- B2014F 1 B1BEN

Presentation — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

2 - EEMBEERMBEE

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

FUMBEEZATRESERE

Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting
PTET A ERRE Pt 2 LA

RAZEFETAEAREYBRRMES
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2. ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL 2. BR4WEER Bt 783K <E 2 8| ([ B Bt
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRS") (Continued) FEIRELER |) 2

(b) New/revised IFRSs that have been issued but are (b) ERTEMRERZHTEETH
not yet effective BREF R 5 2E B

IFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle? ERGTRERE (BTR) 20105220125 BENERRE
IFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle! BREBREEN (BIK)  0NERNBERENERHE
IFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle? BEEBREEN(BIR)  0NEENUEESNEEWE
Amendments to A5 1 Disclosure Initiative? BRe el IR (IR REHS

(&
BREEMETR(BTR)  REDH
BREHEHENE(ETR) RARGEERAEEH AR
Amendments to IAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and AR ElE 6 REE  RENERBEZARNNE
and 145 38 Amortisation? S:1E8|538% (BT)
Amendments to IAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants® ERSHENZ 6T RER  BE: 4EMAD
and IS 41 SHEAENREITR)
Amendments to 1AS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements? EReHENZTR(BIF) BUBBRR ERE

Disclosure Initiative*
Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses*

Amendments to IAS 7
Amendments to IAS 12

IFRS 9 Finandial Instruments? ELRE R 2R 2% BHIAS

IFRS 14 Requlatory Deferral Accounts’ BRIRALEEI 2145 EERLER

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers? BRIRREEI 2155 BRaflE’

IFRS 16 Leases? il e AT A

Amendments to FRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-Based Payment EROBRE R 205 DR BERHFRRR S
Transactions® (TR ARRHES

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
and IAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture?
Amendments to IFRS 10,

IFRS 12 and IAS 28
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Amendments to IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations®

Amendments to IFRS 15
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Effective for annual periods beginning, or transactions
occurring, on or after 1 July 2014

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2017

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019

The amendments were originally intended to be
effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016. The effective date has now been deferred/
removed. Early application of the amendments of the
amendments continue to be permitted.
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2. ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL 2. BB ERE &R ([ ERRE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRS") (Continued) LR | 2)

(b) New/revised IFRSs that have been issued but are (b) BERTEEKREMZHTKIETHE

not yet effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle, 2011-2013
Cycle and 2012-2014 Cycle

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to a number of
standards where they are currently unclear. They include
amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment to
clarify how the gross carrying amount and accumulated
depreciation are treated where an entity uses the
revaluation model. The carrying amount of the asset is
restated to revalued amount. The accumulated depreciation
may be eliminated against the gross carrying amount of
the asset. Alternatively, the gross carrying amount may
be adjusted in a manner consistent with the revaluation
of the carrying amount of the asset and the accumulated
depreciation is adjusted to equal the difference between
the gross carrying amount and the carrying amount after
taking into account accumulated impairment losses.

Amendments to IAS 1 - Disclosure Initiative

The amendments are designed to encourage entities to use
judgement in the application of IAS 1 when considering the
layout and content of their financial statements.

An entity’s share of other comprehensive income from
equity accounted interests in associates and joint ventures
will be split between those items that will and will not be
reclassified to profit or loss, and presented in aggregate as
a single line item within those two groups.

Amendments to IAS 7 — Disclosure Initiative

The amendments introduce an additional disclosure that will
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities.

Amendments to IAS 12 — Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments relate to the recognition of deferred tax
assets and clarify some of the necessary considerations,
including how to account for deferred tax assets related to
debt instruments measured of fair value.
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(b) New/revised IFRSs that have been issued but are
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not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 - Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to IAS 16 prohibit the use of a revenue—
based depreciation method for items of property, plant
and equipment. The amendments to IAS 38 introduce a
rebuttable presumption that amortisation based on revenue
is not appropriate for intangible assets. This presumption
can be rebutted if either the intangible asset is expressed
as a measure of revenue or revenue and the consumption
of the economic benefits of the intangible asset are highly
correlated.

Amendments to IAS 27 — Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

The amendments allow an entity to apply the equity
method in accounting for its investments in subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates in its separate financial
statements.

IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Debt instruments
that are held within a business model whose objective is
to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
(the business model test) and that have contractual terms
that give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
(the contractual cash flow characteristics test) are generally
measured at amortised cost. Debt instruments that meet
the contractual cash flow characteristics test are measured
at FVTOCI if the objective of the entity’s business model is
both to hold and collect the contractual cash flows and to
sell the financial assets. Entities may make an irrevocable
election at initial recognition to measure equity instruments
that are not held for trading at FVTOCI. All other debt and
equity instruments are measured at FVTPL.
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2. ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL 2. BB ERE &R ([ ERRE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRS") (Continued) LR | 2)

(b) New/revised IFRSs that have been issued but are (b) BERTEEKREMZHTKIETHE

not yet effective (Continued)
IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

IFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment model
for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL replacing
the incurred loss model in IAS 39 and new general hedge
accounting requirements to allow entities to better reflect
their risk management activities in financial statements.

IFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification and
measurement requirements for financial liabilities from
IAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated at FVTPL,
where the amount of change in fair value attributable to
change in credit risk of the liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income unless that would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch. In addition, IFRS 9 retains the
requirements in IAS 39 for derecognition of financial assets
and financial liabilities.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 December 2014, directors of
the Company anticipate that the application of the expected
credit loss model of IFRS 9 may result in earlier recognition
of credit losses on the Group’s financial assets measured
at amortised cost taking into account the estimated credit
risk of customers and other debtors the Group has business
with and the actual impairment of receivables experienced.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the effect of IFRS 9 until the Group performs
a detailed review. On the other hand, the management
will assess the business model in relation to the Group’s
investment portfolio at initial application of IFRS 9.
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(b) New/revised IFRSs that have been issued but are (b) BBITEEKRERZHIT KIETEH
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not yet effective (Continued)
IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In July 2014, IFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. IFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including 1AS 18 "Revenue”, IAS 11 "Construction
contracts” and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e  Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

e  Step 5: Recognise revenue when each performance
obligation is satisfied

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when control of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in IFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures
are required by IFRS 15.
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(b) New/revised IFRSs that have been issued but are (b) BERTEEKREMZHTKIETHE

not yet effective (Continued)

IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

Directors of the Company anticipate that the IFRS 15 in the
future may have significant impact on amounts reported
in the consolidated financial statements. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
IFRS 15 until the Group has performed a detailed review.

IFRS 16 — Leases

IFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. It distinguishes
leases and service contracts on the basis of whether an
identified asset is controlled by a customer. Subject to
limited exceptions for short-term leases and low value
assets, distinctions of operating and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model
where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability
have to be recognised for all leases by lessees. However,
the standard does not significantly change the accounting
of lessors.

Application of IFRS 16 will result in the Group’s recognition
of right-of-use assets and corresponding liabilities in
respect of many of the Group’s lease arrangements.
These assets and liabilities are currently not required to be
recognised but certain relevant information is disclosed as
commitments in Note 36. The directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of IFRS 16 in the future
will have an impact on the Group's consolidated financial
statements; however, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the effect until the Group performs
a detailed review.
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REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRS") (cContinued)

(b) New/revised IFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 2 - Classification and
Measurement of Share-Based Payment Transactions

The amendments provide requirements on the accounting
for the effects of vesting and non-vesting conditions on
the measurement of cash-settled share-based payments;
share—based payment transactions with a net settlement
feature for withholding tax obligations; and a modification
to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment that
changes the classification of the transaction from cash—
settled to equity—settled.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and |IAS 28 - Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses to be
recognised when an entity sells or contributes assets to its
associate or joint venture. When the transaction involves
a business the gain or loss is recognised in full, conversely
when the transaction involves assets that do not constitute
a business the gain or loss is recognised only to the extent
of the unrelated investors' interests in the joint venture or
associate.

Amendments to IFRS 11— Accounting for Acquisitions
of Interests in Joint Operations

The amendments require an entity to apply all of the
principles of IFRS 3 Business Combinations when it acquires
an interest in a joint operation that constitutes a business
as defined in that standard. The principles of IFRS 3 are
also applied upon the formation of a joint operation if an
existing business as defined in that standard is contributed
by at least one of the parties.

Amendments IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Clarifications to IFRS 15)

The amendments to IFRS 15 included clarifications on
identification of performance obligations; application of
principal versus agent; licenses of intellectual property; and
transition requirements.
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2. ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRS") (Continued)

(b) New/revised IFRSs that have been issued but are

(c)

not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Clarifications to IFRS 15) (Continued)

Other than disclosed above, the directors anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised IFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

New Companies Ordinance provisions relating to
the preparation of financial statements

The provisions of the new Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622,
in relation to the preparation of financial statements will
apply to the Company in its first financial year beginning
on or after 3 March 2014 (i.e. the financial year ending 31
December 2015).

The directors consider that there will be no impact on the
Group's financial position or performance, however the
new Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622, would have impacts
on the presentation and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. For example, there will be no
requirement to include a statement of financial position of
the Company and related notes, and statutory disclosures
will be simplified.

3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable IFRSs, International Accounting Standards
("IASs") issued by the International Accounting Standard
Board (“IASB") and Interpretations issued by the International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee of the IASB
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “IFRS”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, the financial statements include
applicable disclosure required by Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

(b) Basis of measurement

116

(c)

(d)

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Chinese Renminbi
("RMB"), which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company.

Prior year adjustments and restatements

(i)

As stated in the announcements of the Company dated
24 April 2015 and 29 May 2015, the Company has
established the Independent Board Committee (the
“IBC") comprising all the independent non-executive
directors of the Company to investigate certain matters
(the “Matters”) observed by the Company’s predecessor
auditors during the performance of their audit of the
Company’s consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2014 (“FY2014") and raised in
their resignation letter dated 2 April 2015. The Company
has engaged an independent third party investigator to
assist in the investigation (the “Investigation”).

According to the findings of the Investigation, the
main cause of the Matters was that Scud Battery
Co., Ltd. (“Scud Battery”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group engaging in the Own-brand Business,
had excess recall and incurred a significant loss
in connection with such excess recall when it
implemented the Own-brand Battery Recall Plan in the
year ended 31 December 2013 (“FY2013").

Based on the Investigation, it was discovered that
the financial data of Scud Battery for FY2013 and
FY2014 contained misstatements. The misstatements
of financial data were attributed to the senior
management of Scud Battery, namely the then
general manager (the “Then General Manager of Scud
Battery”) and the then finance control director (the
“Then Finance Control Director of Scud Battery”) of
Scud Battery, who concealed the significant loss of
recalled products arising from the Own-Brand Battery
Recall Plan organised by the Then General Manager
of Scud Battery during the period between the year
ended 31 December 2012 (“FY2012") and FY2013.
The Then Finance Control Director of Scud Battery
admitted that she has omitted to declare value-added
tax (“VAT") and income tax of Scud Battery during the
period between FY2013 and FY2014.

3. 2HEEsm)
HBHEE
B RS SRR T LA S0 AR A B A Y o

(b)

(c)

(d)

EER 258
BBHRRDAARE(TAREDZY - B
HEARNBHINEERERER o

BEFERARRES

(@)

BN R BEIA2015F4 4248 K
20155829 AEMHE - AR
ERARNARZEB Y IFNITES
HRHWBYEEZES((BUESE
ZEg ) BAR R A% BT R E
ZE2014F12 8318 L FE (1201484
FDREEREBARRGRAE TR
=EFBERMNETEHE(ZESHE]
BTAE - WH2015F482HIER
B - ARRIEZEBYE=FHA
EREHFAS(THAE]) -

BEASHEREATR  ZEBE2EE
RARAREREBGRAR([FRELR
B AEEZEEMEBEAR  #
EEBAMBER)REE2013F12A4
318 IEFE (201381 4F |) B i b2
Bt B UK AT B R B A B B W B 4
WA EBER R MR EAIERX -

BIE & - B20138F F &20148F
F O REREMA I EEIREIRE
o MBBENERFELENRERSE
HHEAEREAER  BERNRER
B RLIE ([FRERE DR FBL
BRERNVBEELE(RE
BREMFTHBHEEELE])  BE
iR T REIE2012F12 8318 IH4F
JE(1201281 F J) 22013684 4F HAfA) -
FARERRE S R T AR A IR 4B A 0 S 12
B AT SIS B E R E R E
KIBK - REBREMBTHEERR
EEEGR - R20138 F KX20148F F &
M FRHRARTERE A IEER (18
B ) RFAEH -



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREBBRAF

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2014

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z20144 12531 H 1 F/Z

3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

(d) Prior year adjustments and restatements (Continued)

(ii)

Furthermore, it was discovered in the Investigation that
Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Scud Electronics”),
another wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group mainly
engaging in original design and manufacturing
business (“ODM Business”) of the Group, had omitted
to declare income tax in FY2013 and FY2014. The
finance and treasury functions of Scud Electronics
were centrally managed by The Then Finance Control
Director of Scud Battery. The Then Finance Control
Director of Scud Battery admitted that she has omitted
to declare income tax of Scud Electronics during the
period between FY2013 and FY2014.

A summary of the key findings of the Investigation is
set out in the announcement of the Company dated
14 June 2016.

In the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements of the year ended 31 December 2014, the
directors of the Company have taken into account
all the findings of the Investigation and made
adjustments to the consolidated financial statements,
including prior year adjustments to the comparative
information for the year ended 31 December 2013 as
described below, to correct the material misstatements
uncovered by the Investigation.

The Own-Brand Battery Recall Plan was implemented
during the period between FY2012 and FY2013.
It is impracticable to assess whether any part of
the misstatements were incurred in FY2012. In this
circumstance, all misstatements identified that had
happened on or before 31 December 2013 were
corrected in the year ended 31 December 2013.

The effects of the prior year adjustments to reflect the
findings of the Investigation are set out below.

3. 2HEEm
(d) BAEFERERES(2)

(ii)
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3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued) 3. 2HEEm)
(d) Prior year adjustments and restatements (Continued) (d BEFEFERBRENE)
(iii) In addition to the effect of correction of misstatements (i) B4 FRAEERIERGTZES) -
identified by the Investigation, certain comparative FHRUEERDETH @E&/jzg
financial information were reallocated and/or WHAKE - LB F2014E12 8310
reclassified in order to conform with the presentation FEE Y AN HRE 2T —8 - &
of the consolidated financial statements for the year SEREITEBIINT o

ended 31 December 2014, details of which are also
set out below.

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other FRERREMEEIKNZE
comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE2013F12A31HIEFE
Effect on under-
estimation of Effect on
the Own-Brand  reallocation and
Battery Recall Plan classification
EtimeEi EfR
2013 U2 RAETE 2013
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

(As previously

reported) Note (d)iv) Note (d)lv) (Restated)
e HE (i) HEE () (B E5)
Tumover e2E 2,392,490 3326 - 2,395,816
Cost of sales HEMA (2,020,361) - - (2,020,361)
Gross profit 7 372,129 3,326 - 375,455
Other revenue Hilhzs 17,990 (623) 1,606 18,973
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEY (57,497) - - (57,497
Administrative expenses THFER (259,420) 108 (1,606) (260,918)
Other operating expenses Hig gy (3,077) - - (3,077)
Finance costs BARKE (25,971) - - (25,971)
Share of results of an associate [EEBENRLE (289) - - (289)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net HERBARZ U FE 13,963 - - 13,963
Loss on refund EmBiE% (10,700) (247,118) - (257,818)
Profit/loss) before income tax BEERREH/ (BB) 47,128 (244,307) - (197,179)
Income tax Frigsi (19,654) 61,077 - 41,423
Profitoss) for the year KERER/ (BR) 27474 (183,230) - (155,756)
Other comprehensive income for the year, REEHAEMIENE :
net of tax:
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to 4B BRI RENSEZRENER
profit or loss
- Exchange differences on translating -REBNER ST
foreign operations (4,228) - - (4,228)
- Reclassification adjustment relating to -BREEENER ENH B
disposal of foreign operations (14,631) - - (14,631)
Other comprehensive income for the year,  AEEREL 2 ENE
net of tax (18,859) - - (18,859)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEE2ENRAE 8,615 (183,230) - (174,615)
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued) 3. 2FEE

(d) Prior year adjustments and restatements (Continued) (d) BEFERABRESN (&)
Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other GEBEmRAMEE K E % (E)
comprehensive income (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2013 EHZE2013F 128318 LFE

Effect on under-

estimation of Effect on
the Own-Brand  reallocation and
Battery Recall Plan classification
EERRED ENOR
2013 ELGEEEZ RABE 2013
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

(As previously

reported) Note (d)(iv) Note (d)(v) (Restated)
(ERRE) HizH(d)(v) W) (f&=3])
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: THATEEAER G :
Owners of the Company FREHBA 38,294 (183,230) - (144,936)
Non-controlling interests SRR (10,820) - - (10,820)
27474 (183,230) - (155,756)
Total comprehensive income THATEE2 B
attributable to: 8%
Owners of the Company FRAEBA 19,435 (183,230) - (163,795)
Non-controlling interests SRR (10,820) - - (10,820)
8,615 (183,230) - (174,615)
Earings/(losses) per share BREH/(B58)
- Basic (RMB cents) -EX(ARED) 37 (17.75) - (14.04)
- Diluted (RMB cents) -BE(ARED) 3.7 (17.75) - (14.04)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 220144125315 1F F/E

3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

(d) Prior year adjustments and restatements (Continued)

3. 2HEEsm)
(d) BEFERERES(2)

Consolidated statement of financial position

As at 31 December 2013

AR BRI
M2013F12A31H

Effect on under-
estimation of Effect on

the Own-Brand reallocation and

Battery Recall Plan classification
EEREEN ENAR
2013 EDEEEZ RAE%E 2013
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT
(As previously

reported) Note (d)(iv) Note (d)(v) (Restated)
(ERiEE) HiEE(d)v) HEE(d)) (& #31)

Non-current assets *RBEE
Property, plant and equipment nE - BEREE 348,819 - - 348,819
Intangible assets EVEE 31,739 - - 31,739
Interest in an associate MENAER 1,400 - - 1,400
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables B ZE %4 REMENTE - - 38,934 38,934
Deferred tax assets ELRERE 29,017 61,077 - 90,094
Total non-current assets FrPEELR 410,975 61,077 38,934 510,986

Current assets REBEE

Inventories & 423,987 - - 423,987
Trade and notes receivables EWE SHARERESE 576,047 (26,764) 2,049 551,332
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  FFTFE » &4 REMELFUE 317322 - (26,450) 290,872
Amounts due from related parties ElEEALE 1,929 - 2,804 4733
Amount due from an associate EWHEAFFE 1,075 - 883 1,958
Pledged bank deposits BHEARIER 239,424 - - 239,424
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRE 353,819 (158,459) - 195,360
Total current assets NHEEDE 1,913,603 (185,223) (20,714) 1,707,666
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 2201441231 H 1+ F/Z

3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued) 3. 2FEE
(d) Prior year adjustments and restatements (Continued) (d) BEFERABRESN (&)
Consolidated statement of financial position =y S O
As at 31 December 2013 M2013F12A31H

Effect on under-

estimation of Effect on
the Own-Brand  reallocation and
Battery Recall Plan dlassification
EfREE ENAR
2013 ELGEEEZ Ra%%E 2013
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARETTL ARETT AREFT ARETT
(As previously
reported) Note (d)(iv) Note (d)(v) (Restated)
(ERRE) HizE()v) FEE()) (1 E31)
Current liabilities hBEE
Trade and notes payables EIEATERENER 720,051 - 6,356 726,407
Other payables, receipts in advance and EREMFIE - BIGE L e BA
accrued charges 94,926 51,153 10,864 156,943
Provisions for refund and warranty EmblRREEES 2,935 - - 2,935
Bank loans - current portion BIER-RBHH 320,511 - - 320,511
Amount due to a director ERESHE - - 1,000 1,000
Current tax payable [ERENEARE 9,436 7,931 - 17,367
Total current liabilites nHEEERE 1,147,859 59,084 18,220 1,225,163
Net current assets RBEEFE 765,744 (244,307) (38,934) 482,503
Total assets less current liabilities BEEFNRBAR 1,176,719 (183,230) - 993,489
Non-current liabilities bk )=
Bank loans - non-current portion BIER-FRaHH 292 - - 292
Deferred tax liabilities EHEAR 5,360 - - 5,360
Total non-current liablities FEnSEELE 5,652 - - 5,652
Net Assets FEE 1,171,067 (183,230) - 987,837
Capital and reserves BAR &
Share capital e 103,014 - - 103,014
Reserves Al 1,019,343 (183,230) - 836,113
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AL EE AEEER 1,122,357 (183,230) - 939,127
Non-controlling interests FERER 48,710 - - 48,710
Total equity L 1,171,067 (183,230) - 987,837
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 220144125315 1F F/E

3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued) 3. EIEEw
(d) Prior year adjustments and restatements (Continued) (d) BEFERABRESN(Z)
Consolidated statement of cash flows LRBELHER
For the year ended 31 December 2013 BHZE2013F12A31HIEFE
Adjustment
2013 ik 2013
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETI ARETT ARETT

(As previously

reported) Note (d)(vi) (Restated)
Ok ) WEE(dvi) )
Cash flows from operating activities BETBMERENE
Profit/(loss) before income tax BREERATER/ (BE) 47,128 (244,307) (197,179)
Adjustments for: HEER
Interest income FIEMA (4,900) 623 (@,277)
Finance costs BERK 25,971 - 25,971
Impairment loss recognised on intangible assets REFEEEAZNESE 12,529 - 12,529
Amortisation of intangible assets EEESH 1,358 - 1,358
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment nE - BERRERE 63,842 - 63,842
Share of results of an associate [l ENGEE 289 - 289
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment ﬁ%%% BERREZER 2,838 - 2,838
Impairment loss recognised on trade and REWE 57E R EREERED
notes receivables REER 26,892 - 26,892
Impairment loss recognised on prepayment, REETE - e REMEYE
deposits and other receivables BRZAEER 2,116 - 2,116
Reversal of impairment loss recognised on trade and HENESFERENZERER L
notes receivables REBEER (1,790) - (1,790)
Reversal of impairment loss recognised on prepayment,  FLTEMFUE « k4 R E M EYWFE
deposits and other receivables B RESERRE (1,788) - (1,788)
Write down of inventories WRFE 25,395 - 25,395
Write off of inventories recognised as an expense FEMERRARST 1,607 - 1,607
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB A REREENE (13.963) - (13,963)
Loss on refund EmEiiak 10,700 247,118 257,818
Operating profit before changes in working capital 2EEREYAMELRT 198,144 3434 201,658
Decrease in inventories FERD 6,678 6,678
Increase in trade and notes receivables B E 5 0E R EME BN (108,825) (261,11 ) (369,937)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and other receivables  FBNFUE » & R E M EUFIEE M (161,390) (12,484) (173,874)
Increase in amounts due from related parties JEU R E AT FBE A (201) (2,804) (3,005)
Increase in amount due from an associate AN Ry (1,075) (883) (1,958)
Increase in trade and notes payables ijﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ&}%ﬁ%ﬁi@j}u 269,311 6,356 275,667
Increase in other payables, receipts in advance and MR - BRGUERET B RN
accrued charges 23,293 100,725 124,018
Decrease in provision for refund and warranty EmEN R REEERD (80) - (80)
Cash generated from operations RELSERNES 225,935 (166,768) 59,167
Interest paid 2AFE (25,971) - (25,971)
Income tax paid BREEH (8,717) 7,931 (786)
Net cash generated from operating activities RELEEDHRLFE 191,247 (158,837) 32,410
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3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued) 3. 23EEw
(d) Prior year adjustments and restatements (Continued) (d) BEFERABRESN (&)
Consolidated statement of cash flows (Continued) HGEBELhRER(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE2013F12A31HIEFE
Adjustment
2013 BE 2013
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT

(As previously

reported) Note (d)(vi) (Restated)

(Fri%E) HtEE(d)vi (15 %31)
Investing activities REEE
Interest received BleFIE 4,900 (623) 4,217
Increase in pledged bank deposits BEARTETLM (96,793) - (96,793)
Payments to acquire property, plant and equipment RENE  BRLRETE (66,181) - (66,181)
Payments to acquire intangible assets BEEVAERE (779) - (779)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment  HEWE « BE RREMGHE 3,070 - 3,070
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of a subsidiaries HEMBAREAZBERAFE 10,304 - 10,304
Net cash used in investing activities BRREEBNRLTFE (145,479) (623) (146,102)
Financing activities BETE
Bank loans raised EEBAER 605,358 - 605,358
Repayment of bank loans BEBTER (576,177) - (576,177)
Increase in amount due to a director ENEEFEEM - 1,000 1,000
Net cash generated from financing activities RETBELNRSTE 29,181 1,000 30,181
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents BERBLZEERTELEM/ (HY) 74,949 (158,460) (83,511)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ENReRRESEER 278,749 - 278,749
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes Exg8NE 121 1 122
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ERRERREZEER 353,819 (158,459) 195,360
Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents B& KRR EEEEE LB
Bank balances and cash BTEBRES 353,819 (158,459) 195,360
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3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued) 3. 2IEEw
(d) Prior year adjustments and restatements (Continued) d) BEFERBREN(E)
Consolidated statement of change in equity R X
For the year ended 31 December 2013 BHZE2013F12A31HIEFE
Adjustment
2013 aE 2013
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT

(As previously

reported) Note (d)(vi) (Restated)
(ZaEs) Mz ()i (fE=31)
Share capital R 103,014 - 103,014
Share premium Bi&EE 577,115 - 577,115
Capital reserve EXGE 186,215 - 186,215
Statutory reserve fund ETLEE 105,834 - 105,834
Enterprise expansion fund TEERES 53,676 - 53,676
Translation reserve R (61,596) - (61,59)
Retained profits/(accumulated losses) RABR/ (ZitEE) 158,099 (183,230) (25,131)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company KLAER AR 1,122,357 (183,230) 939,127
Non-controlling interests RS 48,710 - 48,710
Total equity g 1,171,067 (183,230) 987,837
(iv) Underestimation of the quantity of recalled own- (iv) 1Ef5201381 FmEEhE W E
brand batteries in FY2013
Based on the Investigation, the Matters originated from BIEAE  ZEFHBERRERE D
the Own-Brand Battery Recall Plan proposed by the B (T A8 A 38 7A201 284 FF 7 3% 1) @ h&2
Then General Manager of Scud Battery in FY2012. The BB ET & o Gh AR E B ET R A
purpose of the Own-Brand Battery Recall Plan was to B /) 2E mEIUAERE N RERE LD
recall the excess and unsold batteries under the Scud HE PSR R R E B
Battery brand stocked by Scud Battery’s distributors in m o RS HE 2 ER &R EAS
order to ease such distributors’ operating cash flow. As AR o ARIEFRERRE M e (AR IR PR
stated by the Then General Manager of Scud Battery, it A LU R R o R AR AL
such plan was intended to motivate the distributors ANMEREMDREERHWEBEALE
to cooperate with Scud Battery as soon as possible in NHIGBEIRERS

expanding the power bank business that was expected
to have great potential.
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3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

(d) Prior year adjustments and restatements (Continued)

(iv)

Underestimation of the quantity of recalled own-
brand batteries in FY2013 (Continued)

The Then General Manager of Scud Battery was
responsible for planning and coordinating the Own-
Brand Battery Recall Plan. According to the estimates
prior to the recall action, approximately 12 million
pieces of batteries would be recalled from the
distributors under the Own-Brand Battery Recall Plan.
Based on the recall figures estimated by the Then
General Manager of Scud Battery, the Board approved
the Own-Brand Battery Recall Plan in September 2012.
Scud Battery formally implemented the Own-Brand
Battery Recall Plan in the fourth quarter of 2012 and
expected it to end before 30 June 2013.

As disclosed in the Company’s annual report for
FY2012, Scud Battery made a total provision of
approximately RMB152,000,000 in FY2012 for the
loss of recalled products in respect of approximately 4
million pieces of batteries recalled in FY2012 and the
own-brand battery expected to be recalled in FY2013.
It was estimated that the batteries being recalled in
the Own-Brand Battery Recall Plan had a net realisable
value of approximately RMB16,895,000. Later, Scud
Battery made a further provision of approximately
RMB10,700,000 for the additional loss in respect
of product recall in FY2013. As disclosed in the
Company’s annual report for FY2013, that the entire
Own-Brand Battery Recall Plan resulted in a total loss
on refund of approximately RMB162,000,000 and
approximately 12 million pieces of batteries were
recalled.

However, the Then General Manager of Scud Battery
underestimated the volume of batteries recalled
and the loss from the return of goods of the Own-
Brand Battery Recall Plan as a whole, and the Then
General Manager of Scud Battery did not keep the
recall under control in time so that, ultimately, around
23 million pieces of batteries in total were actually
recalled from the distributors, represented an excess of
approximately 11 million pieces more than the original
estimated recall quantity. The Then General Manager
of Scud Battery privately sought assistance from the
Then Finance Control Director of Scud Battery.

3. 2HEEm
(d) BAEFERBRES(2)

(iv)
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3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

(d) Prior year adjustments and restatements (Continued)

126

(iv)

(Continued)

Plan to conceal approximately 11 million pieces of
unrecorded recalled batteries

In April 2013, the Then General Manager of Scud
Battery disclosed to the Then Finance Control Director
of Scud Battery that since there was a problem
regarding a serious excess recall under the Own-
Brand Battery Recall Plan, a large quantity of 11
million pieces of recalled batteries unbudgeted for was
expected to arrive.

The Then Finance Control Director of Scud Battery
believed the significant loss of recalled products had a
significant adverse impact on the financial statements
and bank financing of Scud Battery. As the Then
General Manager of Scud Battery said the recalled
batteries might be sold overseas in the near future,
the Then Finance Control Director of Scud Battery
consented to not recording the 11 million pieces of
excess batteries recalled in the books and records
of Scud Battery. Therefore, Scud Battery recorded
in its management accounts a total loss of recalled
products of approximately RMB162,000,000 only and
approximately 12 million pieces of recalled batteries
only during the period between FY2012 and FY2013.
The 11 million pieces of recalled batteries unbudgeted
for and its financial impact were off-booked.

Concealment of losses in connection with
approximately 11 million pieces of unrecorded
recalled batteries

In the first half of 2013, the Then General Manager
of Scud Battery was unable to find a suitable channel
for selling the recalled batteries. The Then Finance
Control Director of Scud Battery having considered the
accounts receivables in relation to approximately 11
million pieces of unrecorded recalled batteries, were
in fact offset against the relevant recalled batteries.
However, as this portion of the recalled batteries
were not recorded in the books and records of Scud
Battery, therefore these accounts receivables that
should have been offset were not deducted from the
accounts receivables in the books and records of Scud
Battery. Those portions of accounts receivable might
lead to the discovery of the concealed excess recalled
batteries because those accounts receivables were not
recovered for a long period of time. The Then Finance
Control Director of Scud Battery sought advice from
a person (the “Third Party” who, accordingly to the
Then General Manager of Scud Battery and The Then
Finance Control Director of Scud Battery, assisted in
providing forged documentation and manipulating
financial data in respect of FY2013 and FY2014, and
which is not a staff member of the Group).

3. 2HEEm)
(d) BEFERERES(2)

(iv)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z20144 12531 H 1 F/Z

3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

(d) Prior year adjustments and restatements (Continued)

(iv)

(Continued)

Concealment of losses in connection with
approximately 11 million pieces of unrecorded
recalled batteries (Continued)

With the assistance of the Third Party, the Then
Finance Control Director of Scud Battery obtained a
series of forged bank receipts and bank statements of
a bank for forging statement on collection of accounts
receivables and instructed the finance department of
Scud Battery in the ordinary course of daily financial
procedures to record a range of non-existing accounts
receivable settlements during the period between May
2013 and FY2014. This resulted in a false increase of
approximately RMB177,000,000 and RMB78,000,000
in Scud Battery’'s bank receipts in FY2013 and
FY2014 respectively and hence an overstatement
of Scud Battery’'s bank balance of approximately
RMB177,000,000 and RMB255,000,000 as at 31
December 2013 and 31 December 2014, respectively.
In the course of the Investigation, the Then Finance
Control Director of Scud Battery did not provide any
contact information of the Third Party.

False statement of Scud Battery’s sales of
approximately 12 million pieces of already
recorded recalled batteries and related financial
data

The Then General Manager of Scud Battery estimated
that the recalled battery products under the Own-
Brand Battery Recall Plan had a net realisable value
of approximately RMB16,895,000, so the Then
General Manager of Scud Battery negotiated with a
third party in FY2013 in connection with the sales
of approximately 12 million pieces of the already
recorded recalled batteries but failed to reach final
agreement on such sales. However, the Then General
Manager of Scud Battery wanted to demonstrate to
the management his ability to sell the recalled batteries
under the Own-Brand Battery Recall Plan, and as such
the Then General Manager of Scud Battery arranged
a salesperson to make a false report to the finance
department of Scud Battery during the period between
May and October 2013 that approximately 12 million
pieces of already recorded recalled batteries were sold
at a consideration of approximately RMB19,421,000
(excluding value added tax “VAT"). The finance
department of Scud Battery recorded this transaction
as revenue for FY2013.

Subsequently, the Then Finance Control Director of
Scud Battery obtained from the Third Party forged
bank receipts and bank statements and instructed
the finance department of Scud Battery to report the
collection of accounts receivables of approximately
RMB19,000,000 and approximately RMB4,000,000
in FY2013 and FY2014, respectively in relation to
the sales of those recorded recalled batteries (i.e.
approximately RMB23,000,000 was accumulated in
aggregate for FY2014).
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3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

(d) Prior year adjustments and restatements (Continued)

128

(iv)

(Continued)

False statement of Scud Battery’s sales of
approximately 12 million pieces of already
recorded recalled batteries and related financial
data (Continued)

The false statement of collection of accounts
receivables and revenue that began to take place in
FY2013 had resulted in the false increase of bank
balances of Scud Battery. In order to avoid the Board
and the predecessor auditors becoming suspicious and
having consulted the Third Party, the Then Finance
Control Director of Scud Battery gave the forged
bank interest receipts and bank statements of the
bank to the then cashier of Scud Battery and falsely
reported the bank interest income accordingly based
on the false increase of bank balances for FY2013 and
FY2014.

Write-downs of accumulated and undeclared tax
payable

During the period between FY2013 and FY2014, since
some of the customers of Scud Battery did not ask for
VAT sales invoices for some of the sales transactions
that occurred during the relevant periods, certain
portion of Scud Battery’s sales transactions for FY2013
and FY2014 for which no VAT sales invoices were
issued. Taking into account the recommendations from
the Third Party, since the losses from the large amount
of recalled batteries were not declared by Scud Battery
to the tax bureau, the Then Finance Control Director
of Scud Battery did not declare the sales (for which
no VAT sales invoices were issued) to tax authorities.
Since the tax authorities were entitled to recover
the avoided VAT, Scud Battery has been making full
provisions for VAT payable.

Since there was a large amount of false increase
of bank balances of Scud Battery due to the false
statement of collection of accounts receivables, with
the assistance of the Third Party, the Then Finance
Control Director of Scud Battery gave the forged tax
receipts of the bank to the finance department of
Scud Battery in the course of Scud Battery’s financial
reporting procedures, and the fictitious tax payments
were recorded during the period between FY2013
and FY2014 respectively. By this move, the Then
Finance Control Director of Scud Battery had written
back some of the falsely increased bank balances
and had reduced the tax payable of approximately
RMB38,000,000 and RMB41,000,000 for FY2013 and
FY2014 respectively (i.e. approximately RMB79,000,000
was accumulated in FY2014).
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3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

(d) Prior year adjustments and restatements (Continued)

(iv)

(Continued)

Providing forged VAT sales invoices to the
predecessor auditors

Scud Battery did not issue VAT sales invoices to the
relevant customers for some of the sales transactions
that occurred in FY2013 and FY2014. In order to
avoid the predecessor auditors questioning the
authenticity of such sales and Scud Battery’s omission
of declaration of the VAT for FY2013 and FY2014,
the Third Party suggested to the Then Finance Control
Director of Scud Battery that it should prepare a
set of forged VAT sales invoices for those sales
transactions without VAT sales invoices for the audit
purposes. Since the VAT sales invoices prepared by
the Third Party were inconsistent with those VAT
sales invoices produced by the tax bureau in terms
of invoice number and quality and the then on-site
audit work for Scud Electronics and Scud Battery were
done by the same team of auditors simultaneously,
in order to avoid the predecessor auditors becoming
suspicious of the invoices of Scud Battery provided by
the Third Party, the Then Finance Control Director of
Scud Battery took the advice of the Third Party and
prepared forged invoices of Scud Battery in FY2013
and FY2014 and a full set of forged VAT sales invoices
of Scud Electronics in FY2013 and FY2014, attaching
to the sales vouchers for that period and submitted to
the predecessor auditors for audit purposes.

A summary of the financial impact of the
misstatements for FY2013 are as follows:—

a. The gross profit of the falsed sales of the 12
million pieces of recorded recalled batteries of
approximately RMB2,526,000 (i.e. falsed sales
of approximately RMB19,421,000 minus the
estimated net realisable value of these pieces
of recorded recalled batteries of approximately
RMB16,895,000) was net off against the loss
of refund. The related accounts receivables and
VAT payables were overstated by approximately
RMB22,723,000 and RMB3,302,000, respectively
whereas inventories were understated by
approximately RMB16,895,000.

b. As a result of the concealment of the 11
million pieces of unrecorded recalled batteries,
inventories were understated by approximately
RMB183,625,000, accounts receivables were
overstated by approximately RMB266,406,000,
VAT payables were overstated by approximately
RMB38,709,000 and loss of refund was
understated by approximately RMB44,072,000.
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3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

(d) Prior year adjustments and restatements (Continued)

3. 2HEEm)
(d) BEFERERES(2)
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(iv) (Continued) (iv) (%)

Providing forged VAT sales invoices to the R EENIEEREERETATZ

predecessor auditors (Continued) gg’rﬁ(ﬁ)

c. Bank balance was overstated and accounts HREBREWEZSE N A
receivables were understated by approximately R ¥5177,000,0007T * LA B& B
RMB196,020,000 as a result of the falsed 1,100 B8 5 52 % 51 1 B 2 1A
accounts receivables settlements of approximately & 3 (a)B 32 & #91,2008 28
RMB177,000,000 to conceal the 11 million E & /@mﬁﬁfzggzq;g)\gagg
pieces of unrecorded recalled batteries and falsed 19,000,0007T © $RITRHBH S
settlement of approximately RMB19,000,000 5 B g B 2o (R ﬁgfjJ\Eﬁg
of the falsed sales of the 12 million pieces of 196,020,0007T °
recorded recalled batteries as mentioned in point
(a) above.

d. Loss on refund was understated and inventories d. R _Eita) & (o)A HiA2,300
were overstated by RMB200,520,000 since all & 88\ 6] 4 B EEE 0 E b
the 23 million pieces of recalled batteries as Eig sk EGE R FEE RS G
mentioned in points (a) and (b) above were of no AEM200,520,0007T °
value.

e. Interest income and bank balance were e. J:;_(C)Egiﬁﬁﬂ F 4E 17 U &7 2k 1
overstated by approximately RMB623,000 as ) B A B E R B
a result of falsed interest income arising from qu)\&ﬁﬂ E e S \/]}\Evgg
falsed bank balance as mentioned in point (c) 623,0007T °
above.

f. As a result of falsed tax payments, bank balance, f. EEIEAFE#E?FRIEH  SRITHERS
income tax payable and VAT payables were FE T ET B R K FE T IS E B A9 40
understated by approximately RMB38,183,000, S5 Bl 49 8 AR #538,183,000
RMB7,932,000, and RMB26,816,000, respectively, T }\E%Z%Z,OOOE&J\E
whereas other tax expenses of approximately #26,816,0007T * MEMFIES
RMB3,326,000 net off against turnover and H#9 A R #53,326,0007T F1 % &
RMB109,000 included in administrative expenses 2EE L AT AR
were overstated. 109,0007CH# = 1k °

g. Deferred tax assets of approximately g BELEBEEENARK
RMB61,076,000 were recognised based on the z=

v)

net loss effect of points (a) to (f) above at the tax
rate of Scud Battery of 25%.

Reclassifications mainly consisted of the following:

61,076,000 Jh iR 1% n“t(a)i
B2 FHIERERNRERE
2 FRE25%ER ©

%’I

BN BEEEREATAR

a. Government grant of approximately a.  BUFEEEY AR1,606,0007T
RMB1,606,000 is reclassified from administrative EEITTBZI?%S'ZE% A8 2 H A i
expenses to other revenue. %5 o

b. Deposits for purchase of property, plant and b. BEWE BMERBHB RS
equipment of approximately RMB38,934,000 %9 A R 38 934,0007T & 1 7
were reclassified from current assets to non- HEEE SR IERENEE o
current assets.

c.  Certain amounts due from/to related parties c. EW ENBEATETFZA
were reclassified from trade and notes and other Dl ENES%E . =
receivables and payables. EREMEIEEHDME -

(vi) This adjustment represents the net impact of points Vi) EAEEFBWEVEEEAE S

(iv) to (v) above on the consolidated statement of REEREAENEHENEYE .

cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in
equity.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation

4. EARHEE
() XBEHRECESE

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”). Inter—-company transactions and balances between
group companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or up
to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition—-date
fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
principally measured at acquisition—date fair value. The
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re—
measured at acquisition—date fair value and the resulting
gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group
may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to
measure the non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or
at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other non—controlling interests are measured at
fair value unless another measurement basis is required by
IFRSs. Acquisition—related costs incurred are expensed unless
they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case
the costs are deducted from equity.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

132

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition—date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about
the fair value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration classified as an
asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Contingent consideration balances arising from business
combinations whose acquisition dates preceded 1 January
2010 (i.e. the date the Group first applied IFRS 3 (2008))
have been accounted for in accordance with the transition
requirements in the standard. Such balances are not
adjusted upon first application of the standard. Subsequent
revisions to estimates of such consideration are treated as
adjustments to the cost of these business combinations and
are recognised as part of goodwill.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interest
and the non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are
accounted for in the same manner as would be required if
the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests
at initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s
share of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to such non-controlling interests even
if this results in those non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all
three of the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any
of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment
loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but not control or joint control over those
policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter,
their carrying amount are adjusted for the Group's share
of the post-acquisition change in the associates’ net assets
except that losses in excess of the Group’s interest in the
associate are not recognised unless there is an obligation to
make good those losses.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)
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Associates (Continued)

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the Group
and its associates are recognised only to the extent of
unrelated investors’ interests in the associate. The investor’s
share in the associate’s profits and losses resulting from
these transactions is eliminated against the carrying value
of the associate. Where unrealised losses provide evidence
of impairment of the asset transferred they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost. Any premium
paid for an associate above the fair value of the Group's
share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in the carrying
amount of the associate. Where there is objective evidence
that the investment in an associate has been impaired, the
carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment
in the same way as other non-financial assets.

In the Company’'s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are carried at cost less impairment
losses, if any. The results of associates are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable during the year.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EXE:EE»®)
(Continued)

(d) Goodwill d) e

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess of
the aggregate of consideration transferred and the amount
recognised for non—controlling interests over the fair value
of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceed the fair value of consideration
paid, the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the
acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from
an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition. A cash—generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the unit
may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the cash—generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
financial year. When the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the
unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then
to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the
carrying amount to each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and is not
reversed in subsequent periods.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4, EXRSHBE#)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (e) % - BMERRE

136

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost or valuation net of expected residual
value over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis. The useful lives, residual value and depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period. The useful lives are as
follows:

Leasehold land and buildings held for Over the

own use under finance leases lease term
Plant and machinery 10%
Motor vehicles 20%
Electronic equipment, furniture and fixtures 20%
Moulds 20%-33.33%
Leasehold improvements 10%
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(f)

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment
losses. Cost comprises direct costs of construction as
well as borrowing costs capitalised during the periods of
construction and installation. Capitalisation of these costs
ceases and the construction in progress is transferred to the
appropriate class of property, plant and equipment when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the assets
for their intended use are completed. No depreciation is
provided for in respect of construction in progress until it is
completed and ready for its intended use.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in
profit or loss on disposal.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised
as assets at their fair value or, if lower, the present value
of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding lease
commitment is shown as a liability. Lease payments are
analysed between capital and interest. The interest element
is charged to profit or loss over the period of the lease and
is calculated so that it represents a constant proportion of
the lease liability. The capital element reduces the balance
owed to the lessor.

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised as an
integrated part of the total rental expense, over the term of
the lease.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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(g) Intangible assets

4, EXRSHBE#)

() BEEE

(i)  Acquired intangible assets () EWENEFEEE
Intangible assets acquired separately are initially BB 2 BB E ) IR AN TE
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets R REBEHPBAZELEERK
acquired in a business combination is fair value at AAERKEBEZ AFE - Hig - F
the date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible FAFEREAERNEREELKARE:T
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less R 2TREREYIE -
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses.
Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over W TR E A B F A B R AT
their useful lives as follows. Intangible assets with RBBOT - AlEAFHRERNER
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any B EE TR AR ] 25 RE E R )
accumulated impairment losses. The amortisation BR o BB BB NIRRT ATT
expense is recognised in profit or loss and included in B -
administrative expenses.
Distribution network 10 years Pak =Fiks 104F
Domain names 3 years 4 34F
Employee contracts 2.57 years BEAHY 2.574%F
Non—-compete agreements 2 years NN 2%
Software 3-5 years B 3E545E
(ii) Internally generated intangible assets (research (i) AEEEZEEEE (TFE/HLK)

and development costs)

Expenditure on internally developed products is
capitalised if it can be demonstrated that:

— it is technically feasible to develop the product
for it to be sold;

NEFHZEERMS - EHRTIIER
R FTER

— R ERIRBERIAREE:

— adequate resources are available to complete the — BRWERTAFE
development;

—  there is an intention to complete and sell the BESERMEEES
product;

—  the Group is able to sell the product; —  RNEBBRENBEESR

—  sale of the product will generate future economic
benefits; and expenditure on the project can be
measured reliably.

— EEREEA R AR
RAE@SEE T -
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Intangible assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Internally generated intangible assets (research
and development costs) (Continued)

Capitalised development costs are amortised over the
periods the Group expects to benefit from selling the
products developed.

Development expenditure not satisfying the above
criteria and expenditure on the research phase of
internal projects are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

Impairment

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment annually by comparing their carrying
amounts with their recoverable amounts, irrespective
of whether there is any indication that they may
be impaired. If the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount.

(h) Financial Instruments

(i)

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which
the asset was acquired. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at
fair value and all other financial assets are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets. Regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. A regular way purchase or sale is a
purchase or sale of a financial asset under a contract
whose terms require delivery of the asset within the
time frame established generally by regulation or
convention in the marketplace concerned.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Financial Instruments (Continued)
(i)  Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

These assets are non—derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They arise principally through
the provision of goods and services to customers
(trade debtors), and also incorporate other types of
contractual monetary asset. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.

(i) Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting
period, whether there is any objective evidence that
financial asset is impaired. Financial asset is impaired if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset and that event has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include:

e  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

e granting concession to a debtor because of
debtor’s financial difficulty; and

o it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
For Loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss and
directly reduces the carrying amount of financial asset
when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, and is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of financial asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. When any part of financial asset
is determined as uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for the relevant financial asset.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are initially measured at fair value and financial
liabilities at amortised costs are initially measured at
fair value, net of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables, borrowings, certain preference
shares and the debt element of convertible loan note
issued by the Group are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
The related interest expense is recognised in profit or
loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income
or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts or payments through
the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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(h) Financial Instruments (Continued)

0]

(iv) Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets the
criteria for derecognition in accordance with IAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments
to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole
or in part as a result of renegotiating the terms of
that liability, the equity instruments issued are the
consideration paid and are recognised initially and
measured at their fair value on the date the financial
liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair value
of the equity instruments issued cannot be reliably
measured, the equity instruments are measured
to reflect the fair value of the financial liability
extinguished. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability or part thereof
extinguished and the consideration paid is recognised
in profit or loss for the year.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()]

(k)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents represent short—term,
highly liguid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which were within three
months of maturity when acquired.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances, as
follows:

(i) Sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when
goods are delivered and title has passed, which means
that all the following conditions are satisfied:

e The Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

e The Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods
sold;

e The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
e It is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the

Group; and

e The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of
the transaction can be measured reliably.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Revenue recognition (Continued)
(ii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.

(iii) Processing income

Processing income is recognised when processing
services are provided.

() Income tax

Income tax for the year comprise current tax and deferred
tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred
tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to the expected
manner in which the carrying amount of the asset or
liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

(m)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entities, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are
also recognised directly in equity.

Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which they operate(s) (the “functional
currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and
liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non—-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income, in which case, the exchange differences are also
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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(m) Foreign currency (Continued)

(n)

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the rates
approximating to those ruling when the transactions took
place are used. All assets and liabilities of foreign operations
are translated at the rate ruling at the end of reporting
period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
as foreign exchange reserve (attributed to minority interests
as appropriate). Exchange differences recognised in profit
or loss of group entities’ separate financial statements on
the translation of long—term monetary items forming part
of the Group’s net investment in the foreign operation
concerned are reclassified to other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in the foreign
exchange reserve.

Employee benefits
(i) Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected
to be settled wholly before twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short term
employee benefits are recognised in the year when the
employees render the related service.

(i) Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans

are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when

the services are rendered by the employees.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EXgBE®

(Continued)
(n) Employee benefits (Continued) (n) EEEFE)
(iii) Termination benefits (iii) BREBAEF

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of BEERAR A Ty A AN SR B T BE R Bl PR it
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer H1E FIBS N R £ B RS N BB A2 T
of those benefits and when the Group recognises MR EAR AR (AR E AYE)IE
restructuring costs involving the payment of B o
termination benefits.

(o) Impairment of other assets (o) HMEERE

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of the following assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

° property, plant and equipment;

. interests in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases; and

3 investments in subsidiaries and an associate

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value
less costs to sell and value in use) of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount
under another IFRS, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease under that IFRS.
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(p)

(a)

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and others
providing similar services, the fair value of the services
received is measured by reference to the fair value of the
options at the date of grant. Such fair value is recognised in
profit or loss over the vesting period with a corresponding
increase in the share option reserve within equity. Non-
market vesting conditions are taken into account by
adjusting the number of equity instruments expected to
vest at the end of each reporting period so that, ultimately,
the cumulative amount recognised over the vesting period
is based on the number of options that eventually vest.
Market vesting conditions are factored into the fair value
of the options granted. As long as all non-market vesting
conditions are satisfied, a charge is made irrespective of
whether the market vesting conditions are satisfied. The
cumulative expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve a
market vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the
options, measured immediately before and after the
modification, is also recognised in profit or loss over the
remaining vesting period.

The Group also operates a phantom share option scheme
which is determined to be a cash-settled share-based
payment transaction with employees. An option pricing
model is used to measure the Group's liability at grant
date and subsequently at the end of each reporting period,
taking into account the terms and conditions on which the
bonus is awarded and the extent to which employees have
rendered service. Movements in the liability (other than cash
payments) are recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on those
assets is deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

(s)

(t)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis
in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in profit or loss over
the useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which it is
probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits that
can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EXgHHBE®

(Continued)
(t) Related parties (Continued) (t) BEEEAZL(#&)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b) A THMTMIEH - Bl EEEA
following conditions apply: SE=E @

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the () ZERELRED %ﬂ £EH
same group (which means that each parent, MERAR(BNEERAG - EBA
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the AIMRRNB AR ILEE A
others). &) o

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the iy —"RERBAS—EEMNBZEAQ
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a AR EE (KB —BEAK
member of a group of which the other entity is a BRAIMEENE QA a5 E
member). RNAEIKEEDE) ©

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third (i) MREEBHAR—FB=ZF04E
party. B o

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and vy, —REBAE-HTEBNAE
the other entity is an associate of the third entity. TtE - ME—ERBRRE—F=

FEBMEE AT -

(v)  The entity is a post—employment benefit plan for (v) BEAAEBENEAEEEH
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an B ERIIEE R MR
entity related to the Group. Beiztaplat Sl

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) ERZFTHETEATEH kL
person identified in (a). A2l o

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant i) @UFIEEATHERBBEEARY
influence over the entity or is a member of key BhHYBZER(XZEREER
management personnel of the entity (or of a AMEEEREEKE -
parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family —AANTHEAHREKEIEBHTHETROR
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced SHAZEZATHIZATZENRER
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include: g8 B
(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner; (i) ATHFZEREESREER
(il ZATRBIREFEDHTZ &
(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and (i) ZATHZATHEBIREHENTE

Ao
(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with IFRS requires the directors to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The directors have considered the development, selection
and disclosure of the Group’s critical accounting policies and
estimates. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets or liabilities are as follows:

(i) Useful lives and depreciation of property, plant
and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges of its property, plant and
equipment. These estimates are based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. The Group will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives, and will write off or write
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result in
a change in depreciable lives and therefore depreciation
charges in future periods.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

152

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and variable selling expenses. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes
in customer taste and competitor actions in response to any
industry downturn. The directors reassess the estimations at
the end of each reporting period.

Allowances for bad and doubtful receivables

The Group makes allowances for bad and doubtful
receivables based on an assessment of the recoverability
of the receivables. This assessment is based on the credit
history of the customers and other debtors and the current
market condition. The directors reassess the allowance at
the end of the reporting period.

Warranty claims

The Group generally offers half-year warranties for its
own-brand name products sold. The directors estimate
the related provision for future warranty claims based on
historical warranty claim information, as well as recent
trends that might suggest that past cost information may
differ from future claims. Factors that could impact the
estimated claim information include the success of the
Group's productivity and quality initiatives, as well as parts
and labour costs.

(ii) F&
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(v)

(vi)

Impairment of intangible assets

Determining whether an intangible asset is impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, an impairment loss may arise.
Details of the impairment testing are provided in Note 16.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for property, plant and equipment at the end
of each reporting period. Property, plant and equipment are
tested for impairment when there are indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value
in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs to sell is
based on available data from binding sales transactions in
an arm'’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken, the
directors estimate the expected future cash flows from
the asset or cash—generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.
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5.

154

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(vii) Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.

The Group has tax loss carry forwards amounting to
approximately RMB28,955,000 (2013: RMB75,928,000)
which relate to subsidiaries that have a history of losses
and may not be used to offset taxable income elsewhere
in the Group. These subsidiaries have no temporary taxable
differences which could partly support the recognition
of deferred tax assets. Also, there are no tax planning
opportunities available that would further provide a basis
for recognition.

If the Group was able to recognise all unrecognised
deferred tax assets, profits would increase by approximately
RMB5,760,000 (2013: profits would increase by
approximately RMB18,982,000).

Further details on deferred taxes are disclosed in Note 28.
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a)

(b)

Turnover

Turnover represents gross invoiced sales, less returns and
trade discounts.

Reportable segments

The Group has adopted IFRS 8 “Operating Segments”
with effect from 1 January 2009. IFRS 8 requires operating
segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports
about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed
by the chief operating decision makers in order to allocate
resources to segments and to assess their performance.

The Group is engaged in the business of the Group’s own
brand “SCUDFREER" brand and " ChaolitongiB /738" brand
(together as “Own-brand business”), original design
manufacturing (“ODM business”) as well as bare battery
cells (“Bare battery cells business”). The chief operating
decision makers (i.e. the Company’s directors) review the
segment information of these businesses and based on
it to allocate resources to segments and to assess their
performance. The Group's reportable segments are set out
below:

ODM business — Manufacture and supply of lithium—ion
battery modules, power banks and related accessories for
branded mobile phone and tablets manufacturers within
and outside China.

Own-brand business — Manufacture and sale of “SCUDFRE
B&" brand and “Chaolitongi& /738" brand lithium—-ion battery
modules, power banks, chargers, bluetooth headsets and
related accessories for mobile phones and digital electronic
appliances.

Bare battery cell business — Manufacture and sale of
lithium—ion bare battery cells for mobile phones, tablets and
power banks.

Others — Sales of raw materials and work-in—progress and
processing income.
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXHERoHER #)

(Continued)
(b) Reportable segments (Continued) (b) BRI (EZ)
Segment information about these businesses is presented as ERZEEENDIBERZYNT ¢
follows:
Segment revenue and results D Eb R FEAE
2014
ODM  Own-brand Bare battery
business business cell business Others Total
ODM¥%X BEREEK EDER Hity @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®ETR AR¥T R AR®ETR AR®TR ARETR
Total Turnover mERE 2,695,193 749,864 326,775 80,291 3,852,123
Less: Intersegment sales B NI EE - (195) (83,053) (40,061) (123,309)
Turnover EEE 2,695,193 749,669 243,722 40,230 3,728,814
Segment profit/(loss) DT/ (B18) 73,541 (4,702) (16,796) 1,832 53,875
Unallocated income ROBEHA
- Bank interest income —RITF WA 8,352
- Gain on disposal of a —HEMRBRF
subsidiary WA 1,868
- Rental income AN 1,969
- Others —Ef 5,707
Unallocated expenses FAERZ
- Auditor's remuneration — SN S (4,478)
- Staff costs -8IKAK (4,237)
- Share-based U AER 2
payment expenses RHEZ (14,811)
- Others - Hft (2,179)
- Finance costs —mEKAK (30,195)
Profit before income tax BET SR ATEF 15,871
Income tax PR (22,733)
Loss for the year AEEEE (6,862)
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXZRo3ER &)
(Continued)

(b) Reportable segments (Continued) (b) BHIRYIP(EZ)

Segment revenue and results (Continued) ZEB 5 R EAE (1E)
2013
(Restated)
(&)
Own-brand  Bare battery
ODM business business  cell business Others Total
ODM ¥7 BEREEK BNER Hit B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL AREFT ARETR AREFL ARETTT
Total Turnover ok 1,574,515 634,005 260,669 12,731 2,481,920
Less: Intersegment sales W NEPEE - - (86,104) - (86,104)
Turnover e 1,574,515 634,005 174,565 12,731 2,395,816
Segment profit/(loss) EEF,/ (EE) 73,293 (258,144) (2,224) 483 (186,592)
Unallocated income FVALON
- Bank interest income —RITFIBMA 3,309
~ Rental income —-fAgKA 2,219
- Others —Hi 3,849
- Gain on disposal of a ~HEHBRF
subsidiary WA 13,964
Unallocated expenses AAERZ
- Auditor's remuneration — BB (1,436)
- Staff costs -8TIKA (2,589)
- Legal and professional fees - HFEREZER (510)
- Others —Hfp (3,422)
- Finance costs —BER AR (25,971)
Loss before income tax BETEHAIER (197,179)
Income tax FieH 41,423
Loss for the year AEEEBRE (155,756)
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.
(Continued)

EEBRIER &)

(b) Reportable segments (Continued) (b) BRI (EZ)

Assets and liabilities BEREE
2014
Own-brand  Bare battery
ODM business business  cell business Total
ODM ¥7% HBAEmEEK ERER st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR AR®TR ARETR ARETR
Segment assets HEEE 1,940,597 771,375 259,956 2,971,928
Unallocated corporate assets APBAREE
- Bank balances and cash —RITEHREES 1,302
— Prepayments, deposits and —BARIE - B REM
other receivables FENRIR 699
Consolidated total assets BAEERE 2,973,929
Segment liabilities DEEE 1,351,982 379,198 181,683 1,912,863
Unallocated corporate liabilities PN WNSI=U
— Other payables, receipts in —H M ERIE - TR
advance and accrued charges BMEFER 14,177
- Amount due to a director -ENEEFE 5,522
~ Deferred tax liabilities —ERHIBAE 5,361
Consolidated total liabilities ABEREE 1,937,923
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6.

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EX Ko ER @)

(Continued)
(b) Reportable segments (Continued) (b) BHIRYIP(EZ)
Assets and liabilities (Continued) BERBE(E)
2013
(Restated)
(&%)
Own-brand Bare battery
ODM business business cell business Total
ODM #7% BAMEEH BINER @
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETT AE#®TF T AREFT AREFT
Segment assets DEEE 1,085,942 713,270 405,852 2,205,064
Unallocated corporate assets OB AREE
- Bank balances and cash —RITEBR LR 3,871
— Prepayments, deposits and —BRRE - ReREMD
other receivables FEURIE 9,717
Consolidated total assets A EERE 2,218,652
Segment liabilities HHEE 650,383 305,542 263,858 1,219,783
Unallocated corporate liabilities AAERFIEE
~ Other payables, receipts in —HAmEMARIE - BGK
advance and accrued charges EREGER 5,672
- Deferred tax liabilities —EXERBEEE 5,360
Consolidated total liabilities REaERE 1,230,815
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXHERoHER #)

(Continued)
(c) Other information (o HMER
2014
Bare
ODM Own-brand battery cell
business business business Others Total
ODM¥H BEmEEH LXK Hito oY
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARBTT AR®TR AR¥TR ARETR
Depreciation of property, plant nE BEREENE
and equipment 23,304 20,072 9,744 2,617 55,737
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEREH - - 40 1,398 1,438

Impairment loss recognised on trade and ShIEUE 5 7UE ke EHHER 7

notes receivables BB 5,122 53,777 2,892 - 61,791
Impairment loss recognised RERTE - e REMREKFE

on prepayments, deposits and RREESR

other receivables 30,907 9,859 2,463 50 43,279

Reversal of impairment loss recognised ~ FLEWE 5FE MEUEERAZ

on trade and notes receivables REBEAD - - (606) - (606)
Write down of inventories WREE - - 1,459 - 1,459
Research and development costs HEER 78,492 12,813 10,754 5337 107,396

Loss on disposals of property, plant and H&W% « BERZELEE

equipments 3,873 2,838 1,034 - 1,745
Write off of property, plant and mE - B LR

equipment 50,245 395 89 - 50,729
Write off of intangible assets BREEMH - 837 - - 837
Income tax Fr{5#t 11,289 8,556 (3,362) 6,250 22,733
Additions to property, plant nE  BEREEAE

and equipment 64,949 10,922 26,501 1,732 104,104
Additions to intangible assets EFEERNE - - - 468 468
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. %R HIPELR »)

(Continued)
(c) Other information (Continued) (o) HtERE)
2013
(Restated)
(mE75])
Bare
ODM  Own-brand  battery cell
business business business Others Total
ODMEH BEmiEEH BUER Hith BE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARBFT AREFT ARETR
Depreciation of property, plant 0E - BERRETE
and equipment 22,271 30,877 8,701 1,993 63,842
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESH - 13 51 1,294 1,358
Impairment loss on intangible assets BEEZREBR - 12,529 - - 12,529
Impairment loss recognised on trade and GtIEWE 558 R EME BT 2
notes receivables FEER 22,243 597 4,052 - 26,892
Impairment loss recognised SENTE - e REMERTE
on prepayments, deposits and Rz RERE
other receivables 950 - 1,166 - 2,116

Reversal of impairment loss recognised on FEUE 55018 & ek SR,

trade and notes receivables REBERD (1,790) - - - (1,790)
Reversal of impairment loss recognised ~ FEFEIN 78 « &4 R EMEYGTE

on prepayments, deposits and R 2 BB B ERE

other receivables - (1,788) - - (1,788)
Write down of inventories WrzE - 25,395 - - 25,395
Research and development costs HeER 50,486 11,991 15,400 5,866 83,743
Loss on disposals of property, plant and  HENE « BiE RkEE2ER

equipment 874 - 1,964 - 2,838
Income tax FiEH 6,367 (52,070) 2,240 2,040 (41,423)
Additions to property, plant n%  BEREEAE

and equipment 41,195 3,416 12,055 9,515 66,181
Additions to intangible assets BREENE - - - 779 779
Loss on refund EmEUER - - - 257,818 257,818
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXHERoHER #)

(Continued)
(d) Turnover from major products (d) FTEERZEER
The Group's turnover from its major products were as KEAAREETEERZLEETENT -
follows:
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBT T
(Restated)
(gg&E5)
ODM business: ODMET :
Mobile phone battery FHEM 2,532,312 1,392,489
Tablets and notebook computer battery TR M ERAEEN 105,794 19,494
Power bank BEER 32,623 142,621
Others Hb 24,464 19,911
ODM business ODMET 2,695,193 1,574,515
Own-brand business - SCUD brand: BEEREELE-RERRE :
Power bank BEEIR 338,074 276,211
Power management module EREERA 173,066 -
Mobile phone battery FHEM 162,448 174,690
Chargers FTER 4,040 7,436
Bluetooth headsets BT HEM 3,237 4,858
Others Hih 544 5,232
681,409 468,427
Own-brand business - Chaolitong brand: BERBE£E-BHERME :
Power bank BEEIR 54,463 78,384
Mobile phone battery FHE 13,797 75,842
Chargers FTESR - 11,352
68,260 165,578
Own-brand business BEmBEER 749,669 634,005
Bare battery cell business: ERNERK:
Lithium—ion bare battery cells SEEEF B 243,722 174,565
Others Hith 40,230 12,731
Total turnover PR 3,728,814 2,395,816
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. %R HIPELR »)

(Continued)

(e) Geographical information (e) WEEHR

Analysis of the Group’s turnover and results as well as
analysis of the Group’s carrying amount of each relevant
segment’s assets and additions to property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets by geographical market
have not been presented as they are substantially generated
from or situated in the PRC.

(f) Information about major customers (f)

Revenue from major customers, each of them accounted for
10% or more of the Group's revenue, are set out below:

AEEWE2F LR TIHE DN AEE
EEBREEDTURAEEEE D FFH
HEEERAEME  BFER&ERETY
BENEREEST - RE/EKIEORS
B 2 A S A B o

FEEFER
KEFEFFPZRE(RESHREERK
@ 10%s A ) #EFIAT -

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARET T

Customer A ZEA
Customer B ZFB
Customer C =FEC

1,041,336 452,913
670,477 359,648
N/A' R 3E A 248,611

! The corresponding revenue did not contribute over
10% of the total revenue of the Group.

TOEEREYREAEEREAR
10% LA E ©

7. OTHER REVENUE 7. Hittugzs
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
(Restated)
(4 &%)
Government grant NEgisp=ity 6,048 1,651
Interest income FlEd A 8,352 4,277
Net foreign exchange gain P& W F 78 - 6,505
Sundry income LN N 8,282 6,540
22,682 18,973
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8. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX

This is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BREF BB ANER, (BE)
B0k (GEA)THIIER -
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2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ET ARBTT

(Restated)

(K& E7))

Auditor’s remuneration Z LR B & 4,478 1,872
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ - [ E M RETE (BIEHEE

(including depreciation recorded in research R e E AR 11,769,0007T

and development costs of RMB11,769,000 (20134 : AR#11,969,0007T))

(2013: RMB11,969,000)) 55,737 63,842
Amortisation of intangible assets A AR 1,438 1,358
Impairment loss recognised on trade and B E 5 E K B EIERR .

notes receivables REEE 61,791 26,892
Impairment loss recognised on prepayments, MIENRIR - HE RHALEYRIR

deposits and other receivables R ZBEEE 43,279 2,116
Reversal of impairment loss recognised on MEWE ZHIEREREERERZ

trade and notes receivables BB EE R O (606) (1,790)
Reversal of impairment loss recognised on BIBFIE - R REAEREIE

prepayments, deposits and other receivables WRZREEERD - (1,788)
Write off of inventories FERGH 1,459 25,395
Loss on disposals of property, plant and HEWE  BERREEE

equipment 7,745 2,838
Loss on disposals of intangible assets HeEEREEER 3,686 -
Write off of property, plant and equipment VI - S MR E RS 50,729 -
Write off of intangible assets A E R 837 -
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses R ARSI 2 FEKA 3,193,157 1,739,204
Cost of processing income NI A Z B 27,436 -
Operating lease rentals for office premises MAELEHERD 26,200 23,521
Impairment loss recognised on intangible assets FtEFEER  FIERE = 12,529
Research and development costs HEEEA 107,396 83,743
Staff costs (Note 9) B TR (HFE9) 317,067 227,561
Loss on refund EmEYIEER = 257,818
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10.

STAFF COSTS 9. BT
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ET T AREEF T
Directors’ remuneration (Note 10) EEME (MFE10) 6,269 1,029
Other staff costs Hib 8 TR A 328,216 235,184
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RO FIFT B 5K 19,089 18,834
Less: Staff costs included in research and U8 T AR AE B TRk AR
development costs (36,507) (27,486)
317,067 227,561
DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' 10.EENEESFHM
REMUNERATION
(a) Directors remuneration disclosed pursuant to Section 78(1) (@) WREFBLTBEMN(FE228 ) XRIE
of Schedule 11 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance T8MME( A BB FRIB B R EH(E
Cap. 622 which requires compliance with Section 161 of RNE)FI6VE)WECESHMOT -

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 32 is as follows:

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T

Salaries, housing allowances, other HW - BEERL - Hfb)ERE

allowances and benefits in kind R EER 887 715
Fees e 1,414 280
Other emoluments: HAib & :

Share-based payments expenses VARG AR B 2 AT 2 3,928 -

Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIRAE T B 40 34

6,269 1,029
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10.DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b) Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors (b)

10.EEREEFM )

AEERNEEINOMEFENT

are as follows:

166

2014 2013
Salaries, Salaries,
housing housing
allowances, allowances,
other Retirement other Retirement
allowances Share-based benefits allowances benefits
and benefits payments scheme Total  and benefits scheme Total
in kind Fees expenses contributions  emoluments in kind Fees  contributions  emoluments
M BB FH RE
R it - A
ERR WA BANEA R RIRER
ENE e EBRzfZEX MR MesgE  E0E e FEER MemE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR  ARETR ARBTR  ARETn ARETR  ARBTT  ARETR  ARETR ARET:
Fang Jin hik - 752 982 9 1783 - - 8 8
GuoQuanZeng g% 567 120 982 3 1,682 500 - 10 510
Huang Yan - 107 120 982 9 1,218 95 - 8 103
Zhang Li FH 213 120 982 9 1,324 120 - 8 128
Loke Yu Bk - 170 - - 170 - 160 - 160
Wang Jing Zhong ~ EHIE - 66 - - 66 - 60 - 60
Wang Jian Zhang  TEZ - 66 - - 66 - 60 - 60
887 1414 3928 40 6,269 715 280 34 1,029

During both years, none of the director has received any

bonus payments paid by the Group.

RMEFEAR  HEEEWRIAEE A

MR EES o
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10.DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(c) The five highest paid individuals include four directors for
the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: two), details of
whose emoluments are set out above.

The emoluments of the remaining one (2013: three) non-
director highest paid individuals are as follows:

(@

10. EEREEHFM )

HZE2014F12A31MBIEFE AEZ&S
FMATBIENZ(2013F : ME)ES -
HEM S BN L -

Hep—#(2013%F - =R )FEF & H
ATMET

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T AREEF T

Salaries, bonus, allowance and other benefits Bi{& - #4 « 2R R EMIEF] 1,535 2,219
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RREFIFT IR 13 35
1,548 2,254

The emoluments of the remaining non-director, highest
paid individuals are within the following brands:

HEBpFEERSFMA LM FIAT
#HE

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBTT

Nil to RMB792,400
(equivalent to Nil to HK$1,000,000)
RMB792,401 to RMB1,584,800 (equivalent
to HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000)

Tz AR¥792,4007C

(FHERZZE1,000,000/7T) - 2
AR#792,401TE

AR#1,584,8007T (AHE 7

1,000,001%7C%2,000,000/%7T) 1 1

(d) During both years, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the five highest paid individuals (including both
directors and employees) or any directors of the Company
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors has
waived any emoluments during both years except that Mr.
Fang Jin has voluntarily waived his salaries for both years.

(d)

RREFEEARN  AEEGERNAEZDEH
AL(BREFRER)IARRNEM
EEERAME - EARSIMAREE
HIMAREB R RE - HIERBEBRNE
B RMEFER > BTk EERNE
eI - WEEBFREETMHNE
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IAAS

11.

12.
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FINANCE COSTS 1. BLE R A
2014 2013
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARET T AREEF T
Interest on bank borrowings RITIE KA L 17,069 15,599
Interest on discounted notes receivable BRIRFEUEIRF B 10,682 10,351
Other finance costs E B E KA 2,444 21
30,195 25,971

INCOME TAX

No provision for income tax has been made by the Company
as it is not subject to tax in the Cayman Islands or other
jurisdictions save for the PRC where it conducts its principal
business operations.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group's profits were neither arising in nor derived from Hong
Kong during both years, and all subsidiaries incorporated in Hong
Kong incurred tax losses during the current and prior years.

Provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated based on
the estimated taxable income for PRC taxation purposes at the
rate of taxation applicable for the year.

On 17 January 2012, Scud Electronics was approved to continue
as an Advance and New Technology Enterprise (“ANTE”) for a
period of 3-year according to the approval document (certificate
number: B#E[2012]15%) and is subject to income tax at 15%
accordingly.

On 10 September 2012, Shenzhen Nalon was recognised as
ANTE for a period of 3-year and the certificate number is
GR201244200041. Under the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law
Article 28, Shenzhen Nalon is subject to income tax at 15%
accordingly.

12. FREH

HRERABETEZRHERLI - ARrE
FHMFSEEREMRDEERNBTIE - B4
RANEAE S HEE o

P JTE 4 PO S B FIBE SR B B A
TSR BB - WA RS S KB
AAHRAEE LB EEREHERE &
U 34 5 19 T

FEIGERMAEHRBETIRER A BFEEERN
KA B IR AR R AT R T A T AHE -

2012618178 - RERE FIREBLESTHF
(BEHES - BRIE2012)15%) B AR = F 48
NEE RS TEMEE( SRR E]IE
15% H Tt KRN FTIS L o

201256978108 - R JIl BA Bt E # R B
BYEMCE RHE=ZF BEFRA
GR201244200041 - RIEFHBE B ZEMEBES
2816 - RIYIBAREIR15% M B R BN AR FEFT 15
B o
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12. INCOME TAX (Continued)

On 2 July 2013, Dongguan Hongde was approved to continue
as an ANTE for a period of 3—year and the certificate number is
GR20134400058. It is subject to income tax at 15% accordingly.

On 14 August 2014, Scud Electronics was approved to continue
as an ANTE for a period of 3-year and the certificate number
is GR201435000040. It is subject to income tax at 15%
accordingly.

Scud Shenzhen and Shenzhen Hongde were recognised as ANTE
in 2011, for a period of 3-year and the certificate numbers are
GR201144200302 and GR201144200288 respectively. Under the
PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law Article 28, Scud Shenzhen and
Shenzhen Hongde are subject to income tax at 15% in 2013.

On 24 July 2014, Shenzhen Hongde was approved to continue
as an ANTE for a period of 3-year and the certificate number
is GR201444200634. It is subject to income tax at 15%
accordingly.

On 30 September 2014, Scud Shenzhen was approved to
continue as an ANTE for a period of 3-year and the certificate
number is GR201444201487. It is subject to income tax at 15%
accordingly.

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, the remaining
subsidiaries of the Group that established in the PRC are subject
to PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate at 25%.

12. 882

M2013F7A2R R R =R EAHEE B
BYEMECE BRHE=-F BFERERA
GR20134400058 ° E %15 % B9 F% 5 24 44 18 & P
/8 -

M20145F8F14H - REME FEER=F
HENEEARSTRTCEREERR R
GR201435000040 ° E 1215 % ) 1 3 41 49 48 F&
FRASHE -

AYRER R R IBER20MNERRES
Mt REB=F KIBFEFRSAA
GR201144200302%GR201144200288 » 1R #
B EERAE28IE  FIIRER KR
SEER2013F R 15% B RBMFTSH -

201457 H248 - RN B R EER=ZF
HENEBEARTRMNCE BERRA
GR201444200634 ° H1215% &) 1 & & 40 A8 g
FR1S%L

201498308 * FUIRERRE &N =F

HEANEERSFENLE BERREA

GR201444201487 > E4215%H) B 5 4 49 46 FE
FTiS®E -

RIBFRBEDEREVE - ARBEEFBEKIZD

HEHHE AR ERPEPEAMGHRE25%5H
e
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12. INCOME TAX (Continued) 12. FRBHi )

Details of the income tax charge/(credit) in the consolidated HAGABEREN 2 ERFZEZNIETF X
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are B ER)SHIEmT
as follows:
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFT
(Restated)
(i&=5)
Current tax — PRC BN EAF 1E —
Enterprise Income Tax: EFER
— Tax for the year —AFEBIE 23,591 8,980
— (Overprovision)/underprovision —BEEE(BERE),
in prior years BETR (1,494) 100
Deferred tax — current year (Note 28) IRAERIE — A E (H5r28) 636 (50,503)
Income tax charge/(credit) Frisfisz i (&) 22,733 (41,423)

The reconciliation between profit/(loss) before income tax and
income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income is as follows:

FalEakEM2EKERTEMSHADE
M,/ (&R BEPFSH 2 HiRMT -
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2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARETT

(Restated)

(B=5)

Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETEBATER] (F518) 15,871 (197,179)

Tax at tax rates applicable in the relevant jurisdictions — #ZiE I MERE ALARER TR Rt BT 5,988 (60,621)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purposes A i3z HH KB A & 2 48,594 69,394

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes BERBRANT B2 (14,260) (5,247)

Tax effect of temporary differences not TRAABREREENHETE

previously recognised (11,522) (59,215)

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERABBEEBNRET L = 18,952
Tax effect of withholding tax at 5% on the TS % H AR E BN R EIK L)

distributable profits of the Group’s subsidiaries MERF D RFENTBZE

established in the PRC 6,250 2,040

(Overprovision)/underprovision in prior years BRFE(BERE)/ BIETR (1,494) 100

Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses B ERIABRTIESE = (630)
Effect of concessionary rate granted to BRYRENBLRERRENTE

the PRC subsidiaries (10,823) (6,196)

Income tax S 22,733 (41,423)
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13. DIVIDENDS 13. R 8
No final dividend was declared for the year ended 31 December HZE2014F12A318 I EE T # Tk K E %
2014, & o
A final dividend of HK$0.01 per share, amounting to a total final HZE2013F12A31H IELEET IRAKREE S &0%
dividend of approximately RMBS8,114,000 was declared for the 0.01/87T - #MFEAARS,114,0007T ©

year ended 31 December 2013.

14. LOSSES PER SHARE 14. SREE
The calculation of the basic and diluted losses per share RANBHEE ANELERER R SEIBREI
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the T&ussE -

following data:

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBEFT

(Restated)

(% &E5)
Losses for the purposes of basic STEESRER LB EEIBRNEIE

and diluted losses per share

(Loss for the year attributable (KRalEB NELARFEHE)

to the owners of the Company) 1,696 144,936

Number of ordinary shares

ZERHAE
2014 2013
‘000 '000
L& ATFE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares &S EARLEEEE
for the purpose of basic and diluted /I AR NAE 1
losses per share 1,034,703 1,032,001
No diluted losses per share has been presented because the HRARARERENITEESR2014F KRG B
exercise price of the Company’s share options was higher than FHTE - IR 25 GRESEERE -

the average market price for shares for 2014.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 220144125315 1F F/E

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 9% - BERRE

Electronic
equipment,
Land under Plant and Motor ~ furniture  Construction Leasehold
finance lease Building  Machinery Vehicles ~ and fixtures  in progress Moulds - Improvements Total
HEHE ) Bl ‘ .
BET14 BF HEREE RE  BiRgE hRIR BE RENERE &
WO RVBO0  RVBDDD  RWBODD  RUBOID  RUBO0  RVBOD  RVBODD  RWBOW
ARETT  ARETn  ARETn  ARBTm  ARETR  ARETR  AREfR  ARETRL  ARETR
Group K&E
Cost ins
1 January 2013 W3E1A18 12,904 106,797 151429 12639 99,808 426 34,654 81,016 599,673
Additions g - - 28524 435 21597 - 5409 29 66,181
De-recogniton from disposal of subsidiaries %ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ% AN LER - - (4,100) 21 (23%9) - (762) (2.95)  (10,390)
Transfer fromito) construction in progress %/ FRTE - - 426 - - (426) - - -
Disposals - - (4.976) (1,018 (11,198) - (10,639) (10,541) (38372)
31 December 2013 and 1 Januay 014 2013612531 ARA0NE1818 N 0679 WA I 1388 S BER egd 6
Additions HE - - 74,760 1510 16,720 119 8214 2 104,104
Transfer &2 - - (58) - - - 58 - -
De-recogniton from disposal of subsidiaries K& EMBARHM HED - - (19,065) (478) (357) - - - (19,900)
Disposals ihe - - (4203 (52) (6,786) - (1,658) - (13219
Written off H# - - (25,29) (134) (18,754) (69) (7.985) - (52,234)
31 December 2014 WI4E12A318 12,904 106,797 297,425 16,110 104,671 50 27,351 70,535 635,843
Depreciation i
1 January 2013 W3E1818 1693 10,146 83,766 6,801 6145 - 25,087 52874 241819
Charge for the year REREY 258 5013 1331 1474 1141 - 438 16,961 63,842
De-recognition from disposal of subsidiaries  RE ENBAZIEA 32 - - (1,241) ma (1,667) - (595) (1307) (4.924)
Disposals il - - (2.950) (861) (10571) - (9.942) (8,140) (32.464)
31 December 2013 and oy 014 2013612531 R20ME1818 1951 1529 103912 M 66 S 3 O 1
Charge for the year RERREY 258 5013 21,790 1845 12,674 - 4174 3913 55,737
Transler g2 - - 0 - - - 4 - -
De-recogniton from disposal of subsidiaies & HEHBATALER - - (910) )] (104) - - - (1,109
Disposals e - - (1263) (349) (3,63) - (48) - (5,474
Written off i - - (401) (216) (266) - (622) - (1,505)
31 December 2014 NUENENE W9 W M B0 6 - DM eI 3159
Net book value EERE
31 December 2014 WIHENA3NE 10,695 86,505 168,281 1620 35311 50 5,165 6,24 319,917
31 December 2013 013E12R318 10953 91,578 167,391 8,464 53223 - 9,784 1426 343,819
As at 31 December 2014, motor vehicles with carrying amount 20145 12A31H - AEBEKEEEARAR

of RMB626,000 (2013: RMB710,000) have been pledged by the
Group in favour of a bank to secure a bank loan granted by a
bank to the Group (Note 22).

#626,00070(20134F © ARM710,00070) 8975
BEBTIRT EARBITRTALEEN—E
TEFRWER(ME22) -

R2014F 128318 - AEBEEHEEREAY
AFR#S51,425,0007T (20134 « Z)MWE - &
B R R A R B 2k (3E22)

20145128318 » BEEEA AR2,856,000
TT(2013F : B)WBME R ECIEAENEE
IR T EE -

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has pledged property, plant
and equipment carried at approximately RMB51,425,000 (2013:
Nil) for other loans (Note 22).

As at 31 December 2014, plant and machinery with a carrying

amount of RMB2,856,000 (2013: Nil) has been pledged to a
landlord as collaterals for electricity expenses payable.
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. BN EE
Non-
Distribution Trade  Domain  Employee  compete
network names names  contracts agreements  Goodwill  Software Total

i i G L g &# it
RMB'O00  RMBO00  RMBOOD  RMBOO0  RMB000  RMB'O0D  RMB'OOD  RMB'000

ARETL ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARETR

Group A58

Cost s

1 January 2013 01351718 97,664 100,958 74 58 350 6,200 8,908 214,212
Additions HE - - - - - - 779 7719
Disposal HE - - - - - - (29 (29)
De-recognition from disposal of subsidiaries ~ REHEHBATNELER - - - - - - (77) )
31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 20135128318 R201451R18 97,664 100,958 74 58 350 6,200 9,581 214,885
Additions AE - - - - - - 468 468
De-recognition from disposal of a subsidiary 7R B ENB AR HED - - - - - - (21) oA}
Disposals e - (100958) - - - - - (100,958
Written-off HE (97,664) - (74) (58) (350) (6,200) (1,500)  (105,846)
31 December 2014 0145127318 - - - - - - 8,528 8,528
Amortisation and impairment BERAE

1 January 2013 01351518 97,664 61,158 74 58 350 6,200 3815 169,319
Charge for the year TEERR - - - - - - 1358 1,358
Disposals e - - - - - - (29 (29)
De-recognition from disposal of a subsidiary 7R B HENB AR HED - - - - - - (31 (31)
Impairment loss HEEE - 12509 - - - - - 1259
31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 2013%12831AR201451 718 97,664 73,687 74 58 350 6,200 5113 183,146
Charge for the year TEERY - - - - - - 1438 1438
Disposals e - (73687) - - - - - (73687
De-recognition from disposal of a subsidiary R & HEMBR ANA LT - - - - - - (6) (6)
Written-off B (97,664) - (74) (58) (350) (6,200) (663)  (105,009)
31 December 2014 0145127318 - - - - - - 5,882 5,882
Net hook value BEFE

31 December 2014 05128318 - - - - - - 2686 2646
31 December 2013 20135124318 N 21,211 N - N - 4,468 31,739
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
Note:

174

()

(ii)

Distribution network represents the sales network of the
“Chaolitongi8 /138" brand, covering second tier and third
tier cities, towns and villages in the PRC. An impairment of
distribution network of RMB35,890,000 was made in the
year of 2012. Distribution network was fully impaired since
31 December 2012.

Upon the disposal of the business of “Chaolitongi83&",
the distribution network was written off in the current year
(Note 16(ii)).

Trade names comprise 7 trade names. The trade name of
“Chaolitong#8 /138" is a popular brand which has obtained
the general recognition of consumers in rural areas and
second tier and third tier cities in the PRC. Trade names
have been allocated to the single cash generating unit
("CGU"), Chaolitong.

As at 31 December 2013, the recoverable amount was
determined based on value in use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five—
year period. The cash flows beyond five years have been
extrapolated using a steady 3.12% per annum growth
rate. The pre-tax discount rate and post-tax discount
rate applied to the cash flow projections are 22.58%
and 17.49% respectively. Another key assumption in the
value in use calculations is the pre—tax royalty rate of
2.75% which is determined based on the discussions with
management, review of publicly available data on trade
names and the guideline royalties.

Due to an adverse change in the market conditions, the sales
volume and profit margin of replaceable backup batteries and
accessories for feature mobile phones declined significantly in
recent years. As a result, the sales revenue from the “Chaolitong
#BiB" brand recorded a sharp decline during the year ended
31 December 2013. The value in use so calculated is lower
than the carrying amount. As a result, an impairment of trade
names of RMB12,529,000 was recognised during the year
ended 31 December 2013. The loss is included in “Administrative
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group
disposed of all trade names to an independent third party
at a net consideration of RMB23,585,000. Accordingly, a
loss on disposal of the trade name of RMB3,686,000 was
recognised in profit or loss. Upon the completion of the
disposal, the Group no longer carry out any business with
the brand “Chaolitong#8 738" .

6. BN EE »)

BT

0}

(ii)

S #8455 Chaolitong B /13 | b8+ &
S =« ZHRT BRI E
4% o FA20124F 5t A R #35,890,0007T
ﬁfé%%ﬁf’ﬁmﬁﬁo B20129F12A31
D HERSE R EURE -

D]Nﬁﬁtl#tl)
[l 25

& ChaolitongitB 718 | %1 - 5
RN E FREE (R RE16G0) ©

$HH

5 1Z 8 FE 78 75 12 © [ Chaolitongi /118 |
uuﬁ%ﬁ’]?ﬁhﬁfﬁéﬁﬂﬁ’]uuﬁéﬁ EEFRE

SRETAEEEBENLER
EJ"F'%?E @Ex'J“D—fE$F$ Sz (3R
SELENM]) - BBHE

72013%128318 - EM&Z@%(%EE*ETE&

EEFH{“{Efﬂm Z LA AL ARIEE
B ERERLFHNPREBEE E’]fﬁumb
?EEIJ TFEENBESRERYFRFEER

KAE312%KHEE - I RFERERZH
ARG R R FI1E BRI £ 5 Bl £22.58% &
1749% - ;TEFAEERNS —EAEZE
BEABBBEREEBETEN - BHME
AR ATS B8R & B Rt 5l B E M B A
FRRFEB R2.75% °

RS RANIFES  BEHRARIE
FHROTEANGERE L LHERBESF
E’Jfﬁ EMEFEAEFRBETE - A

& £2013%F12A318 IF F &
TChaolltongtﬁLJuuﬁiﬁMigﬁﬁ S A&
T o ABMRERAHENFEAEBERAER
BRMEE - ALt - AR¥12,529,0007T 27 &
ﬁmﬁ‘ﬁimniuﬂmaiiﬁﬁ

wu\ ° EZEE?EEH-I_AZ %Eéﬁ&ﬁﬁﬂ%@
WERMTTEBAES] -
HE2014F12A318 ILEE - KEBEMU

SR (E AR¥23,585,000 T A — LB H
SHEEMARR - At - HEmEAR
#3,686,000C Y EIEE M IBZE P FER ©
HE Sk REEFLA Chaolitongi
138 R T A -
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
Note: (Continued)

17.

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Goodwill arising from the acquisition of the “Chaolitongit8 7
38" brand is attributable to the anticipated revenue growth,
profitability, future market development and anticipated
future operating synergies from the combination. An
impairment of goodwill of RMB6,200,000 was made in the
year of 2009. Goodwill was fully impaired since 31 December
2010.

Upon the disposal of the business of “Chaolitong# /7 3@",
the goodwill was written—off in the current year (Note 16(ii)).

The Group carries out annual impairment tests for goodwill
and trade names with indefinite useful lives, or more
frequently if there are indications that these intangible
assets might be impaired. The acquired distribution
network, non—-compete agreements, employee contracts,
domain names and software are amortised on a straight—
line basis over their respective estimated useful lives.

The amortisation charge recognised for the year is included
in “Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

16. BILEE ()
Wi < (48)

(iii)

(iv)

U BBl Chaolitong#B 13 | k8 E £ 2 &
THREHEEZFEHRREIER &6
N RRMIGEERFERRREEREEN
% FTE o 7020094F 5t A K #6,200,0007T
ZEEELRME B2010F128318 ¢
MEE2ERE -

[

& [ ChaolitongiB 7138 1 ¥ 1& - EER
B FEREE (M EE16(G0) o

AEBEHEERMROEHE Lo ETE
ERERR - B EERTRAER
18 - B pnSAZ T T UL B, - PRUREE 2
DIHWAE - TEF S BEAK - HA
REHNERERRES B2 hFHERE
HEITHESS

REERRNBEAT I AGZEEBER
EtemRaRITHREASJET -

17. BE DTS

2014 2013

RMB’'000 RMB’'000

ARET T AREEFTT

Share of net assets EIEFEEE 1,421 1,400

Particulars of the associate are as follows:

Name of company

Place of
establishment

and operation Paid-up capital

BEAMEMOT

Group's effective
ownership interest

Principal activity

DRIEH B R BARE FEEEREEREE TEXHB
2014 2013
Scud (Guangzhou) Digital ~ PRC RMB11,300,000 20% 20%  Research and development,
Technology Co., Ltd. K AR#11,300,0007C manufacturing and sales of

("Scud Guangzhou")
BMREREBRMAR
RA)([EMRER])

bluetooth headsets and other
digital telecommunication

ETERRAEMEISRESEM
2HE - EEREE
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17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 17. & DR Em )
Scud Guangzhou performs research and development, EMREBRHSETERLEMEBIBEBEREM
manufactures and sells bluetooth headsets and other R AENEE  c ENMREREAEEE
digital telecommunication appliances. Scud Guangzhou is TFTH#ENEMEIS RSVt ER s — -

one of suppliers of bluetooth headsets and other digital
telecommunication for the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group disposed HE2014F12831HIHFE  REBLHERE
of 50% equity interest in Scud Guangzhou. Since then, Scud INFEBRS0% FIAHE - Bt - EINRERK B
Guangzhou became an associate of the Group and is accounted AEBEMNBE AR WIREREZRZ SRSV
for using the equity method in these consolidated financial MERALR ©

statements.

Summarised financial information in relation to the associate is BERABES AN EERBEZANT :

presented below:

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARETT

Total non—current assets EMBEEMRE 1,911 2,594
Total current assets MBEEETE 22,533 13,497
Total current liabilities mEIBERTE (17,339) (9,090)
Net assets FEE 7,105 7,001

Proportion of effective interest REEFEERERLLD

held by the Group 20% 20%

Share of net assets EIEFEEEE 1,421 1,400

Revenue Wz 14,658 20,029

Profit/(loss) for the year REZREF, (EE) 104 (1,445)
Share of results of an associate i NI E 21 (289)
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18. INVENTORIES 18. 78
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T R AREEF T
Raw materials Bk 216,805 130,336
Work in progress B 8,503 70,624
Finished goods B o 141,324 68,236
Goods in transit THER 2,299 154,791
368,931 423,987

During the year, a net reversal of write down of inventories
of RMB1,400,000 (2013: write down of inventories of
RMB25,395,000) was recognised in cost of sales.

19. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES

TR FEMOREEFE AR 1,400,000
(20134 : MURF & AR%25,395,00070) B A

588 PR AR R R ©

19. BREZREREBRRE

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T R AREEF T

(Restated)

(& &E751))

Trade receivables FEUE 55018 1,171,085 515,127
Notes receivables =R 87,010 48,462
1,258,095 563,589

Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts A RIERREE (73,436) (12,257)
1,184,659 551,332
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19. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (Continved) 19. EW B S HEREWERE 2

An aged analysis of trade and notes receivables at the end of BIEEEH  EHNBREBEEZERRES MBS R
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of BIFEUE 5 RUE KB ERIR R ST T ¢

allowance, is as follows:

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFT
(Restated)
(gE5)
0 to 60 days 0ZE60X 1,092,005 341,172
61 to 180 days 61£2180K 75,731 78,417
181 to 365 days 1812365k 7,761 73,261
1 to 2 years —EWE 5,793 58,305
2 to 3 years ME=4F 3,369 177
1,184,659 551,332
The average credit period granted on sale of goods ranged from BT HEEMN TP EERAN F60E90H -
60 to 90 days.
Movements in allowance for bad and doubtful debts during the FERNREEREBENESHNT :
year were as follows:
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
(Restated)
(K &E75)
1 January 1A18 12,257 34,476
Written off s (6) -
Impairment losses recognised BHERREERE 61,791 7,854
Reversal of impairment losses SE AR R R (B B 18 5 g
previously recognised (606) (2,912)
De-recognition upon disposal of subsidiaries  H & B R FE K IEHER - (27,161)
31 December 12H31H 73,436 12,257
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19. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continves)  19- BINE B RIER BWERE @)

The aged analysis of the trade and notes receivables that are BHEN RREN B E 5B R ER RS
past due but not impaired is as follows: BRERDITANT -

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBEFT

(Restated)

(#&&E7)

Less than 6 months past due BEAT BN E A 42,634 99,938

Over 6 months past due B RSB A LA 19,219 128,223

61,853 228,161

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a BEEIARRENERE S RIERZEE IR

number of independent customers that have a good track record FPEB MESEAEBRESRIFNFERLE -

with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the BIBEUNFELR  ARAREERAERAAEERE

Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment WOREERMNE - MEGBEINEN 2D -
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been WA F B ERBEITRERE -

a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.
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20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20.B{I:E - & R EMEWEIE
RECEIVABLES
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT T AREFT
(Restated)
27
Advance to suppliers BTSN 297,723 254,941
VAT recoverable TR B ER 20,495 18,006
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, BEVE  BEEZED
plant and equipment 2&e 23,943 38,934
Deposits paid for finance lease arrangement TRmEHELHI N2 iEE 4,776 -
Refundable deposits ARER S 13,266 2,748
Consideration receivable on disposal of trade names EWHERFERE 25,000 -
Consideration receivable on disposal of subsidiaries  f& U H & i B A T4 (E - 9,000
Others EAh 4,997 9,555
390,200 333,184
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts W RIBAREE (46,657) (3,378)
Total e 343,543 329,806
Less: Current portion W mENE D (314,824) (290,872)
Non-current portion FEMBNIEL S 28,719 38,934
Movements in allowance for bad and doubtful debts during the FERRIBERENESHNT
year were as follows:
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT T AREFT
(Restated)
(B=E=7)
1 January 1HA1H 3,378 3,050
Impairment losses recognised BRRAEEE 43,279 2,116
Reversal of Impairment losses previously recognised 4= BT 28R (B & 18 & @ = (1,788)
31 December 12A31H 46,657 3,378
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None of the above assets is past due. The financial assets
included in the above balances relate to receivables for which

there was no recent history of default.
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21.AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) RELATED
PARTIES, AN ASSOCIATE AND A DIRECTOR

The amounts due from/(to) related parties, an associate and a

el (NBEEAL BEQT
REEIEA

i (RBEAL  BEARREFHKE
BIER - SERERERHEE -

21.

director are unsecured, interest—free and repayable on demand.

BIEEBRAUENE161BIE(F622% ) B E
MREUR BB A T FRBERIIT -

The information of amounts due from related parties disclosed
pursuant to Section 161B of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) is as follows:

Maximum amount

outstanding Balance at 31 Balance at 31

during the year ~ December 2014 December 2013
FAREE R20145F 20135
BEEE 12ANENER  12A31H0ES
RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETR ARBTT
(Restated)
(g=7)
Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd. (Note i) BEREBRROBBRAR (FEE) 6,513 6,513 1,929
EBTEB New Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (Note ii)  S{E% #TaL R AR A 7 (i) 33,372 33,372 -
Fujian Youtong Industrial Co., Ltd. (Note iii) RBRRBEZBR DA (M) 2,811 2,257 2,804
Fujian Scud Technology Co., Ltd. (Note iv) RERERREAR AR (V) 749 749 -
China Source Limited (Note v) PEERER AR (M) 9,800 9,800 -
Fuzhou Shanghe Electronics Co., Ltd. (Note vi) @M EMEFER DA (Fiztvi) 5,284 5284 -
57,975 4,733

Notes: FfaE -

(i)  Its directors and shareholders, Mr. Fang Jin and Mr. Guo
Quan Zeng, are also the directors and shareholders of the

Company.

(ii) Its director is the son of, Mr. Fang lJin, a director and
shareholder of the Company.

(iii) Its director, Mr. Fang lin, is also a director and shareholder
of the Company.

(iv) Its director and shareholder, Mr. Fang Jin, is also a director
and shareholder of the Company.

(v) Its director and sole shareholder is the daughter of, Mr.
Fang Jin, a director and shareholder of the Company.

(vi) Its director and major shareholder is the son of, Mr. Fang

Jin, a director and shareholder of the Company.

() HREFRBRERSTSEERBRIEELETR
ARBZEERBR -

() HEBAHSEEARDZEERER)
2%

i) AEBHEEENHART2EBRE

(v) HEBRBESSELENBELAZES
RBRER -

() HESRE—BRASSEL(RATL
FERBIDZK -

v) HESRIBRRASSEL(AATL

EERBER)IZTF -
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22.

23.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets have
been pledged by the Group in favour of the banks as guarantees
for the issuance of bank accepted notes for payments to
suppliers, landlord as collaterals for electricity expenses payable
and pledged for other loans:

22. EEEH

RBMERAR AEBDHATEEER TR
17 (ERAMER KM L RITEER 2
BR BFRIERENEENERRIERERSH
1t B R A AR -

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ET ARBTT

Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) M - BB REE(HE15) 54,907 710
Bank deposits RITIFR 422,104 239,424
477,011 240,134

BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND TIME
DEPOSITS

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less.

The Chinese Renminbi (“RMB") is not freely convertible into
other currencies, however, under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Time deposits are made for periods depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group and earn interest at the
respective short-term time deposit rates. The directors consider
that the fair values of the short—term deposits are not materially
different from their carrying amounts because of the short
maturity period. As at 31 December 2014, the Group had time
deposit of RMB60,000,000 (2013: Nil) placed with banks with
original maturity period of one year and earned interest at
interest rate at 3.3% (2013: Nil).

23. BITEHRRAEREBRER

RITEHR LB ERAEEFENR S MRE
HHR=EATIA TEEHRRITER

ARBETARE DI ERLBEMBES
A B BESMNEE R IEH RAEE  BERN
EEEMTE  AEEAEHFREETINESL
MER 2 RITHE -

EHRFERZEHR - DRIAEBM AR ST
KME - RERUEHFERAFERNFAE - &
ERRBEREHEMERNEHANER - Bt
HAFEHEEABETHEERER - N2014%F
12A318 - REEERTFRIRKERERA
—F M E B7F R A AKR60,000,0007t(2013
FF) > WiK3.3% (20134 : T)HF R BRER
FB o
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2. BHESRERENEZRE

24. TRADE AND NOTES PAYABLES

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R AREEF T

(Restated)

(&E7)

Trade payables FERTE 58 340,833 204,191
Notes payables FENZER 875,982 522,216
1,216,815 726,407

An aged analysis of trade and notes payables at the end of the

reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

RIBHZER - RIWERRES RN E H KB NE

NEENRE DT -

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T AERBTT

(Restated)

(& =E7)

0 to 60 days 0&260H 665,076 533,157
61 to 180 days 612180H 434,473 135,863
181 to 365 days 1812365H 92,691 51,153
1 to 2 years —EWE 20,263 4,186
2 to 3 years ME=F 2,033 557
Over 3 years =FLAE 2,279 1,491
1,216,815 726,407

Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for
trade purchases and ongoing costs. The average credit period

taken for trade purchases ranged from 30 to 90 days.

ENESHETIEZCREFIBE MISEKRAN
AXFIA - BHBENFHEEHNF3I0R

£90H -
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25. OTHER PAYABLES, RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE 25 HfhfE{tFIE - AR E R EST

26.

184

AND ACCRUED CHARGES EH
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREEF T
(Restated)
(&E5))
Deposits b 37,094 93,520
Payroll and welfare payables FE 1= 2 B fe 42 A 28,812 24,933
Accrued expenses FEETHIX 8,671 2,868
Payables for acquisition of property, BEWE  BENMREEMNZE
plant and equipment 7,021 2,668
Other tax payables HAth e 18 94,870 2,355
Withholding tax liability TEIRIESE 10,500 4,250
Others HAh 21,784 26,349
208,752 156,943
PROVISIONS FOR REFUND AND 26. EmEIWKRRIEEEE
WARRANTY
Refund Warranty Total
EmEug EmRE @ct
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREBTT ARBTET
1 January 2013 2013417416 97,071 3,074 100,145
Additions NE 257,818 - 257,818
Realisation/release O HE (354,889) (80) (354,969)
De-recognition upon disposal of
subsidiaries BB A RE 42 E R - (59) (59)
At 31 December 2013 (restated) 7201312 A31H (K E5)
and 1 January 2014 N&20145F1H18 - 2,935 2,935
Additions nNE - 169 169
At 31 December 2014 R2014412 8318 - 3,104 3,104
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26.PROVISIONS FOR REFUND AND

WARRANTY (Continued)

Provision for refund

In the fourth quarter of 2012, the Group took initiatives to
communicate with its major distributors and made adjustments
to its market sales strategies. The Group implemented the
Own-Brand Battery Recall Plan whereby the Group refunded its
distributors for the unmarketable mobile phone battery under
“SCUDRERE” and “Chaolitongi8 /738" brands which they had
previously purchased from the Group during the period from
1 January 2010 to 30 June 2012, to offset trade receivables.
This Own-Brand Battery Recall Plan allows the distributors to
tackle the difficulties in overstocking and capital turnover and to
purchase new products with liquidised capital. The Own-Brand
Battery Recall Plan was completed in the first half of 2013.

In 2012, the Group made a provision for impairment of the
refund made in the fourth quarter of 2012, as well as a
provision for impairment loss due to the Own-Brand Battery
Recall Plan expected to occur in the first half of 2013. The
directors estimated the provision for refund based on estimated
quantity, agreed price and net realisable value of the refunded
products. During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group
recorded an one—off impairment in the amount of approximately
RMB151,743,000 arising from the refund of own-brand mobile
phone batteries already made during 2012 and to be made in
2013, which included approximately RMB97,071,000 provision
for refund in the consolidated statement of financial position.

In 2013, upon the completion of the Own-Brand Battery Recall
Plan, the Group is found underestimated the recall of the own-
brand batteries. Accordingly, a further loss of RMB257,818,000
(restated) was recognised in profit or loss during the year ended
31 December 2013. Details of the Own-Brand Battery Recall Plan
is set out in Note 3(d).

Provision for warranty

The provision for warranty represents management’s best
estimate of the Group's liability under a half-year warranty
program granted on the own-brand batteries, based on prior
experience and industry averages for defective products.

26. EmBEIR R RIEEES )

EmEREES
REBEH0NFENEREFHE R HEHE
TEB PAEMSHERE AEETHERE
Bt B W ET & - M9 88 7 B SR AR 20104 1
A1BEZE201246 A308 Z MmALBREED
7 S5 [ SCUDTR E B | oa B2 X[ Chaolitongifa 1
BIREFRED - IEEERE SHRIE -
R T e BIRE D R B U RREFEE R
EeAELENRE 2o HMEESHEBAN
B o 2T M EIRETEIE R2013F L¥F5%
K o

720129 - AEEEHN2012FEMWEEMm
Bl VR BB - LN - TRE ATERTH2013
FE¥FRZBEEME UGB A3 B FERE
BRELRERE - EFREBEEWERE
HE - HBEERLRAUZERFE HERDK
R R B - MELE2012F12A831B IEFE
A REEMN20126 50 B R FEFT R 20134F
#HEW 2 B @EFREMIEL —XMERRE
BB ARME151,743,0007T © BIEIIRREGE
Ak R A A R #597,071,0007T ) & i [
W A o

F2013F © @B EMEIWETBITTRE - AEE
BIHEM T mEERHERE - Bt - REZE
2013%12A318 IEFE - AR #¥257,818,000
T(EES))H#E—TEERNIBRER - RRE
b EIE B 2 FEEE KT EE3(d) ©

ERREERESE

EnRELEBLEEEERBBELBRLEN
REFHHE  RAKERENEAEREED
FERE BN ABELOREMSF
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27. BORROWINGS 27. B
2014 2013
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR¥T R AREEF T
Bank loans (Note (a)): RITER(MFE@Q))
Secured bank loans BEFRITER 122,030 422
Unsecured bank loans EIAIRTTER 258,522 320,381
380,552 320,803
Other loans (Note (b)) HAE R (MI7E (b)) 29,492 -
410,044 320,803
Notes: BiI5E -
(@) The terms of repayment of the bank loans are as follows: (a) WITEFERFHWOT :
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREFT
Current portion: ENEL S
Within 1 year or on demand —FRHIFER 380,405 320,511
Non-current portion: IERENE D
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFA 147 147
After 2 years but within 5 years MFERERFRN = 145
147 292
Total @t 380,552 320,803
As at 31 December 2014, bank loans of approximately 2014512 A31H - #9AE#122,030,000
RMB122,030,000 (2013: RMB422,000) were secured JL(20134F + AREEA422,0007T) HERITERR
by the Group’s motor vehicles with a carrying amount UAREBEEREELS ARE626,0005T(2013
of approximately RMB626,000 (2013: RMB710,000) &+ AR¥710,0007T ) 897 BV AR (BT
(Note 22), bank deposits of RMB422,104,000 (2013: 5¥22) © AR#422,104,0007T(20134F A
RMB239,424,000) (Note 22) and by personal guarantee R #239,424,0007T ) B8R 1T 1% & (BT 7£22)
from the Company’s director and controlling shareholder, WA A ES RIER R T & L AETtm
Mr. Fang Jin, for certain bank loans of the Group up to an AEBERH S TR EARE233,258,000
amount of RMB233,258,000 (2013: RMB183,660,000). T0(20134F : AKR#183,660,0007T) Fy& T
RITERIEBEALER
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27. BORROWINGS (continued) 27. &)
Notes: (Continued) M5 : (48)
(@) (Continued) (a) (#&)
The average effective interest rates per annum (which are $’§IE’J%ETT%?&E’J¥1’:]§B%§%IJ$(D‘MH
also equal to the contractual interest rates) on the Group’s AN -

bank borrowings are as follows:

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT

Average effective interest rate on BERZFHERRE
fixed-rate borrowings 4.49% 5.25%
(b) Other loans (b) HAER
The Group obtained other loans from two financial ?%I%Fﬁﬁé@%%%?—%ﬁmﬁm°
institutions. These other loans are secured by certain plant ZEHMERBETERFAERARE
and machinery of net carrying amount of RMB51,425,000, 51,425,000%%)@%&%@?&?ﬁ &l E F
bear fixed interest rate at 6% per annum and are repayable FER6% RAR=FNEE -

in three years.

The average effective interest rates per annum (which are ZiN
also equal to the contractual interest rates) on the Group's IS
other loans are at 13%.

EEEMBERNTFHERENR(NE
AHIFE)B13% °
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28. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

RECOGNISED

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the

movements during the year are as follows:

2. CBERNEERBEEERERE

RERNEHFAEVBRAREROELERBE
E/(af)BoREBHNT

Impairment Loss on
loss on refund/
trade and  Accelerated inventories Undistributed
other accounting  Provision written  profits of
receivables depreciation for warranty down  subsidiaries Tax loss Others Total
EUHE Rz Em
REMEY it ER  ER/HE HEAFN
FERERR  GHRE  REEGE  MHIEE  RAREN  HEEE Eft Eh
RVMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT  ARETR AR¥TR ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR
1 January 2013 01351718 1,464 - 618 35,469 (3,320) - - 34,231
Credit/(charge) to profit o loss WERREA/ (%) (5) - (83) 48,566 (2,040) 4,065 - 50,503
31 Decernber 2013 (restated) W13F12E31R(£E])
and 1 January 2014 R201451A18 1459 - 535 84,035 (5,360) 4,065 - 84,734
Crediti(charge) to profit or loss REERA/ (%) 3903 31 68 - - (4,065 (573) (636)
31 December 2014 20148124318 5362 31 603 84,035 (5,360) - (573) 84,098
For presentation purpose, certain deferred tax assets and MENMmMS  ETELHRBEBEENBELDER

liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax

balances for financial reporting purposes:

FEMBRRRIEE - LT ARMBHREMMAE
HAEERBGE TN -

2014 2013
RMB‘'000 RMB’000
ARETTT AREEF T
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the TERETBRREA
consolidated statement of financial position HRZEERIBEE 90,031 90,094
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the e BRI RA
consolidated statement of financial position R EERIB A & (5,933) (5,360)
84,098 84,734
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28. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

RECOGNISED (Continued)

The Group has tax loss carry forwards amounting to
approximately RMB28,955,000 (2013: RMB75,928,000) which
relate to subsidiaries that have a history of losses and may not
be used to offset taxable income elsewhere in the Group. These
subsidiaries have no temporary taxable differences which could
partly support the recognition of deferred tax assets. Also, there
are no tax planning opportunities available that would further
provide a basis for recognition.

If the Group was able to recognise all unrecognised deferred tax
assets, profits would increase by approximately RMB5,760,000
(2013: RMB18,982,000).

According to Articles 3 and 37 of the PRC Enterprise Income Tax
Law, distribution of dividends by a foreign investment enterprise
in China to its non—tax resident foreign investor is subject to
Enterprise Income Tax at source on a withholding basis. The
standard withholding tax rate pursuant to Article 4 of the PRC
Enterprise Income Tax Law is 20%. According to Article 27
of the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law and Article 91 of the
Detailed Implementation Rules of the PRC Enterprise Income
Tax Law, the applicable withholding tax rate has been reduced
to 10%. Under the Arrangement between the Mainland China
and Hong Kong Special Administration Region (“HKSAR") for
the Avoidance of Double Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal
Evasion, or Mainland China/HKSAR Double Taxation Agreement,
Hong Kong tax residents which hold 25% or more of a PRC
enterprise are entitled to a reduced dividend withholding tax rate
of 5%.

2. CRRNELERBEEEREE 2

NEE B HEEBIEEEL ARK28,955,0007T

(20134 : AR%75,928,0007T)  WEEIES

Ko 6715 518 MO KT B A B 2 AR 4 A B BASR 85 AN

SEHEMM T B ERTUA - L EWB AR

A E D IR ERIEEHIEE ERNERE R

ER o Lo WEBIEG BRI — S RM
REAE o

MAEBELETAEAERNECHBEEMR
R B4 A R #5,760,00070(2013
F: AR¥18,982,0007T) ©

RIE R B EEHIEEIGEREI7ER - R
INEIREDEREABE RINHIZEE SR
2 RBBLUREIE T A BMDEEMBET -
BIERBEREEPEFME - REENBE A
20% ° MIRFEFRBBEMEBIEE 276 KRR
EMBRAE GG EME - LiEAEN
BERBE10% ° BIECA M E B R A7 =
(TEARFRTHE D EREMSEREEEHN
BRI A ZHE) - RS BRBIRE25%5
A FRESHBEBRRER - AREER K%
AR BIEF
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28.

190

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
RECOGNISED (Continued)

In addition, according to Cai Shui [2008] No. 1, a circular jointly
issued by the Ministry of Finance and State Administration of
Taxation on 22 February 2008, distribution of dividends out of
pre 2008 retained profits by a foreign investment enterprise to
its foreign investor in or after 2008 is exempted from Enterprise
Income Tax, whereas distribution of dividends out of profits
generated by a foreign investment enterprise in or after 2008
shall be subjected to Enterprise Income Tax in accordance with
the relevant articles of the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law and its
Detailed Implementation Rules as described above. Accordingly,
dividends receivable from certain subsidiaries in respect of profits
earned since 1 January 2008 is subject to 5% withholding tax.

At 31 December 2014, the Group’s share of aggregate amount
of temporary differences associated with retained earnings of the
Company’s PRC subsidiaries was approximately RMB364,869,000
(2013: RMB239,869,000). Deferred tax liabilities have not
been all provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of the Group’s share of temporary differences
attributable to retained profits of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries
as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

2. CRRNELERBEEEREE 2

SO0 AR IR B IED I B R B 48 B P 200842
R22BHEEmHCBREEMSHE TESR
BR E9@ ) (BAF{[2008]15%%) » 20084F Z B oM
EIRECERKNRERSEFE - /£20084
FAEDBEIINEEEED - Al 2BREMS
Tt M20084F sk bAT& FFE MR IR E DR FNIZ
FESE - Bk EaiPBEAERSREABIIK
Pl R LB iR RIS R 2 AT A8 - Bt -
ATHEBRARE2008F1 818 HAKRESET
) i FE U AR B ZB BN 5 % HITEANES -

M20145F12A318 » RE E EHEH KA A
FEMBARREBEFNEENEREZEAH
# A R #364,869,0007T(2013F : A R #
239,869,0007T) © H3FA 7N &8 [ AT 47 Il 1% B B
ZREZEME BEREZENRERETSE
@] - 7N & 00 A 5 E (L AR B AR EIRT B A mlR
BEFNELRZ MBS EZEN A BB HRERE
HIRER A& ERE o
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29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. IR &

Number of
ordinary shares

of HK$0.10 each Amount
#R0.108 T
EBERRE ot |
in Thousands RMB’000
TFhx AREEF T
Authorised: JETE ¢
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 R2013F1A18 ~ 20134
and 2014 2014512 A31H 5,000,000 502,350
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER -
At 1 January 2013 and R2013F 118 &

31 December 2013 20134 12A31H 1,032,001 103,014
Placing of shares (Note) 1% 1 Bic & (B 5E) 58,000 4,576
At 31 December 2014 F2014F12H31H 1,090,001 107,590

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2014, 58,000,000 MHEE: BHZE2014F12A31BIEFE - AR
new ordinary shares of par value of HK$0.01 each AIEAARRINER 2B E=H1E
of the Company were issued at placing price of B E{E1.068 LT &R EE A0.01
HK$1.06 to the then independent third parties of the 75 7T #958,000,00008 #7 f% © Fr 18 3
Company at aggregate proceeds of approximately T8 48 % #) /359,300,0007% 7T (A 3
HK$59,300,000 (equivalent to RMB46,749,000), net ANR#46,749,0007T) » IR EITE
of issuing expenses, of which RMB4,576,000 was A H AR 4,576,000 8 A KK
credited to share capital and the remaining balance of AR T e AR #42,173,00070 5
RMB42,173,000 was credited to the share premium AR R EBERA ©
account.
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30. RESERVES 30. &
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of REBGEERNSER D REV RERGEE
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out NHEHENGARRETHEK - AR RFI R
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of FERBERNE D RERE B 2 5EIHFFHY T -

the changes in the Company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set out

below:
Retained
profits/
Share Capital Translation  (accumulated Total
premium reserve reserve losses) reserves
RBBFH,/
i B EHEEE  (REEE) fAELE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETRT ARETRT  ARETR
At 1 January 2013 720131714 577,115 250,887 (128,633) 68,521 767,890
Loss for the year KEEEA - - - (122,681) (122,681)
Other comprehensive income HEm 2w - - (15,145) - (15,145)
Total comprehensive income for the year AFE 2K AHE - - (15,145) (122,681) (137,826)
At 31 December 2013 ®2013F12A318 577,115 250,887 (143,778) (54,160) 630,064
(Accumulated
Share losses)
Share Capital option  Translation [retained Total
premium reserve reserve reserve profits reserves
(BitE8R)/
REE EXGfE  BRERG Bt REER LR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2014 R201451 718 577,115 250,887 - (143,778) (54,160) 630,064
Profit for the year REEGEF - - - - 103,770 103,770
Other comprehensive income HE2EkE - - - 1,610 - 1,610
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ AEE2 AW £ - - - 1,610 103,770 105,380
Share-based payment expenses (Note 31)  JATRA A%H 2 305 (Aif31) - - 14,811 - - 14,811
Placing of shares (Note 29) REMR (M3H29) 42,173 - - - - 2173
Dividend paid BHRE = = - - (8,114) (8,118)
At 31 December 2014 R2014%12A318 619,288 250,887 14,811 (142,168) 41,496 784,314
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on
3 December 2006. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme
is to reward eligible participants who have contributed to the
Group and to encourage eligible participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the
Company and its shareholders as a whole. Eligible participants
of the Share Option Scheme include directors and employees
of the Group and any directors and employees of the Group,
advisors, consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents,
customers, business partners, joint venture business partners,
promoters or service providers of the Company whom the board
of directors of the Group considers to have contributed or will
contribute to the Group.

The Share Option Scheme was adopted for a period of 10 years
expiring on 2 December 2016 and the Company by ordinary
resolution in general meeting or the board of directors of the
Company may at anytime terminate the Share Option Scheme
without prejudice to the options granted during the life of the
Share Option Scheme and which remain unexpired immediately
prior to such termination.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at the time of listing,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The
total number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of
which options granted and may be granted to any individual in
any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of
the Company in use at any point in time, without prior approval
from the Company’s shareholders. The number of shares issued
and to be issued in respect of which options granted and may
be granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non—executive director or any of their respective associates
representing in aggregate or with an aggregate value in excess
of HK$5,000,000 must be approved in advance by resolution of
the Company’s shareholders (voting by way of poll).

31. B IR AERT &

RARZBERESTE([ZERETE ) AIRE
2006512 A3H Ml 7 TR FBRERMN - IR
EFE s ENRREHALSEEER A ER
2MELEEEERSNERIEALRE - A
NAIRORERREENEEMS ) - Bk
HENSER2NEREASEESREER
TEBEZERRUAEEEERIBHERE
EEERNAENAEEEEZRES - KAFE
B BBA - DR ABR - HtER - R
A BE EBBHN - AELEFEBBE B
AR L ERY -

ZBRE A BIRMFRARTF - BR20165F12
A2R2)8 - EEBZBRE S FHRMET
BRI S Y R BEAR LB 5 R JE T B i 2 g as
T ARAAHERRAG L2 EBRBEREA
RAEEGAPMEMERREZBREE -

REARDRREAE - RIBZERAEST BT 8
B BRRERT S 2 IR A% - TSR A
NAEEMREBITRG 210% ° REARRQ A
AR SR BE/E - PRl — FF B 48 K AT RE (Al (R fa {E 51
ATHEE 2 ERERT S R 2 BT RS T 81T
BpHBE  TERBBARAREREBITRGOZ
1% c BAERAEREEZRFIBTIFNTES
FAEMBEEF2BMEATRL CERERMS R 2
BEITRETETROEESIMS SRS LB
85,000,000/ 7T - AR R FIRE(AKRRE
FARFA)FBERA
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Upon the grant of an option a consideration of HK$1 is payable
and the relevant option may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time during the
exercise period to be determined by the board of directors,
which shall not exceed 10 years. The exercise price of the options
shall be determined by the board of directors of the Company in
its absolute discretion but will in any event not be less than the
higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated
in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
on the date of an offer of an option by the Company (which
must be a business day); (ii) the average closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued
by the Stock Exchange for the 5 preceding business days of the
day of the offer of an option; or (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares.

Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one share
of the Company. Share options do not confer rights on the
holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meeting.

Details of the share options outstanding during the year are as
follows:

31. iR EST Bl (2)

BRERER  ABRARAXMABTZRELRA
REFGMETE 217 B R iR % B R
B2 R ITR AR AE - BRTRBTEE
BtFE - BREZTEERARRESTS 2R
BISERE - HEBOEETEER THIFEF
Z&EmE ()VARABRNRAARRZRLE
BEER(BEREXR)EMIMEL A
WEXRHZBTE  (ARFRRNDIRELR
HBEREEAMAEERAERIABEL S
R¥RERMAIZFHRHE : i) RN B B
ZHEAE °

BOBREETRHEARNRBEARR — KK
o BEEYEE TREABNBREHNER
RELIRRZHER -

REFRITEZBRZFHBDT

Number of
shares options

BREHAE
Outstanding at 1 January and 31 December 2013 2013F1A18BR12A31BEKTE -
Granted during the year NARFEEIZRT 80,000,000
Outstanding at 31 December 2014 M20145F12 A31 B ARITHE 80,000,000

The fair value of the share options determined on 19 June 2014
(the grant date) using the Black-Scholes pricing model was
HK$0.234 per share and the total estimated fair value of the
options granted was approximately HK$18,701,000 (equivalent
to RMB14,811,000).
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The following assumptions were used to calculate the fair values
of share options:

19 June 2014

Exercise price HK$0.94
Expected option life 3 years
Expected volatility 55.047%
Annualised dividend yield 1.898%
Risk—free rate 0.442%

The Black=Scholes pricing model has been used to estimate the
fair value of the share options. The variables and assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options are based
on the directors’ best estimate. The fair value of share options
carries with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.

The Group recognised the total share-based payment expenses
of RMB14,811,000 (2013: RMB Nil) in profit or loss of the
current year in relation to share options granted by the
Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the weighted average
exercise is HK$0.94. The remaining contractual live of the
options outstanding as at 31 December 2014 is 2.5 years.

31. BIRERE(2)

S PR A TR T P T3 B ¢

201456 819H
(B 0.9477C
BERETEHI R 34
TE HRR 18 55.047%
FEREE 1.898%
2 [ e ) = 0.442%

s 58010 72 — ST BT | A B
BATE - APBREN A TEZ SREER
TERE BB G - WA AT (8
B BER A TR R AR -

AEBRARBRHNBREREBRER
FEARDBERZAREAIRBEBAARE
14,811,0007C(20134F : ARKZT) -

REZE2014F 128318 IEFE - IMEFHITE
B/A0.947% 7T - W2014%128318 » HARTTE
ERENFSGRENFRAB25F -
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32. SUBSIDIARIES 32. B E]
Details of the subsidiaries of the Company at the end of the RBEPRBERERRAMNBRRFBLOT -
reporting period are as follows. The class of shares held is MIESHHRA  HEMNRGIER AL ER

ordinary unless otherwise stated:

Place of Issued and
incorporation/ paid-up share/
establishment and registered Group's effective
Name of company operation capital ownership interest  Principal activities
oA BRITREH F5E
NRER REEHE BRRA BRERER TEEK
2014 2013
Great Speed Enterprises Limited  British Virgin Islands ~ US$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
BAREEERAT HBRTHES 50,0005 7T BRI
Scud Group (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$1 100%* 100%*  Provision of corporate
Company Limited B 1787T management services
REREE(BE)AERAR RUDFREERS
Keen Power Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100%* 100%*  Investment holding
HeEEEERAR BB 1,000/7T REER
Scud Power (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. PRC US$3,000,000 100%* 100%*  Manufacturing and sale
(Note (i)) H 3,000,000% 7T of lithium—ion battery
REBERIDERATR] modules, power banks
(BE&EG) and related accessories for
mobile phones and digital
electrical appliances
BUERHERSE T B A -
BHEREFHREZIGHRE
FE 2 AR
* Interest indirectly held through Great Speed Enterprises * FRRAPEAR A RIMEESEARER

Limited
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32. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and

Name of company operation
R
DRER RREE

32. fifEB AT (#)

Issued and
paid-up share/

registered Group's effective
capital ownership interest  Principal activities
BRTRES eS|
BRRA EREERER TEEK
2014 2013

Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Ltd. PRC
(Note (ii) H
REBER)EFERATA
(B EEGN)

Scud Battery Co., Ltd. (Note (iii)) PRC
REREDAR A T (PHEGI) i

US$127,000,000 100%* 100%*  Manufacturing and sale
127,000,000F 7T of lithium—ion battery
modules, power banks
and related accessories for
mobile phones and digital
electrical appliances
BUE SRR TEMRA
BHEREFHREZIGRE

FEMRZ @RS
US$30,000,000 100%* 100%*  Manufacturing and sale
30,000,000 7T of lithium-ion battery

modules, power banks,
power management
modules and related
accessories for mobile
phones and digital
electrical appliances

SLE R HEERE T B ARAE
BEER - BREREER
FREFHRETER A

e
Shenzhen Hongde Battery PRC RMB50,000,000 60%° 60%® Research and development,
Co., Ltd. (Note (iv)) HE AR manufacturing and sale of
AITREENERAR 50,000,0007C lithium—ion bare battery
(MIaEGv)) cells
BRETEN M £ERE
&
* Interest indirectly held through Keen Power Holdings t o BB EEERATIMES AR
Limited
@ Interest indirectly held through Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., e FEEMERER)ETAERAREEEAR
Ltd. s
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32. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 32. B AT &)
Place of Issued and
incorporation/ paid-up share/
establishment and registered Group's effective

Name of company operation capital ownership interest  Principal activities

oA BRIREH FEE

NGIEE RGEHE BRERA BRERER TEEK

2014 2013

Dongguan Hongde Battery PRC RMB50,000,000 60%" 60%"  Research and development,
Co., Ltd. (Note (v)) HE AR manufacturing and sale of

RemEEEMERAT 50,000,0007T lithium—ion bare battery
(BFFE()) cells

EEEFBUZIE  HER
HE

Scud (Beijing) Electronics Co., Ltd. PRC RMB5,000,000 N/A 40%® De-registered on 6 January
(Note (vi)) i AR TEA 2014

REBROGER)EFERAT 5,000,0007T M20145 1 A6H
(B &E(v)

Fujian Green Energy Co., Ltd. PRC RMB5,000,000 100%" 100%°  Not yet commenced business
(Formerly known as “Fujian R AREE and de-registered on 14
Chaolitong Battery Co Ltd") 5,000,0007T July 2017
(Note (vii)) R 2 E W 201746

RRZBERERAR(AIRA G
(BB NBENERAF])

(B &k (vii))

Scud USA Inc. USA US$320,000 100%* 100%*  Sales of lithium-ion battery

REMEHARAA xH 320,000% 7T modules, power banks
and related accessories for
mobile phones and digital
electrical appliances

HEERTENRE  BHE
REFREHFRETED
pis |l
" Interest indirectly held through Shenzhen Hongde Battery " HiRrImBEESEER ARIBESEAE
Co., Ltd. 2%

@ Interest indirectly held through Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., ° FRRERCGER)ETERARMEERE
Ltd. e

' Interest indirectly held through Scud Battery Co., Ltd. ' OERRERESERAFIHERGER

* Interest indirectly held through Great Speed Enterprises * EREACEBRARMEERAES
Limited
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32. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 32. B AT &)
Place of Issued and
incorporation/ paid-up share/
establishment and registered Group's effective
Name of company operation capital ownership interest  Principal activities
oA BRIREH S 3|
DRER RREE BRRA EREERER TEEK
2014 2013
Patriots Group (China) Company  Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%* 100%*  Not yet commenced business
Limited EE 10,0007 7T AR IR E %

EEEEE(TE)ERAA

Patriots (Hong Kong) Power Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%* 100%*  Not yet commenced business
Sources Company Limited B 10,0007%7T BENGLE=E
BFRE(HFR)RERERRA

Shenzhen Nalon Battery Company PRC RMB30,000,000 70%° 70%®  Research and development,
Limited (Note (viii)) FE AR manufacturing and sale of
RYTEARE E A R A B (T FE 30,000,0007C lithium—ion bare battery
(viii)) cells
B TENHE  £ER
HE
Fujian Scud New Energy Co., Ltd. PRC RMB20,000,000 100%* 100%*  Not yet commenced business
(Note (ix)) H ARM RNz
BRERERIERER LR 20,000,0007T
(BiIEGx)
* Interest indirectly held through Great Speed Enterprises * O EBEACERRARMESE GRS
Limited
@ Interest indirectly held through Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., e FEEMERER)ETAERAREEEAR
Ltd. R
*  Interest indirectly held through Fujian Green Energy Co., + ERREGHERARARBEE AR
Ltd.
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32. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 32. B AT &)
Place of Issued and
incorporation/ paid-up share/
establishment and registered Group's effective
Name of company operation capital ownership interest  Principal activities
Ly BRIREH FEE
NGIEE RGEHE BRERA BRERER TEEK
2014 2013
Hongde New Energy Technology —PRC RMB10,000,000 N/A 60%"  Research and development,
Co., Ltd. (Formerly known as AR (Note xi) manufacturing and sale of
“Hongde Battery Co., Ltd.") 10,000,0007T TEHA lithium—ion bare battery
(Note (x)) (HaExi) cells
TR REHE AR AR BETFEDHE  £ER
(FEAIEEENERRA]) HE
(P &E(X)
Fuzhou Thousand Island PRC RMB500,000 100%* 100%*  Not yet commenced business
Electronics Co., Ltd. (Note (xii)) AR #500,0007C EENGEEI=E

BINTBEF AR R B (i)

Scud Hong Kong Trading Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%* 100%*  Not yet commenced business

RERBEAEHERAT o 10,000/ 7T rARFIIA & 2

*Interest indirectly held through Shenzhen Hongde Battery ~ O BBRRYIMBREERERAREESEE
Co., Ltd. &=

+  Interest indirectly held through Fujian Green Energy Co., v ERRESDERERATIHERAER
Ltd.

* Interest indirectly held through Great Speed Enterprises * EARACEERATEEREER
Limited
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32. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)
(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

Wholly—foreign owned enterprise for a term of 50 years
commencing 26 October 2006.

Wholly—foreign owned enterprise for a term of 50 years
commencing 31 October 1997.

Wholly—foreign owned enterprise for a term of 50 years
commencing 6 December 2005.

Limited liability company for a term of 20 years
commencing 21 January 2005.

Limited liability company commencing 11 April 2011.

Limited liability company for a term of 20
commencing 3 August 2010.

years

Limited liability company for a term of 20 years
commencing 21 October 2010.

Limited liability company for a term of 10 years
commencing 4 July 2007.

Limited liability company for a term of 30 years
commencing 3 May 2013.

Limited liability company for a term of 50 years
commencing 14 August 2013.

Limited liability company for a term of 20 years

commencing 7 September 2012.

During the year, the Group disposed of 60% of the entire
shareholding interest in Hongde New Energy Technology
Co., Ltd (see Note 34 ().

During the year, none of the subsidiaries had issued any debt
securities.

32. fifEB AT (#)
B -

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

INEEBE DX - 2006510 H26F 5t A
BR+4F -

INEEBE MDY - 199710831 B & A
BIR 4 -

S NE BB 2 - 200512 A6H 5t A H
A+F -

BEEEAT 200551 A21 B st AH
—+F o

EREEAT - 2011FE4811 Bt o

BIRETAA - 2010F8 A3H BT A —
T4 o

EREMEAT 2010610821 B & A
H—t+F o

BREEAT - 200747 A4R B A —
4 o

BREEAT - 20135 A3R B A=
4 o

BREEERAT  2013F8 140 5T AHA
HA4F o

BREERAT - 20129F9 878 1A=
4 o

RAFEE  AEFHEBEHRERREE
IR AT 2SR H60% (R HTEE34 (o) »

RAREE - BENEBRRETERERES -
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33. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 33. IR
Summarised financial information in relation to the Group’s NEBEAE AT ([ FEIEEER )2
subsidiaries that have material non—controlling interests (“NCls"), FEARNEERNYHEAM U BERBESZY
before intra—group eliminations, is presented below: T
2014 2013
Percentage of equity interest held by NCls: JEERRE R T (E R A DL ¢
Shenzhen Hongde and its subsidiaries FRIIEE R E T E A A 40% 40%
Shenzhen Nalon FIIBARE 30% 30%
Scud Beijing b ERER - 60%
Scud Guangzhou BEMRER - 30%
For the year ended 31 December 2014 B ZE2014F12A8318 L EE
Shenzhen
Hongde
and its Shenzhen
subsidiaries Nalon Total
FIBER
HH B AR YN BARE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB‘000

AR®T T AR¥T T AR®T T

Revenue Wz 283,725 75,653 359,378
(Loss)/profit for the year NEE(ER),/ % T (18,102) 4,141 (13,961)
(Loss)/profit allocated to NCls DEEIEERER 2 (E518),/

i A (6,408) 1,242 (5,166)
Cash flows from operating activities &ZEZBMERETE (3.986) 1,460 (2,526)
Cash flows from investing activities & EBFIBRERE (22,890) (967) (23,857)
Cash flows from financing activities BIEESFEHEERE 29,334 (350) 28,984
Net cash inflows W RAFERE 2,458 143 2,601
Current assets RENEE 295,400 118,128 413,528
Non-current assets EMENEE 58,341 14,703 73,044
Current liabilities nEAE (263,179) (84,154) (347,333)
Non-current liabilities FEREEaE (121) - (121)
Net assets FEE 90,441 48,677 139,118
Accumulated NCls e e 34,592 8,903 43,495
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33. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) 33. R ER 2)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE2013F12831HLLEE
Shenzhen
Hongde
and its Shenzhen Scud Scud
subsidiaries Nalon Beiing  Guangzhou Total
B ER
HiE AR RJBARE  LERRER  BMRER et

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARBTT ARBTT ARETE ARETIL

Revenue Iz 211,498 97,445 2,188 12,240 323,371
Profit/(loss) for the year FERF,/ (FR) (4,840) (7,332) (5,390) (1,582) (19,144)
Loss allocated to NCls A EIERER 2 BB (4,796) (2,200) (3,349) (475) (10,820)
Cash flows from operating activities ~E&EBFFERETE 75,313 4,087 (6,882) (3,973) 68,545
Cash flows from investing activities & FEMERTTE (28,765) (3,073) - (473) (32,311)
Cash flows from financing activities @& FEMERTTE (13,715) (3,771) - 1,938 (15,548)
Net cash inflows/(outflows) BERA/ (L) FE 32,833 (2,757) (6,882) 2,508 20,686
Current assets REEE 242,552 108.009 200 - 350,761
Non-current assets FRBEE 56,178 11,012 81 - 67,271
Current liabilities nBAaE (190,188) (74,486) (8) - (264,682)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE - - - - -
Net assets FEE 108,542 44,535 273 - 153,350
Accumulated NCls Byt 41,000 7,661 49 - 48,710
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34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

204

Disposal of Scud Guangzhou

On 31 May 2013, the Group disposed of 50% of its 70%
interest in Scud Guangzhou to Lin Shi, an independent
third party, which in turn became a 20% owned associate
of the Group. The principal activity of Scud Guangzhou
was research and development, manufacturing and sales

34. HEKHE AR
(a) HEEMAER

M2013565A310 - AEBERBIF=F
MEHEETEREMRERTIONEZ T B
50%#m - AR EKAREERE
20%BEEMEBE N E] o BMNREREZR

BT E MR E b BUS B 2 i

of bluetooth headsets and other digital telecommunication R T EHE o
appliances.
2013
Consideration received: EUARE RMB’000
ARBT T
Consideration paid credited to share capital of Scud FFABEMRERKRAHESKE
Guangzhou 1,017
Analysis of assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in which k3 HIE R B A R E E K&
the control was lost: BEST RMB’000
ARBTT
Property, plant and equipment Y BE KRB 2,919
Intangible assets B AE 46
Inventories FE 9,594
Trade receivables FEWE 5 5/1A 2,663
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERFIE - e REMEYRIE 1,967
Pledged bank deposits EERITIFR 1,053
Bank balances and cash RITHEMRNIR 427
Amounts due to former fellow subsidiaries JEAST B[R] BT /&8 & B 5k 18 (740)
Amount due to former immediate holding company JER R B A B F0E (2,598)
Trade and notes payables BB S AREN T (6,793)
Other payables, receipt in advance and accrued charges HE b B8 « TBWFIA N EHEH (2,637)
Bank loans H|ITER (2,540)
Net assets disposed of HEFEE 3,361
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34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

34. HEMWEB AR (®)

(a) Disposal of Scud Guangzhou (Continued) (a) HEBEMRERZE)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary: HEM B AR EE/NEIE RMB’000
AR¥T T
Net assets disposed of HEFEE (3.361)
Non-controlling interests TR 1,008
Investment retained in the former subsidiary EAFERBEIMNBARMNIEE
at its fair value 672
Consideration paid credited to share capital SFABMRERBEAHERE
of Scud Guangzhou 1,017
Loss on disposal HEEsE (664)
Net cash outflow on disposal of a subsidiary: HEMBAREENFHRS R RMB’000
AR¥T T
Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiary disposed of HERBRARMES MRS
Z(E1EH (427)

The consideration was re—invested into Scud Guangzhou
and recognised as its share capital.

RECEHRREREMNRERLERSE
PRAS o

(b) Disposal of Joint Smart Group (b) HEHAEE
On 19 December 2013, the Group disposed of 100% of the M2013F 12198 - AEBRBILE =
entire shareholding interest in Joint Smart Holdings Limited HEBERNHEERATLEHREEERE
("Joint Smart”) and its subsidiary (collectively referred to as RARI([EE ) REKE A R (58 A B
the “Joint Smart Group”) to HK Huachengrunfeng Limited, Bl ) 2 - BEXZNEREE
an independent third party. The principal activity of Joint i BB AR BEMEERAREE
Smart was investment holding. The principal activities of its HEFERIBIGEHEETERNER TSN
subsidiary, Chaolitong Technology Company Limited, were BB - TERRE RS RIHE o
manufacturing and sale of lithium-ion battery modules,
chargers and related accessories for mobile phones and
digital electrical appliances.
2013

Total consideration satisfied by: wREZWE A : RMB'000

AR¥T
Cash consideration received BUIRSRE 11,000
Consideration receivables FEURERIE 9,000
Total consideration wRE 20,000
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34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b)

206

Disposal of Joint Smart Group (Continued)

Analysis of assets and liabilities of the subsidiary
disposed of:

34. HEMB AT 4
(b) HEHEERS)

HEMBRRNEERBEIN -

RMB’000
AR¥T T
Property, plant and equipment M - BE K& 2,547
Inventories FE 6,600
Trade receivables FEWE 55008 16,065
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TENFIE » e R EMERFIE 4,513
Amount due from a former related company FEUR BT RAZEE N B 5IE 300
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBEIRE 269
Amounts due to former fellow subsidiaries SEEEY SN ] (1,442)
Amount due to former intermediate holding company JEA BT A R AR A B3R (454)
Trade payables ERTE S RIE (7,845)
Other payables, receipt in advance and accrued charges — EfhfETFRIE - FBULFRTE & fET & A (490)
Provision for warranty EmiRERE (59)
Net assets disposed of HEFEE 20,004
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HEWRBARIELERUE : RMB’000
AR¥T T
Net assets disposed of HEFEE (20,004)
Cash consideration received YRS RE 11,000
Consideration receivables FEURIE 9,000
Cumulative exchange differences recognised REHENB AR FEERRNRET
in respect of the net assets of the disposed EH =mEcENRERES
subsidiary reclassified from equity to profit or loss 14,631
Gain on disposal & as 14,627
Net cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary: HERBAREARNFHRESRA RMB’000
AR®T T
Cash consideration received BUERESR(E 11,000
Less: cash and cash equivalents of subsidiary disposed of 3 : EHEMBATNRS KRS E
BI5H (269)
10,731
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34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

34. HEMWEB AR (®)

(c) Disposal of Hongde New Energy Technology () HEBEHERNEERLR
Co., Ltd.
On 11 December 2014, the Group disposed of 100% of HR2014F12A11H » REBRARFR —
its entire interest in Hongde New Energy to a director of HEEHEENBEHNEREBELZR - 8
the Company. The principal activity of Hongde New Energy BmEHRREBE B - RIERIHEEE
was research and development, manufacturing and sales of FE e
lithium—ion bare battery cells.
Total consideration satisfied by: BREZWET R RMB’000
AR¥T T
Cash consideration received BUERSNRE 6,000
Analysis of assets and liabilities of the subsidiary HEWRBARNEERBESI
disposed of: RMB’000
AR¥T R
Property, plant and equipment L E =N 18,730
Inventories FE 16,433
Trade receivables JEWE 5 5/18 10,045
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FARTRIE © Re RCHE MR 49,283
Bank balances and cash RITHEER IR 319
Amount due to former fellow subsidiaries NI E NGRS (13,787)
Amount due to former intermediate holding company JET R R A B F0E (31,584)
Trade payables B 55E (18,914)
Other payables, receipt in advance and accrued charges — E b fEFIE « FBUGIE N EETE A (11,164)
Obligations under finance leases MEHSHE (15,229)
Net assets disposed of HEFEE 4,132
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HEM B AR EE K RMB’000
ARET
Net assets disposed of HEFEE (4,132)
Cash consideration received PR ERE 6,000
Gain on disposal k=l e 1,868
Net cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary: HEMBAREEFHRERA
Cash consideration received BUERSNRE 6,000
Less: cash and cash equivalents of subsidiary disposed of 35 : EHEMBARMNRELIREGSE
BI8H (319)
5,681
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z20144 12531 H 1F F/Z

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. BEALRS
The name of and the relationship with related parties are as (a) BAEATZEEEHRAERNT :
follows:
Name Relationship
%8 2RES
Fang Jin Director and controlling shareholder of the Company
Wik RNARIEE RIERARER

208

Guo Quan Zeng
R

Scud Stock
RERRRMN

Scud Technology
RERRBIR

Fujian Youtong

RERE

Fuzhou Shanghe
BN LA

Hongde New Energy
IBIBHTEER

Scud Guangzhou

FEMNRERE

Director of the Company

ARBES

Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd., a company with Mr. Fang Jin and Mr. Guo Quan Zeng
being common directors who have shareholding interest in this company as to 67% to
3%, respectively

BERERBROARAR  FAERBRECEREKARESHORA - UHREEZA
RI67 % K23% Hx

Fujian Scud Technology Co., Ltd., a company with Mr. Fang Jin being common director
who has 18% shareholding interest in this company

BEREBBRERRR - TEAER/HARAEENRF] - EHEAZAF18%MME

Fujian Youtong Industrial Co., Ltd., a company with Mr. Fang Jin being common director

BERBEXERAF  HexEREARESHLF

Fuzhou Shanghe Electronics Co., Ltd., a company with its director and shareholder
holding 45% shareholding interest of the Company is the son of, Mr. Fang Jin, a
director and controlling shareholder of the Company

BN ERMEFARAT - EEAZ L A45%BRENES KRR SRR AIES RIERKRER S
BREZFHAF

Hongde New Energy Technology Co., Ltd., a company with its director is the son of, Mr.
Fang lin, a director and controlling shareholder of the Company. During the year, the
Group disposed of 60% of the entire shareholding interest in Hongde New Energy

BRI ERAT  HEER/ARAREERERBRR TR KEEZFHRA » A -
AR B SR ETER 2 A IR ER60%

Scud (Guangzhou) Digital Technology Co., Ltd., a 20% owned associate of the Group
BIMNRERBIEZMER AR - NEBEFE20% BRI E R
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 35. AEANERZ (2

(b) Transactions with related companies during the year (b) WERBEHRREMITDIWBENF AN E
not disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements are AT ST -

summarised as follows:

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T

Rental expenses paid to: BEREeRAX :
Scud Stock (Note i) FRERRAR 10 (M FED) 14,452 12,192
Scud Technology (Note ii) FRERRBHR (M FE) 3,318 -

Purchases raw materials from Fujian Youtong [M7@i2 KBS R E
(Note iii) (Ff5Eiii) 187 -

Purchases of finished goods from: (Note iii)  ¥REE&LAK S : (P ETiii)

Hongde New Energy TBIEFTREIR 2,726 -

Fujian Youtong BRERBE 3,364 -
Sales of raw materials to: (Note iv) HERMRT - (MEEiv)

Fujian Youtong BRERE 167 -

Fuzhou Shanghe BM _EF 1,605 -
Sales of finished goods to: (Note iv) HERKET  (W3Eiv)

Scud Technology FRERRREHL 7 -

Hongde New Energy TBIEFTREIR 24,952 -

Sales of property, plant and equipment to MBEMERLEME - BE
Hongde New Energy (Note iv) Ko & (M aEiv) 1,431 -

Interest income charged from Hongde New  [A]3& & 48R YR BRI B UL A
Energy (Note v) (M 5Ev) 145 -

Purchases of bluetooth headsets from Scud  [AEMREREEE E &5 oF B

Guangzhou (Note vi) (FF=Evi) = 1,960
Sales of mobile phone batteries to Scud MEMRER LS FHE
Guangzhou (Note vii) (B =Evii) = 25
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

210

(b)

(Continued)

The above transactions were made at prices and terms
as agreed between the parties in the normal course of
business.

Notes:

(i) The Company has disclosed in its prospectus dated
11 December 2006 that Scud Electronics had entered
into a lease agreement with Scud Stock on 20 June
2004, pursuant to which Scud Electronics had agreed
to lease from Scud Stock certain factory premises in
Fuzhou, Fujian Province, the PRC, for the Group’s
production use for a term of three years commencing
1 July 2004 and ending on 30 June 2007 (the
“Lease Agreement”). The Lease Agreement was later
extended to 30 June 2024.

The annual rental payable under the Lease Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Company has set its initial annual caps for each of
the three years ending 31 December 2008 to be
RMB2,700,000 each.

On 15 November 2007, Scud Electronics entered into
a new lease agreement for leasing another premises in
Fuzhou, Fujian Province, the PRC, from Scud Stock for
the Group’s administrative use for a term of 3 years (the
"New Lease Agreement”).

The annual caps have been revised following the
signing of the New Lease Agreement. The new
annual caps for the aggregate rental payable by Scud
Electronics to Scud Stock under all the leases for the
years ended 31 December 2007, 2008 and 2009 have
been determined to be RMB3,000,000, RMB4,100,000
and RMB4,100,000, respectively.

On 8 January 2010, Scud Electronics and Scud Stock
entered into a lease renewal agreement (the “Renewal
Agreement”) and agreed to terminate the New Lease
Agreement with effect from 1 January 2010. The
terms of the lease under the Renewal Agreement is
the same as that set out in the New Lease Agreement
and is effective commencing from 1 January 2010
and its tenure ending on 31 December 2012. Further
details of the Renewal Agreement are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 8 January 2010.

35 BEALRF )

(b)

(%)

XS TINEREBBETIREBES
Tﬁ%mé’]fﬂ%&ﬂ%?ﬂ HTT -

GEE

(I VN M EIA2006512811H
E’]Tﬁﬂﬁi&‘?‘ﬁ&% RERETFER
20046 4208 HEREREM D F] L1
EiE BURERETERERANR
FRENHAENTBEBELBMNOE
TIMWEELASBEAERS &
2004%7H18 # Z2007%46H30H
IHER=F(HEWH=z]) - HERZH
HIBERZE 20246 A300 -

HERZBETITNSFEMESER
FHRAFMAEEENFEBER
5 o AR FIE R TEE2008F12A8
BMMBE=REAFESFNLFEE £
R A ARE2,700,0007T °

M2007411 8158 » REBLE F35]
YHEERE - MRERBROEER
FEEEEENNEMMEERSE
Eﬂzﬁﬁzg CEH=ZF(FHHEEW

R HHERRE  BEREELR
EHEET « B E 20074 - 20084 &
2009F12A31HIEFE - RIEATE
HE  REBREFENRERKOR
HEMFFEELREDRITEAARE
3,000,0007T + AR%4,100,0007T &
AER#4,100,0007T °

R2010F1A8B  MEBRE T X
RERRRMETZEM (B HR W
E1) WREB2010F1A1H R
IHHHEERS - BHEBZETNEE
GHREFHEERZMEEMAE 8
2010F1 A1 B R E £ K - HFH
MR2012912A31BfEm- A@EM
BN AR R BEA2010
F1AHRMRE °
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)

The new annual caps for the aggregate rental payable
by Scud Electronics to Scud Stock under all the leases
for each of the years ending 31 December 2010, 2011
and 2012 have been determined to be RMB4,100,000
each.

The rent payable under the Lease Agreement, the New
Lease Agreement and the Renewal Agreement were
determined after arms’ length negotiations between
Scud Electronics and Scud Stock with reference to the
prevailing market rental for the comparable premises.

On 1 January 2011, Scud Electronics and Scud Stock
agreed to terminate the New Lease Agreement and
the Renewal Agreement with effect from 1 January
2011 and entered into a lease agreement (the “Old
First Lease Agreement”) for the period commencing
from 1 January 2011 and ending on 31 December
2013. The annual rental was RMB5,462,000 and
payable by cash on a monthly basis.

On 1 January 2014, Scud Electronics and Scud Stock
agreed to terminate the OId First Lease Agreement
with effect from 1 January 2014 and entered
into a lease agreement (the “Renewal First Lease
Agreement”) for the period commencing from 1
January 2014 and ending on 31 December 2016. The
annual rental was RMB8,544,000 and payable by cash
on a monthly basis.

On 1 January 2011, Scud Battery and Scud Stock
entered into a lease agreement (the “Old Second
Lease Agreement”) for the period commencing from 1
January 2011 and ending on 31 December 2013. The
annual rental was RMB6,730,000 and payable by cash
on a monthly basis.

On 1 January 2014, Scud Battery and Scud Stock
agreed to terminate the Second Lease Agreement with
effect from 1 January 2014 and entered into a lease
agreement (the “Renewal Second Lease Agreement”)
for the period commencing from 1 January 2014 and
ending on 31 December 2016. The annual rental was
RMB5,908,000 and payable by cash on a monthly
basis.

The rent payable under the Lease Agreement, the
New Lease Agreement, the Renewal Agreement,
the Old First Lease Agreement, the Renewal First
Lease Agreement, the Old Second Lease Agreement
and the Renewal Second Lease Agreement were
determined after arms’ length negotiations between
Scud Electronics and Scud Stock with reference to the
prevailing market rental for the comparable premises.

35 BEALRF &)

(o) (#&)

BIzE : ()

(i)

(%)

H Z=20104F - 20114F &20124E12 A31
Eiifxi RIEFAERE  RE

ETFRENREBRBRGERSHOTE
F FRESEAARE4L100,0007T °

HE W - FEE R EE R
THENES IRERSE %Eﬁiﬂx%ﬂi

[ 2 KA T ER 1 2R A LL &Y
%H’U%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ@ﬁﬁ%i o
R2011F1A1H - REREFHER

EREBRMDTEBE2011F1H1HER
IR EREMERAET T HE
wER(E—Helemsl) B
B20119F1 818 #£ 22013612 A31
Eut FEME A ARYS,462,000
CBEBANBEX -

MR2014F1A1H > MEMRE FHER
ERRDWEB2014F1 A1 R
HE—DERERETIZAE ng%
(IEB—HmEMRZ])  HEB2014
F1H1B #£ E2016F12 8318 1k °
FEHE A ARYS 544,0007T © 7B
BANBEEINT -

R2011F1818 - ﬂx%ﬂiﬂ o B2 7R
ERRROFILHEERZ(E_mHEM

EWE ) HHBE201ME1A1E R
Z2013F12A31HIt - FEME A
AR #6,730,0007T © BF AR S
SAF e

R2014F1A18 » RERE N EATR
ERBRMHEE2014F1 A1HER
FEZmHEERZETTLHERZ
(IF-tmEMB®E]) - HHIB2014
F1A1B £ E2016512A8318 1k o
FEMHE A ARMS5,908,0005 B
BANBEINT -

HEHE - HHEERE - JRRE -
—T/‘%ﬁ‘ﬂaﬁém %—T’J}i“fﬂ%’z
—EMRERENE _HER
Tﬁ%‘%lﬁ‘l’ﬂ’]?ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂx%ﬂfﬂ T
REBRI D 2 FE R FIEBR SRR
BEMENERMERSMERE -
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

212

(b)

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

On 1 July 2014, Scud Electronics and Scud Technology
entered into a lease agreement (the “Third Lease
Agreement”) for the period commencing from 1 July
2014 and ending on 30 June 2016. The annual rental was
RMB1,959,000 and payable by cash on a monthly basis.

On 1 January 2014, Scud Battery and Scud Technology
entered into a lease agreement (the “Forth Lease
Agreement”) for the period commencing from 1 January
2014 and ending on 31 December 2016. The annual rental
was RMB2,398,000 and payable by cash on a monthly basis.

On 30 April 2014, Scud Battery and Scud Technology
entered into another lease agreement (the “Fifth Lease
Agreement”) for the period commencing from 1 May 2014
and ending on 31 December 2016. The annual rental was
RMB413,000 and payable by cash on a monthly basis.

The rental payable under the Third Lease Agreement,
the Forth Lease Agreement, the Fifth lease Agreement
were determined after arm’s length negotiations
between Scud Electronics, Scud Battery and Scud
Technology with reference to the market rental for
similar properties nearby in the PRC and having taken
into account availability of similar premises nearby and
the cost of relocation.

The purchase prices of raw materials and finished
goods are determined and agreed by both parties.

The selling prices of raw materials, finished goods and
property, plant and equipment are determined and
agreed by both parties.

The interest rate applied on the loan is determined
and agreed by both parties.

Scud Guangzhou became the Group’s associate in
2013.

35 BEALRF )

(b)

(%)

BiZE : (&)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

R2014F7818 » RERE T ER
ERBMEAIVAEH®R(BE=mHE
W) HEBE2014FE7F1BEE
2016F6 4301 - FEHEAAR
#1,959,0007T ' AT AR E (T -

R2014F1818 » REREMHER
ERBEAIVAS R ([ EMEhEE
W) FHEE2014F1A1B RS
20165 12A318 1Lt FEMEAA
R #2,398,0007C * BHAUR S X
fF o

MR2014F 48308 » TREMRE M ER
ERERRIVS—EBAERR(ER
hHEEWSE] - HMHEB2014F5A81
H#E2016F12A31H 1 - FEMH
& A ARBEA13,000T 0 BT ANR
XA e

F-MmHEEWHR  FUHBEERHE
FRHBEERBEE N2 ENESTIH
REREF - REREMDRRERER
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I E MR 5 2 B R R iR
BRABATET -

B B B 0 SRE R AR p S
EXRE -
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Jlﬂ_w% BB 20134 AR /5 75 & (B B
NG



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREBBRAF

ANNUAL REPORT %%k 2014

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fra MR R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z20144 12531 H 1 F/Z

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 35. AEANERZ (2

(c)  Other transaction with related party: () EHHRBATHEMSS :
As at 31 December 2014, Mr. Fang Jin has guaranteed 2014128318 7 € & &£ 5t A
certain bank facilities made to the subsidiaries of the ERNBEATRESESEIEARE
Group of up to an amount of RMB233,258,000 (2013: 233,258,0007(20134 : AR%183,660,000
RMB183,660,000). TORETIRITRVE R LR -

(d) Remuneration for key management personnel, including d FEEEBASNMS(BFENMFEI0AR
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in WENDSNAATEEMS )T

Note 10, is as follows:

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T

Salaries, bonus, allowance and other benefits #FH& - #4 « ZAL R EMIEF] 2,301 995
Share-based payments expenses VARR 1 A Bl 2 kA 2 3,928 -
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RAREFIFT IR 40 34

6,269 1,029
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36. COMMITMENTS

214

(a)

(b)

Capital commitments

36. F&IE

(a) EAXEE
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBT T

Contracted but not accounted for, EREEME
in respect of acquisition of property, BARARE

plant and equipment

55 Ko 2% R T 49

451 21,605

Operating lease commitments

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
outstanding minimum commitments under non—cancellable
operating leases in respect of land and buildings which fall
due as follows:

(b) EEREASE
R & HAR A RS - AR BARE A AT
KEHERA TR BN L0 METH
REEAZNT

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT

Within one year —F R 27,407 7,811
In the second and fifth years inclusive MERAF(BREMFRIEBEA) 24,609 17,830
More than five years BB F 2,245 4,833

54,261 30,474

None of the leases includes contingent rentals. The Group
does not have an option to purchase the leased land and
buildings at the expiry of the lease periods.

ERBANETNEEEAES - AEERE
HBERRTEBERE IO RETHE
2
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

37. REHED 2B E TR
MR IR - BHERIBHS T AMBEEENT

2014 2013
Loans and Loans and
receivables receivables
EXRERTIE ER&EWTE
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR¥ET T AREEF T
(Restated)
(#=E5))
Financial assets MKEE
Trade and notes receivables EUE 55008 K R IR i 1,184,659 551,332
Financial assets included in prepayments, FTATEMRIE -« e R EMER
deposits and other receivables RIEMMIBEEE 43,263 20,284
Amounts due from related parties FEU A A+ 5RIE 57,975 4,733
Amount due from an associate JEURES 2 N\ B FA - 1,958
Pledged bank deposits BHERRITER 422,104 239,424
Time deposits FHATE R 60,000 -
Bank balances and cash IRITEHR MRS 122,229 195,360
1,890,230 1,013,091
2014 2013
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised amortised
costs costs
RS A b6 S [DWIN
STENBKERE ENNBAR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREEFTT
(Restated)
(&E&5)
Financial liabilities MKkas
Trade and notes payables R E SHE M ENERE 1,216,815 726,407
Financial liabilities included in other payables, FPAE MR FRIE - TEWERIA
receipts in advance and accrued charges KREGTERNMGEE 74,570 122,536
Bank loans RITER 380,552 320,803
Other loans HEMER 29,492 -
Amount due to a director FERESHE 42,683 1,000
Amounts due to related parties FEfTRAE A TFE 21,678 -
Amount due to an associate JE (Bt 8 R B 508 3 -
1,765,793 1,170,746
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 38. i EMEERBMEIAS AT
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS &

(a) BABEMRER

(a) Financial risk management

216

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial

risks, which include market risk (including foreign currency

risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity

risk. Details of the policies on how to mitigate these risks

are set out below. The directors manage and monitor these

exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented

on a timely and effective manner.

(i)

Interest rate risk management

Interest—bearing financial assets are mainly pledged
bank deposits and bank balances which are all short—
term in nature and carry fixed interest rates. Interest—
bearing financial liabilities are mainly bank loans
with fixed interest rates; therefore, the Group is not
exposed to significant fair value interest rate risk due
to the short maturity of the items. The Group currently
does not have an interest rate hedging policy and will
consider enter into interest rate hedging should the
need arise.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
assuming that a change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rates for financial
instruments in existence at that date. A 1% increase
or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 1% higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s
loss for the year ended 31 December 2014 and the
accumulated losses as of 31 December 2014 would
increase/decrease by approximately RMB3,805,000
(2013: the Group's loss for the year and accumulated
losses increase/decrease by approximately
RMB2,097,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure, to interest rates on its variable rate
bank balances, pledged bank deposits and bank loans.

AEEOEHE AT SERGEAR - £5F
SRR (R ENERR - FIRE R E
RER)  EERBREAIERR - B Y
RIEZZ AR OB FERA T -
EERREEREES - SRR RE L
BT E R 1 -

(i) FIEEREE
MEMBEETEREHMENEE
WIRITF R IRITAER - WIREEH
KR - MEMBREXZ/REE
MEFFBHRITER - At - A%KE
FAETRAMIIHARE - Ut A
AXBRHNRNFHENERERE - AEH
5 3 S A AR RS R R K 2 B
RAE T ER AT KRS o

FRYRBED T
ATEGURED T HERRNXEEHE
RmERRBELEMETE - LERAR
R B PARRAMBTAZH
KRB - RATEEEEABREMN
R [ i Y P D o B {6 PR 8 AN sl
1% DEREBEEBHMNEAELAEE
B AT

i ) =A% hn 8k A1 % 1 BT A8 At
HHEFIE  RNEEEZE2014512
A318 L FEHEE RR2014512
RA31AMRTEEEEN R
A K #3,805,00070(2013%F « A&
ERFEREBRRFEEEMN D
HAR¥2,097,0000T) © It THEBR
BASEZERITHEL - BEMRT
TFRRBITEFOFERR
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk management (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Interest rate risk management (Continued)
Interest rate sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The Group’s bank balances also expose it to cash
flow interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the
prevailing market interest rate on the bank balances.
The directors consider the Group's exposure on the
bank deposits is not significant as interest-bearing
deposits are within short maturity periods in general.

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rates has not
changed significantly from prior year.

Foreign currency risk management

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movements
in foreign currency exchange rates which will affect
the Group’s financial results and its cash flows.
Although the Group has certain bank balances and
bank loans denominated in United States dollars,
Japanese Yen and Hong Kong dollars, the proportion
of these foreign currency balances to the Group's total
assets is insignificant. Furthermore, the Group carries
out majority of its transactions in Chinese Renminbi.
Accordingly, in the opinion of the directors, the Group
is not exposed to any significant foreign currency risk.

Price risk management

In the opinion of the directors, the Group does not
have significant exposure to price risk.

3. BEBEERMBIA LT

=1C )

(a) MBRABEEE)

()

(i)

(iii)

FIEE R EE ()
MERYRBED W (7)

R IRITAESBRMRITHIS N R -
AEBWRITEBRTERR S RERN
KRk - EERR - ARG EFRE
BEREMARIE - AEBEHEKRORTT
TFREBR K

7452 8 ) | o U B 5 4 AR 31 A
ERED -

SHEE JEL Bt B HE

SMNE B RSN [ R B B AR
B HEERERSRENER
BEREEBEAEE TIAET  HER
ABILAHEMRITAEBRIRITER - R
- ZEINENEREAREBNRE
ELLHIWTER © pHh - REBEUA
REETERZHERZS  Hlt - &%
RARAEE L EAS A ERINE
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 38. i EMEERBMEIAS AT

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS Bz

(Continued)

(a) Financial risk management (Continued) (a) HEREEEIEE)
(iv) Credit risk management (iv) EEREREE

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk
primarily relates to the Group’s bank balances, trade
and notes receivables, and other receivables. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in the event that
the counterparties fail to perform their obligations
as at end of the financial year in relation to each
class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the statement
of financial position. In order to minimise the risk,
management of the Group closely monitors overdue
debts. The recoverable amount of each individual
debt is reviewed at each of the reporting period and
adequate allowance for doubtful debts has been made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that credit risk associated
with the Group’s trade and notes receivables, and
other receivables is significantly reduced.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
a certain level of concentration of credit risk as
approximately 36.2% (2013 (Restated): 11.0%) and
approximately 66.3% (2013 (Restated): 39.7%) of
the total trade and notes receivables, arising from
the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers, respectively.

The credit risk on bank balances is minimal because
the counterparties are banks with high credit-rating.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by
geographical location is mainly in the PRC.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

3. M KEREERMEBEIAEZAF
=1C )

(Continued)
(a) Financial risk management (Continued) (a) BIREMEIE(E)
(v) Liquidity risk management (v) FEMEGEE

The ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk
management rests with the board of directors, which
has built an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the Group’'s
short, medium and long term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group manages
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves,

REBASENES  PHEEHE
eRFERDUEERNESR  EEE
ERY—E/ENRBESRARER
HE - YERBUERBREEAKKE
- ARBEBRFRROFHE ]
TREMFIREERE - FEHES
BERRERERRSRE - WIRISHE

banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by EESREBEMNEHBEINERRE
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows R e

and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets
and liabilities.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at 31 December 2014 and 2013, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:

M2014%F K%2013F12A318 » A&
BRI aEREE T ARIIERE
REIEERIT -

2014

Less than Total Total
1 year or More than undiscounted carrying
on demand 1-5 years 5years  cash flows amount

HR-F AER
HEEKX -Z5f RBLE RERBAR RHAR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTR ARBTR ARMTZ  ARETR
Trade and notes payables ENESTERERSR 1,216,815 = - 1216815 1216815

Financial liabilities included in other payables, 5t AZEMZIE - EYFUE R Es

receipts in advance and accrued charges BANIEAR 74,570 - - 74,510 74,570
Bank loans RITER 389,095 617 - 389,712 380,552
Other loans EER 12,183 19,884 - 32,067 29,492
Amount due to a director ERESHE 42,683 - - 42,683 42,683
Amounts due to related parties ERBEATHE 21,678 - - 21,678 21,678
Amount due to an associate ERBERATE 3 = - 3 3
1,751,027 20,501 - 1,777,528 1,765,793
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 38. B EMEEBRUMBEIA A Y
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VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk management (Continued)

(v) Liquidity risk management (Continued)

B

(a) HIBREBEEZ)
(v) HEMEREREE(E)

2013
(Restated)
(&£&3))
Less than Total Total
1 year or More than  undiscounted aarying
on demand 1-5 years 5 years cash flows amount
s AEEB

FHREX  -ERF BBRF RERELE  BEEE
RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'00  RMBOO0  RMB'000
ARETL  ARBTT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

Trade and notes payables ENBESTERERZE 726,407 - - 726,407 726,407

Financial liabilities included in other payables, — 5f A JER 3UA - TEIREE R gt
receipts in advance and accrued charges ERNBKAE 122,536 - - 122,536 122,536
Bank loans FITER 328,937 325 - 329,262 320,803
Amount due to a director ENEZTE 1,000 - - 1,000 1,000
1,178,880 325 - 1179205 1,170,746

(b) Fair values of financial instruments

The notional amounts of financial assets and liabilities
with a maturity of less than one year are assumed to
approximate their fair values.

The fair value of balances with related parties has not been
determined as the timing of the expected cash flows of
these balances cannot be reasonably determined because of
the relationship.

(b) BBTRZAFE
FHIN-—FNMHEERAENERS
%ﬁi’ﬂ?j“?%éﬁi NFHERE
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39. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it, in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes during the years ended 31 December 2014 and
2013.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by the total capital plus net debt. The Group’s
policy is to maintain the gearing ratio below 50%. Net debt
includes interest-bearing borrowings. Capital includes equity
attributable to owners of the Company and the non-controlling
interests. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting period
were as follows:

39. EAREE

FEENEAERIZABRRERAEEFE
REmEEN  BRRRENERLE  UXFE
BEARREGRA@R

AEEERHENERE  WRHLEERENEE
REBEENRRMEEHERREETHE -
B RAREARLEE  AEBE A BRI’
RERE - MREEEIERLBETHR - A&
ERrZEMIINRERNEAETEMRS - BHE
20144 F20135F 128318 ILFE » WEHAE
1Z - BoRSEFEHEE -

AEBEFEREERBHLERERERN  FAE
BABRERIFEE ARENBRRERE
EBELERS0%AT - FEEBENERE
Ko BABEARRBESE AREBRARIFZER
s RIREHR - EERBHLRLT

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBEFT

(Restated)

(f&&E7))

Interest-bearing borrowings Bt EfE K 410,044 320,803
Equity attributable to owners of the Company  ZARAAIHEA AELER 992,511 939,127
Non-controlling interests e 43,495 48,710
Total capital BB 1,036,006 987,837
Gearing ratio BAEABHE 39.6% 32.5%
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40. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED 40.#t/E4SBE®mE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and RATEEESDN2018F4 8308 it & & 1% #E
authorised for issue by the board of directors of the Company Bt b & B FE IR SR
on 30 April 2018.
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The Group NEE
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31ALEE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARET T AREFTT ARET T ARET T
(Restated)
(&&71)
Turnover e 3,728,814 2,395,816 1,821,620 1,653,011 1,527,445
Profit/(loss) before income tax % PRI AT I,/ (E18) 15,871 (197,179) (215,056) 67,223 68,200
Income tax Fris®t (22,733) 41,423 22,450 (12,308) (16,038)
(Loss)/profit for the year REE(HE),/ 7 (6,862) (155,756) (192,606) 54,915 52,162
(Loss)/profit for the THALEGEAEE (EE),/
year attributable to: A
Owners of the Company ADEHEEA (1,696) (144,936) (162,815) 59,492 54,350
Non-controlling interests IR (5,166) (10,820) (29,791) (4,577) (2,188)
(6,862) (155,756) (192,606) 54,915 52,162

223



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREBEERNE

ANNUAL REPORT %%k 2014

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MR

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE

The Group EE

At 31 December

R12A318

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRE ARETT ARBTIT ARETT ARETT

(Restated)

(=51)
Total assets BEE 2,973,929 2,218,652 2,113,100 1,998,181 1,771,730
Total liabilities BaE (1,937,923)  (1,230,815) (949,667) (650,501) (485,217)
1,036,006 987,837 1,163,433 1,347,680 1,286,513

Attributable to: TH AL

Owners of the Company AREEB A 992,511 939,127 1,102,895 1,233,034 1,179,646
Non-controlling interests R 43,495 48,710 60,538 114,646 106,867
1,036,006 987,837 1,163,433 1,347,680 1,286,513
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2014, 31 December 2015,
31 December 2016 and 31 December 2017 will be held at the same time to be announced in due course.
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to the Group.

CONTINUED SUSPENSION OF TRADING

Trading in the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange will continue to be suspended pending the
fulfilment of the resumption conditions referred to in the Company’s announcement dated 13 July 2015.
The Company will make an announcement about status update of fulfilment of resumption conditions
when appropriate.

On behalf of the Board of
SCUD Group Limited
Fang Jin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 April 2018

As at the date of this announcement, the Board comprises Mr. Fang Jin, Mr. Guo Quan Zeng and Mr.
Feng Ming Zhu being the executive Directors, Mr. Zhang Li and Mr. Hou Li being the non-executive
Directors, and Dr. Loke Yu, Mr. Wang Jing Zhong, Mr. Wang Jian Zhang and Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor
being the independent non-executive Directors.





